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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B ¥5 & 1 itk 2
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For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
B5Z S
—E-mE —E-=F
t=RA=+-8 +tZA=+—H
LtHE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTE T FET
Revenue W= 80,659 89,548
From asset management REEEER 23,707 42,746
From investment and KERE R
financial advisory services B 75 5 30 AR 15 525 435
From underwriting and KERFEFBHEHKIREE
placing of securities 18,295 -
Sales of goods iH & &5 o 44,460 36,636
From securities trading and KEBFHFEER
investments & (6,328) 9,731
Adjusted net loss for the year (Note 1)  ANF E L FHEFEB(FHE1) (1,401) (22,630)
Adjusted EBITDA (Note 2) 4% S B EBITDA (Fff 3£ 2) 6,599 (10,577)

31 December

31 December

2024 2023

—E-E —E-=4F

+=—A=+—-8 +ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FAETT

Total Asset EEPE 308,484 323,578

Net Asset & EFE 270,649 279,983
Notes: M 5

(1) Adjusted net loss is not defined under Hong Kong Financial (1)
Reporting Standards, and is derived from the net loss excluding
the effect of change in fair value of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

(2)  Adjusted EBITDA, as presented, represents adjusted net loss,  (2)
adjusted to exclude finance costs, income tax and depreciation.

WA KA
B LA B B 75 £

ERHEFBELKEEEHBGRELUTES -
MR FERTNBREATFESABEZ SR
AENATERBLEA/M -

HEEBITDARI AR B M FEE - #
BRH BB ERITE-
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | hereby present to our Shareholders the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2024 (the "Year Under Review").

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting and
placing services, securities trading and investments and
trading of wines and beverages.

The Group commenced its asset management business in May
2018 and generated revenue by providing asset management
services and advisory services through the expertise of
the Group’s investment team with Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) licenses granted
by the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the
“SFC"). The licensed activities were conducted by the asset
management subsidiary of the Group, namely OCI Asset
Management Company Limited (“OCIAM"). The total net
assets under management (“AUM") and subscription amounts
from investors managed by OCIAM as at 31 December
2024 amounted to US$130 million and US$398 million,
respectively, from 10 funds (31 December 2023: US$149
million and US$406 million, respectively, from 10 funds). The
decrease in AUM managed by OCIAM was mainly due to the
decrease in fair value of the underlying investments held by
the funds. Asset management income for the Year Under
Review was HK$23.71 million (year ended 31 December
2023: HK$42.75 million).

After obtaining Type 1 (dealing in securities) license
granted by SFC in July 2021, the Group is able to provide
underwriting and placing of securities services. During the
Year Under Review, the Group had participated in total of 3
bond issuance transactions (year ended 31 December 2023:
nil) and generated revenue from underwriting and placing
of securities amounted to HK$18.30 million (year ended 31
December 2023: nil).

REZEFEZERARDF

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHBS
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRHS

Dividend income, gain on trading of cryptocurrencies, and
the change in fair value of financial assets recognised under
securities trading and investments segment for the Year
Under Review, in total, amounted to a loss of HK$6.33 million
(year ended 31 December 2023: a gain of HK$9.73 million).

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of young
consumer. Attributed to the gradual recovery of general
economic situation and the effort of the Group’s sales and
marketing team to boost sales, revenue from trading of wines
and beverages increased to HK$44.46 million for the Year
Under Review as compared to HK$36.64 million for last year.

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$80.66 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2023:
HK$89.55 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue from asset management business
and the recognition of net fair value loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of HK$7.45 million for
the Year Under Review as compared to a net fair value
gain of HK$9.39 million for last year, which was offset by
the increase in revenue from underwriting and placing of
securities, and trading of wines and beverage.

The consolidated net loss of HK$8.85 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended
31 December 2023: HK$13.24 million). The decrease in
consolidated net loss was mainly due to (i) the decrease in
general and administrative expenses mainly as a result of the
decrease in staff cost, legal and professional fees, and various
other operating expenses; and (ii) the recognition of gain on
disposal of a subsidiary of HK$6.36 million (year ended 31
December 2023: loss of HK$30,000), which was then offset
by the decrease in total revenue as discussed above, and
the increase in cost of sales and services rendered (mainly
attributed to the increase in cost from underwriting and
placing of securities, and trading of wines and beverage).
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Market sentiment improved due to optimism over interest
rate cut, and various policies introduced by government
authorities, including but not limited to, the five measures
on capital market cooperation with Hong Kong announced
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in April 2024;
policy measures to deepen the financial market connectivity
between Hong Kong and the Mainland and consolidate
Hong Kong's status as the global offshore RMB business
hub announced by The Hong Kong Monetary Authority in
January 2025. During the Year Under Review, the Hang Seng
Index hit a two-year high in October 2024, and in the first
quarter of 2025, it is in a rising trend. Nevertheless, external
macro factors weighed on the market, such as trade tensions
between the Mainland and the US; geopolitical risks in certain
overseas countries. The Board remained cautious in exploring
potential business opportunities and development of the
Group’s business.

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business and actively optimize its investment
portfolio with high potential with a view to realizing
synergetic effect with existing clients and strategic partners
in order to help investors to achieve their wealth appreciation
goals through asset management. Resources will also
be allocated to asset management in relation to debt
investments with high credit rating to suit different investors’
risk appetite. During the year 2022, an investment fund
was set up with a targeted capital commitment to be raised
ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion, and is expected
to invest in the healthcare industry. The fund raising was in
progress.

Crypto-assets have become increasingly popular. Crypto-assets
are not only acquired by individuals for investment or
speculative purpose. Certain corporates, financial institutions
and even government bodies have started exploring the use
of blockchain technology, and central bank digital currencies
may just be around the corner. The SFC has also greenlighted
the authorisation of virtual asset futures Exchange Traded
Funds for public offering in October 2022. The Group has
commenced proprietary trading on crypto-currencies during
the Year Under Review and will explore potential development
opportunities related to asset management of crypto-assets in
order to expand the Group’s asset management business.

REZEFEZERARDF

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTRHBS
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FREHRS

On the other hand, in addition to the acquisition of 60%
equity interestin L R EM R IR EETEEER A 7
(Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd.), a company incorporated in the PRC and principally
engaged in the provision of asset management and advisory
services in the PRC, during the year 2022, the Group will
continue to explore other business opportunities in the PRC,
such as business related to Qualified Foreign Institutional
Investor; cooperation with business partners in the PRC on
potential projects, to enhance the Group’s performance.

During the Year Under Review, the Group had participated
in total of 3 bond issuance transactions and will continue
to allocate resources for the development of securities
underwriting and placing business to diversify the income
source of the Group.

For trading of wines and beverage, the Group will keep on
with the existing strategy in expanding its wine product
portfolio to a broader range and other beverage categories,
and to conduct marketing and promotion activities, such as
wine tasting campaigns, to boost sales.

In addition to the existing and afore-said businesses, the
Board will cautiously and diligently explore new potential
expansion opportunities in order to diversify income sources,
bring in profits and sustainable growth to the Group.
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Finally, | would like to extend my greatest gratitude to all
the Shareholders for their continuous support and to our
clients, banks and investors for their trust, encouragement
and recognition. Meanwhile, | would also like to thank all
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REZEFEZERARDF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Group are provision of asset
management services, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting and
placing services, securities trading and investments and
trading of wines and beverages.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year Under
Review"), the Group continued to focus on the development
of asset management and investment and financial advisory
businesses. Apart from Type 4 (advising on securities) and
Type 9 (asset management) licenses issued by the Securities
and Future Commission of Hong Kong (the “SFC") which were
granted to the Group in May 2018, the Group had obtained
Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted by SFC on 28 July
2021. The Group's asset management and financial advisory
businesses target high-net-worth individuals and institutional
investors such as financial institutions, asset management
companies and other investment companies. The licensed
activities were conducted by the asset management subsidiary
of the Group, namely OCI Asset Management Company
Limited (“OCIAM"). The total net assets under management
("AUM") and subscription amounts from investors managed
by OCIAM as at 31 December 2024 amounted to US$130
million and US$398 million, respectively, from 10 funds
(31 December 2023: US$149 million and US$406 million,
respectively, from 10 funds). The decrease in AUM managed
by OCIAM was mainly due to the decrease in fair value of the
underlying investments held by the funds.

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of young
consumer. Attributed to the gradual recovery of general
economic situation and the effort of the Group’s sales and
marketing team to boost sales, revenue from trading of wines
and beverages increased to HK$44.46 million for the Year
Under Review as compared to HK$36.64 million for last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 12 B 57 5 82 53 i

Facilitated by the creation of a listing regime by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for
special purpose acquisition companies (“SPACs") taking effect
on 1 January 2022, the Group has submitted an application
to the Stock Exchange for listing of a SPAC, named Pisces
Acquisition Corporation, on 2 March 2022. After considering
the market conditions, the management of the Group
decided to cancel the listing project during the year ended 31
December 2023, and legal and professional fees amounted
to HK$9.55 million, which were originally recognised as
prepayment, had been written off as expenses in year 2023.

The Group recorded total revenue of HK$80.66 million for
the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2023:
HK$89.55 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue from asset management business
and the recognition of net fair value loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of HK$7.45 million for
the Year Under Review as compared to a net fair value
gain of HK$9.39 million for last year, which was offset by
the increase in revenue from underwriting and placing of
securities, and trading of wines and beverage.

The consolidated net loss of HK$8.85 million was incurred
by the Group for the Year Under Review (year ended
31 December 2023: HK$13.24 million). The decrease in
consolidated net loss was mainly due to (i) the decrease in
general and administrative expenses mainly as a result of the
decrease in staff cost, legal and professional fees, and various
other operating expenses; and (ii) the recognition of gain on
disposal of a subsidiary of HK$6.36 million (year ended 31
December 2023: loss of HK$30,000), which was then offset
by the decrease in total revenue as discussed above, and
the increase in cost of sales and services rendered (mainly
attributed to the increase in cost from underwriting and
placing of securities, and trading of wines and beverage).
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REZEFEZERARDF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Asset Management Services

Since May 2018, the Group carries on its asset management
business through providing a range of asset management
services and investment advisory services to qualified
corporate and individual professional investors under Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities by the SFC.

As at 31 December 2024, OCIAM was engaged in the
management of 10 funds (31 December 2023: 10 funds)
including the self-invested US Dollar Debt Fund, serving 14
individuals and 20 corporate investors (31 December 2023:
16 individuals and 21 corporate investors). The total AUM
and subscription amounts from investors managed by OCIAM
as at 31 December 2024 amounted to US$130 million and
US$398 million respectively (31 December 2023: US$149
million and US$406 million respectively). Asset management
income for the Year Under Review was HK$23.71 million (year
ended 31 December 2023: HK$42.75 million).

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired 60% paid up capital of
IWERMEF K EEE AR A A (Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd.) (“Shandong
Civil Aviation Dongsheng”) from a third party at a cash
consideration of RMB3.15 million. Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng is a company incorporated in the PRC and
principally engaged in the provision of asset management
and advisory services in the PRC. Shandong Civil Aviation
Dongsheng is classified as a joint venture company of the
Group and for the Year Under Review, the Group recorded
share of profits of the joint venture of HK$1.98 million (year
ended 31 December 2023: HK$1.74 million).

An investment fund was set up in year 2022 with a targeted
capital commitment to be raised by the limited partners
ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion (the “Healthcare
Investment Fund”) where YZ Healthcare GP Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is the general
partner. The Healthcare Investment Fund targets to invest
in the healthcare industry. Up to the date of this report, the
fund raising was in progress.
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Investment and Financial Advisory Services
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, OCIAM was engaged in
advising 1 fund with fund size of HK$1.05 billion. Investment
advisory services fee income amounting to HK$0.53 million
was recorded by the Group for the Year Under Review (year
ended 31 December 2023: HK$0.44 million).

Underwriting and Placing Services

After obtaining Type 1 (dealing in securities) license granted
by SFC on 28 July 2021, the Group is able to provide
underwriting and placing of securities services. During the
Year Under Review, the Group had participated in total of 3
bond issuance transactions (year ended 31 December 2023:
nil). Revenue and profit from the segment of underwriting
and placing of securities was amounted to HK$18.30 million
and HK$0.19 million respectively (year ended 31 December
2023: nil).

Trading of Wines and Beverages

Attributed to the gradual recovery of general economic
situation and the effort of the Group’s sales and marketing
team to boost sales, revenue from trading of wines and
beverages increased to HK$44.46 million for the Year Under
Review as compared to HK$36.64 million for last year. Loss
attributable to this business segment amounted to HK$3.89
million for the Year Under Review (year ended 31 December
2023: loss of HK$6.99 million).

The Group had expanded its wine product portfolio to a
broader range and other beverage categories (including red
wine, white wine, champagne and sparkling wine, whisky,
Moutai and Chinese tea leaf) to capture the demand of young
consumer. The Group is conducting its sales through three
channels: (i) direct sales; (ii) online sales; and (iii) wholesale.
The Group will also maintain business relationship with
reputable distributors for sale of premium wine.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund Investment
The Group had the following investment in funds:

(i)

(i)

The Group launched a US dollar debt fund (the “US
Dollar Debt Fund”) in February 2020. The aim of the
US Dollar Debt Fund is to invest in medium to long
term notes to obtain steadily interest income as well as
capital appreciation. The US Dollar Debt Fund is open
to external professional investors and is managed by
OCIAM. The fund manager closely monitors the market
value of the investment notes within the portfolio of
the fund and try to capture any opportunities to acquire
investment notes at low value and to dispose those
investment notes at a higher price to obtain capital
gain in addition to interest return. Further details of the
investment portfolio of the US Dollar Debt Fund is set
out under the section headed “Securities Trading and
Investments — US Dollar Debt Fund” below.

On 2 March 2021, the Group subscribed for 100 Class
A Shares of OCI Equities Fund SP (“the Sub-Fund”)
at a consideration of HK$95,000,000 (representing
approximately 19% of the investment funds raised).
Class B shareholder and Class C shareholder
will contribute HK$80,000,000 (representing
approximately 16% of the investment funds raised) and
HK$325,000,000 (representing approximately 65% of
the investment funds raised) to subscribe for Class B
Shares and Class C Shares, respectively. Provided that
the Sub-Fund has sufficient distributable assets, each
Class A Share is entitled in priority (over Class B Shares)
to a simple fixed return of 5% per annum on its initial
offer price or its subscription price as at the closing day
or the relevant subscription day (“Class A Expected Fixed
Return”). The Class A Expected Fixed Return will be
payable annually. Investment objective of the Sub-Fund
is to achieve medium to long-term capital appreciation
through direct or indirect acquisition, holding, and
distribution or other disposition of a properties
development project in Foshan, the PRC through the
three years term.
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ER BT

(iii)

ER 53 Mfr

The original term of the Sub-Fund was ended on 4
March 2024, and had been extended for further three
years on 24 March 2024. Details of the extension was
set out in the Company announcement date 24 March
2024.

In the second half year of 2024, the Group disposed of
HK$1.50 million of its investment in the Sub-Fund to
an independent third party at the original subscription
price.

As at 31 December 2024, the fair value of the fund
investment was HK$92.02 million (31 December 2023:
HK$102.40 million), representing 29.8% of the total
assets of the Group (31 December 2023: 31.6%).
The fair value was determined by the present value of
expected cash flows with the appropriate discount rate
of each cash flow and adjusted for fund specific credit
risk. In addition to the partial disposal of investment as
discussed above, the decrease in balance was mainly
attributed to the discounting impact as a result of the
extension of the terms of the Sub-Fund.

In the fourth quarter of 2024, a fund, namely OCI Chiyu
Fixed Income Fund SP (the “Fixed Income Fund”), has
been set up where OCIAM is one of the investment
managers. The Fixed Income Fund targets to invest in
fixed income investment products to earn both interest
return and capital gain.

The Group invested HK$5.00 million in the Fixed Income
Fund and the fair value of the investment as at 31
December 2024 was HK$4.86 million, representing 1.6%
of the total assets of the Group. The fair value was
determined with reference to the net asset value of the
Fixed Income Fund as at 31 December 2024.

(iii)

2024 Annual Report

Ko EENREHRRERN T _MOF=
ANBER YER-_FE-_MF=ZA=
THEE-—FPRER=F -FHATH2F
FENRARBBEHPA T _NF=A_
TOBEZRE-

R -_MFETEF ZlKE@wﬁwﬁ
BEMBIYIFEF=-FHEERKDESHE
B1508887Te

R-ZZE-_ME+-_A=+—H H& K
ENRAFEAENRNREEE T(ZT ==
F+_A=Z+—H:10240858ET) "
HERAEBEREERN298%(Z T ==

F+ZA=+—H:316%) 2 FEK

EFHReRENRESRERAERE

ENBBRR)ET UHRESFEGERA

RIFL AR -REXAEERHIRE

571\' EHRBLTERHRKDESHR
REHUHBRTE -

RZE_MNEEFNFEXRLES A
OCI Chiyu Fixed Income Fund SP ([ & & Uk
nES]) APREEEEERERREK
Br— BEKR=mE2eERERERE
KB EER UWRIRANEERKRER
Wz o

REBEKRESOBEBTRETE W= E
¢ mMBE-_TE-_NF+=-A=+—H
WAFERICAEEETL GAKEER
BEMNI6% ATFEDZ2ERBETE KZ= %
SEHE_ZE_NWNEF+_A=+—HHE
EFEETE-



2024 3R

REZEFEZERARDF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Securities Trading and Investments

Dividend income, gain on trading of cryptocurrencies, and
the change in fair value of financial assets recognised under
this segment for the Year Under Review, in total, amounted
to a loss of HK$6.33 million (year ended 31 December 2023:
a gain of HK$9.73 million). Loss attributed to this business
segment for the Year Under Review increased to HK$7.69
million from HK$3.24 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, which was mainly due to the recognition of fair value
loss on investments of HK$7.45 million for the Year Under
Review as compared to a fair value gain of HK$9.39 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, which was then offset
by the decrease in legal and professional fees in relation to
the cancellation of listing application of Pisces Acquisition
Corporation amounted to HK$9.55 million.

Fixed Income Products

The key factors considered by the Group when making the
investment decisions included, but not limited to, (i) the credit
rating of the issuers; (ii) the financial position and financial
performance of the underlying assets; (iii) the returns offered
by and the relevant costs in association with the fixed income
products; (iv) the terms of the fixed income products; (v) any
guarantor or collaterals in association with the fixed income
products; (vi) leverage which can be applied in the fixed
income products; (vii) the economic environment; and (viii)
government policies.
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The Group held interests in the following investments which
were recognised as debt investments at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group:

(i) US$15 million 10% senior secured guaranteed notes
("RD Note”) issued by Rundong Fortune Investment
Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) matured on 15 April 2019.

The RD Note was secured by a charge over 78,000,000
shares of China Rundong Auto Group Limited (“China
Rundong Charged Shares”), a company formerly
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1365). The
Group issued an EOD Notice to the RD Note Issuer and
demanded for payment from RD Note Issuer on 16 April
2019. Then the Group sold 2,019,000 China Rundong
Charged Shares and subsequently also contracted with
LanHai International Trading Limited (B8 BB E 545
FR X \]) and Ms. Ding Yi (T 1&) (“RD Charged Share
Purchasers”), to sell the remaining 75,981,000 China
Rundong Charged Shares (“Remaining RD Shares”) for
HK$80 million. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to RD Charged Share Purchasers was filed to the high
court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
details of which was set out in the Group’s annual report
2019. Up to the date of this report, 8,310,000 China
Rundong Charged Shares was disposed in open market
for cash return of HK$8.76 million. The total exposure
as at 31 December 2023 was HK$108.38 million after
amounts recovered from the sale of part of collateral
and exchange difference arising from translation of US$
to HK$.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
attended the mediation but no agreement was reached
with the RD Charged Share Purchasers. Further Witness
Statement was exchanged and our case management
conference hearing was held on 29 November 2021.
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The case trial was conducted in October 2023. The
judgment has been handed down by the Court on 17
November 2023. The Court has dismissed the Group’s
claims and has ordered the Group to pay the RD
Charged Share Purchasers’ costs occasioned by the
proceedings, to be taxed if not agreed. A provision
of legal fees amounted to HK$5.36 million was made
during the year ended 31 December 2023 in relation to
such costs. After consulting the Group’s legal counsel,
the Group has decided not to appeal.

As the trading of the China Rundong Charged Shares
was suspended since 1 April 2021 and subsequently
delisted on 31 October 2022, full impairment provision
was made against the Group’s investment in RD Note as
at 31 December 2023.

During the Year Under Review, the Group disposed
of its entire equity interest in OCI Capital Limited (the
“Disposal of OCI Capital”), a subsidiary of the Group
which held the investments in RD Note and SP Note (as
defined below), to an independent third party. Upon
the Disposal of OCI Capital, the Group did not hold any
investment in the RD Note as at 31 December 2024.

US$13 million of 8% senior secured guaranteed notes
("SP Note”) issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) Company
Limited ("SP Note Issuer”) matured on 30 July 2019.

(i)
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In October 2018, the Group issued an EOD Notice to
the SP Note Issuer and demanded for payment from
the Sanpower Group Co., Ltd. and Mr. Yuan Yafei as
guarantors, in respect of all outstanding sums owing
by the SP Note Issuer under the SP Note. The SP Note
is secured also by charges over a total of 131,000,000
shares of C.banner International Holdings Limited
(“C.banner Shares”), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1028). On 9 January 2019, the
Group submitted an application to the Intermediate
People’s Court for the enforcement of amounts
due under the Mediation Order and the Settlement
Agreement, details of which were set out in the Group’s
annual report 2018 and 2019. The Company received
notice from the Sanpower Group on 8 December 2021
that the Restructuring Plan of Sanpower Group was
passed. The Restructuring Plan scheduled to resolve the
defaulted debts and part of the related interest due
through business restructuring and improving fund pool
through disposal of certain assets or investments. The
Restructuring Plan will last through 2021 to 2028. The
Company is registered as one of the Sanpower’s debtors
and will be notified by Sanpower Group for their
updates on the Restructuring Plan.

The total exposure of the SP Note as at 31 December
2023 was HK$101.57 million.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
SP Note was HK$20.31 million, after a provision for
impairment loss of HK$81.26 million, representing 6.3%
of the consolidated total asset of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, valuation of the carrying
amount of the SP Note was based on the closing price as
at 31 December 2023 of 131,000,000 C.banner Shares
that secured the SP Note of HK$0.155 per share.
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In the first quarter of year 2024, all the charged
C. banner Shares were disposed of by accepting a
voluntary conditional cash offer (the “Offer”) made by
First Shanghai Securities Limited, for and on behalf of
Orchid Valley Holdings Limited in respect of the charged
C.banner Shares at the offer price of HK$0.16 per share.
Total gross proceeds from the disposal were amounted
to HK$20.96 million.

Without the C.banner Shares as collateral, the net
carrying amount of the SP Note reduced to nil and
the Group recorded a reversal of impairment loss of
HK$0.36 million during the Year Under Review, and
upon the Disposal of OCI Capital, the Group did not
hold any investment in the SP Note as at 31 December
2024.

US Dollar Debt Fund

As at 31 December 2024, the Group was the only investor
of this fund and all the debt investments in this fund were
regarded as proprietary trade in the Group’s financial
statements. The details of the debt investment in the US
Dollar Debt Fund were as follows:

US$2.69 million (face value) of 9% guaranteed bond was
issued by CFLD Cayman Investment Ltd. maturing on 31 July
2021 (“CFLD Note"). On 9 March 2021, the Group received a
notification from our fund administrator that the CFLD Note
was defaulted due to a cross default terms of the CFLD Note.
On 24 January 2023, a restructuring scheme was approved
by the court, under which the creditors were offered with
different new bonds for selection by 9 January 2024 to
exchange for the CFLD Note.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had
submitted an application for the selection of new bonds
under the restructuring scheme, and in January 2024, the
Group has received the new bonds (“New CFLD Bonds").
Independent valuer was engaged to assess the expected
credit loss of the CFLD Note and New CFLD Bonds.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the CFLD
Note was HK$0.72 million, after a provision for impairment
loss from expected credit loss assessment of HK$20.29
million, representing 0.2% of the consolidated total assets of
the Group.

& 12 B 57 5@ 82 53 i

R_E_NFE-—FTE FEECERT
BERODEERAEMNE —LBRSHE
IR A 7] B &k R & Orchid Valley Holdings
Limited gt EBEHR TEERMIELENBERE
EBRHEREENNEZENNDRENEER
CI6ABATHE LHEFTEMGERNELTE
/20968 & AT °

ERBETEERMNDEARERGHNER
TOSPEEMEEFAEARLSET MA
SEREIEFTFEAESRESERE36
BEAT REHEREELE AEERN
ZTENFEF+ A=+ —BHYEFAEME
fRISPEEIRE o

ETEBEES
RZZE-_WME+ZA=+—H AKERZ
Ao —REE ZETAMEBEEBRE
RASEHGEREBINBEEEETE - XA
BESEBREFBEDO T :

2.69H & = st (E &) CFLD Cayman Investment
Ltd.FBETR _TE-_—F+tA=+—BEH
MI% EERELH(ICFIDERE]) - R T = —
FZANB AEBEEEESERBABN
EHNCIDEBRFERX X ENKRRBHCFLD
EBREINEBEHN R-ZZT-_=F—HA=+mWmAHA"
ERAEEHAGE B ERARZ-ZEC
ME—ANBRIERHTENFES N MHE
2 LAMRECFLDEI -

H

RBEE-_E-_=F+_-_A=+—BLLEE"
AEBEREBEEAGFEREIEETESRFD
HE YTR-_ZE-_mF-ARIFEHFTH
CFIDE#]) - AKBEEZEBIL(GHERM N
FECFIDEERHCFDESMEHEZEERRE -

NRZEBE-_=F+-_HA=+—8 CFLDEE®H
FEHEELEREEBBIM 2 RERBER
#H2020B BB L AB02EBEEB L HER
REBEREEEBENI2Y °

19



20

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 12 B 57 5 82 53 i

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the New
CFLD Bonds was HK$0.34 million, after a provision for
impairment loss from expected credit loss assessment of
HK$20.52 million, representing 0.1% of the consolidated
total assets of the Group.

Equity Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
invested HK$14.80 million in the listed shares and warrants
of three listed Special Purpose Acquisition Companies
("SPACs") in the Stock Exchange with the prospect of
making capital gain when the SPACs go for De-SPACs within
a pre-defined time period after listing. As at 31 December
2024, the carrying amount of the investments in SPACs was
HK$14.20 million (31 December 2023: HK$12.63 million). A
net fair value gain on the investments in SPACs amounting to
HK$1.57 million was recorded for the Year Under Review (year
ended 31 December 2023: fair value loss of HK$1.00 million).
Subsequent to the year end of 2024, the listed shares of one
of the SPACs investment were redeemed due to De-SPAC
with total proceeds of HK$12.60 million, and the Group
recorded a gain on redemption of HK$0.50 million.

Cryptocurrencies

During the Year Under Review, the Group allocated US$0.50
million for and commenced the trading of cryptocurrencies
with the aim to gain experience and knowledge of the
cryptocurrencies market, and also capital appreciation. A
gain on trading of cryptocurrencies of HK$1.12 million was
recorded for the Year Under Review.

Investment in an Associate Company

During the Year Under Review, an associate company was
established for information technology business. The Group
contributed HK$6.50 million cash to the associate company,
representing 49% of its entire share capital. The business was
in a start-up stage, and the Group recorded a share of loss of
associate company amounted to HK$1.48 million for the Year
Under Review.
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REZEFEZERARDF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’'s trade receivables
mainly comprised fees receivable from customers of asset
management business. The following is an ageing analysis
of these trade receivables based on the date of revenue
recognition:
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attributed to the increase in trade receivables aged over 365
days from Customers 2, 3, and 4 (as defined below), the
recoverability of which was further discussed below.

The Group acts as fund manager of customers of the asset
management business and closely monitors the net asset
value of the customers. In assessing the recoverability of asset
management fee receivables, the Group generally considers,
among others, ageing analysis, subsequent settlement from
customers, net asset value of the customers, and whether the
customers have any history of default.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2024, no provision was made on
the outstanding fees receivable from customers of asset
management business. Set out below are the major
information being considered for the recoverability
assessment in respect of the four customers with the largest
amounts of outstanding receivables, which in aggregate,
accounted for 97.5% of the total asset management fee
receivables as at 31 December 2024:

Customer 1 (trade receivables as at 31 December 2024:
HK$11.20 million)

The underlying asset invested by Customer 1 is a real estate
project in Hong Kong, the market value of the unsold
residential properties of such project as at 31 December
2024, based on the valuation report issued by independent
valuer, was HK$1,631.38 million, representing 145.7 times of
the outstanding trade receivables from Customer 1.

Customer 2 and Customer 3 (trade receivables as at
31 December 2024: HK$4.56 million and HK$2.53 million
respectively)

As at 31 December 2024, the net asset values of Customer
2 and Customer 3 were HK$307.37 million and HK$48.51
million respectively, representing 67.4 times and 19.2 times
respectively of the outstanding trade receivables from these
two customers.

Customer 4 (trade receivables as at 31 December 2024:
HK$1.98 million)

The net asset value of Customer 4 as at 31 December 2023
was HK$65.45 million, and as at 31 December 2024, the
book value of the underlying asset invested by Customer 4
was amounted to HK$54.11 million, representing 27.3 times
of the outstanding trade receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2024 was
2.2% (31 December 2023: 3.3%), calculated based on total
amount of lease liabilities of HK$5.96 million (31 December
2023: HK$9.14 million) divided by total equity of HK$270.65
million (31 December 2023: HK$279.98 million) as at that
date.

The Group's cash at financial institution and on hand
(including time deposits) as at 31 December 2024 amounted
to HK$128.06 million (31 December 2023: HK$104.79
million). Its total assets as at the same date were HK$308.48
million (31 December 2023: HK$323.58 million).

The Group recorded net current assets of HK$251.53 million
(31 December 2023: HK$263.35 million) and inventories of
HK$6.67 million (31 December 2023: HK$6.72 million). The
current ratio of 8.1 times (31 December 2023: 8.0 times) is
calculated based on the current assets of HK$286.74 million
(31 December 2023: HK$300.99 million) over the current
liabilities of HK$35.22 million (31 December 2023: HK$37.63
million).

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the issued
capital of the Company was HK$15.00 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no material
event after the reporting period and up to the date of this
report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Saved as disclosed in Fund Investment above and elsewhere
in this report, there is no other significant investment held at
31 December 2024.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not carry
out any material acquisition nor disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year Under Review.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2025 AND DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

Market sentiment improved due to optimism over interest
rate cut, and various policies introduced by government
authorities, including but not limited to, the five measures
on capital market cooperation with Hong Kong announced
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in April 2024;
policy measures to deepen the financial market connectivity
between Hong Kong and the Mainland and consolidate
Hong Kong's status as the global offshore RMB business
hub announced by The Hong Kong Monetary Authority in
January 2025. During the Year Under Review, the Hang Seng
Index hit a two-year high in October 2024, and in the first
quarter of 2025, it is in a rising trend. Nevertheless, external
macro factors weighed on the market, such as trade tensions
between the Mainland and the US; geopolitical risks in certain
overseas countries. The Board remained cautious in exploring
potential business opportunities and development of the
Group’s business.

The Group will stay focus on development of asset
management business and actively optimize its investment
portfolio with high potential with a view to realizing
synergetic effect with existing clients and strategic partners
in order to help investors to achieve their wealth appreciation
goals through asset management. Resources will also be
allocated to asset management in relation to debt investments
with high credit rating to suit different investors’ risk
appetite. During the year 2022, the Healthcare Investment
Fund was set up with a targeted capital commitment to be
raised ranging from US$1.5 billion to US$1.9 billion, and is
expected to invest in the healthcare industry. The fund raising
was in progress.
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Crypto-assets have become increasingly popular. Crypto-assets
are not only acquired by individuals for investment or
speculative purpose. Certain corporates, financial institutions
and even government bodies have started exploring the use
of blockchain technology, and central bank digital currencies
may just be around the corner. The SFC has also greenlighted
the authorisation of virtual asset futures Exchange Traded
Funds for public offering in October 2022. The Group has
commenced proprietary trading on crypto-currencies during
the Year Under Review and will explore potential development
opportunities related to asset management of crypto-assets in
order to expand the Group’s asset management business.

On the other hand, in addition to the acquisition of 60%
equity interest in Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng during
the year 2022, the Group will continue to explore other
business opportunities in the PRC, such as business related
to Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor; cooperation with
business partners in the PRC on potential projects, to enhance
the Group’s performance.

The Group had obtained Type 1 (dealing in securities) license
granted by SFC in July 2021. During the Year Under Review,
the Group had participated in total of 3 bond issuance
transactions and will continue to allocate resources for the
development of this business to diversify the income source
of the Group.

For trading of wines and beverage, the Group will keep on
with the existing strategy in expanding its wine product
portfolio to a broader range and other beverage categories,
and to conduct marketing and promotion activities, such as
wine tasting campaigns, to boost sales.

In addition to the existing and afore-said businesses, the
Board will cautiously and diligently explore new potential
expansion opportunities in order to diversify income sources,
bring in profits and sustainable growth to the Group.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group's operations are conducted in Hong Kong dollars
and US dollars while wine trading billings are mainly settled
in Hong Kong dollars, Euro and Sterling Pound. However, the
operations of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are conducted
in RMB. Therefore, the Group is exposed to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rate to a certain extent. Currently, the
Group has no formal hedging policies in place. The Group
has not entered into any foreign currency exchange contracts
or derivatives to hedge against the Group’s currency risks.
However, the Group will continue to closely monitor and
manage its exposure to foreign exchange and will consider
engaging hedging instruments as and when appropriate.

DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the
Year Under Review (year ended 31 December 2023: Nil). The
Board did not recommend any dividend payment for the Year
Under Review (year ended 31 December 2023: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no secured borrowings
were outstanding.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no outstanding
capital commitment.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had an outstanding
commitment of RMB3,000,000 for the capital injection to
Shandong Civil Aviation Dongsheng.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Directors are not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE POLICY

As at 31 December 2024, the Group employed 30 employees
in Hong Kong and 1 employee in the PRC. The Group has
maintained good relationship with its staff and has not
experienced any major disruptions of its operations due to
labour disputes. The Group contributed to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong and provided medical
benefits programme for its employees in Hong Kong. It
also contributed to the retirement insurance, medicare,
unemployment insurance and housing funds according to the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC for its employee
in the PRC. The Group also sponsored its staff to attend
seminars and training courses.

The Group remunerates its employees in accordance with
their work performance and experience. The Board has
designated the duties of determining Directors’ service
contracts, reviewing of Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments and awarding of discretionary bonuses to the
remuneration committee of the Company.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to, inter alia, the Directors and eligible employees.

& 12 B 57 5@ 82 53 i

B 8 iR

RZEZWOF+A=+—H AEERE
BEABIEEE UYRTEEBIGREES K
SEEBEIRFRIBE RABLEALE
AHMERTMNEEERERNTEHNBR -
REBAREAAEERLBEBARFIUELRES
AR EREEEENTE - RERRE
REEERER AEEBTAETEHEESRHE
RIKRRE  BERR XERRBRERETEER-
AEENREHEILNHAT G REBIFRRE-

AEERBEINTIEREALRERETET
Fi-EF@CRBKRARRFHEZESRETT
BETEERBEAN RIEZFRSREEA
EMEUNRERRARARNBEANBRE -

AARMERM—EERESS UHDE
ERAKERERS -

27



28

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PHREBHS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of OCI
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board takes the view that a high standard
of corporate governance lays down a solid foundation for
enhancing a high degree of accountability and transparency,
maintaining sound and effective internal control, improving
the performance of the Group and safeguarding the interests
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in
Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the
“Year"), the Company has fully complied with the CG Code.

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 31 March 2023 and 18 December 2024 in relation to
the resignation of Ms. Zheng Xiaosu (“Ms. Zheng") as the
non-executive Director and the appointment of Ms. Guo Ting
Ting (“Ms. Guo") as the non-executive Director.

Following the resignation of Ms. Zheng with effect from
31 March 2023, the Company had a single gender Board
which did not comply with the diversity requirement under
Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. The reason for the delay in
re-complying with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules was that
although, since the resignation of Ms. Zheng, the Board was
in the process of identifying a female candidate, the Board
failed to identify a suitable and qualified female candidate.

Following the appointment of Ms. Guo as the non-executive
Director with effect from 18 December 2024, the Board is no
longer made up by the Directors of a single gender and has
therefore satisfied the diversity requirement under Rule 13.92
of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2024, the Board was comprised of Mr.
Jiao Shuge (Alias Jiao Zhen) (Chairman) and Mr. Tang Nanjun
(Chief Executive Officer) as the executive Directors; Mr. Wu
Guangze, Mr. Zhao Li and Ms. Guo as the non-executive
Directors; and Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, Mr. Li Xindan, Dr. Lo
Wing Yan William and Mr Chong Ka Yee as the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Feng Hai resigned as the non-
executive Director on 29 April 2024.

All Directors (including the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for a
term of 3 years and are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Pursuant to code provision C.1.5 of the CG Code, the
Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their
appointments and in a timely manner for any changes, the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations, other significant commitments, and the identity
of the public companies or organisations involved.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, in particular,
(i) independent non-executive Directors are encouraged to
actively participate in the Board meetings; (ii) the number
of independent non-executive Directors must comply with
the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iii) the
independent non-executive Directors shall devote sufficient
time to discharge their duties as a Director. Furthermore,
the Directors may access external independent professional
advice to assist their performance of duties at the expense of
the Company. The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanism on an annual basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PHREBHS

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
and is also responsible for the financial performance,
risk management, internal control policies and business
operations of the Group. The daily operations of the Group
are delegated to the Group’s management. All Directors are
provided with updated information relating to corporate
governance and regulatory matters. During the Year, all
Directors were provided with monthly management updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Directors to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
functions with written terms of reference. The primary duties
are:

1. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

2.  To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management.

3. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

4.  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and the Directors.

5. To review the Company’s compliance with code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and performed the
above-mentioned corporate governance functions.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this
annual report.

2024 Annual Report

EFSRAEARAREMBRAR(RBEINE
BODZEBRRER TREEAKEZUK
=B EARERE NPETBRRREBEE-
AEBEZERERBRETASBEEERSR -
PREFHERRHRABLEXERAREES
BAZRHEN RAFE 2RBEFHER
HEBEAZEEEHEN EFHINBEHELAR
AIRE RKAMARZALRSNIERZF
B EHESETLETRAURENBE -

EECRARREONRBEERTERER

B -T2RER:

1. BlERBIARRAZEERER
e

=)

RRE

2. BRAREREERSREREAER ZEI
REEBHEEER-

3. RHRERAAAEETEEREEN
EHEZRERESR

4. FlIE ROLKEEREENEFTER 2T
RS

5. BREHALAMTFIAUZERRRCEE
RS2 RE -

RAFE BEFCERIMBETLEACRXE

NN v/ AN
/A Hd%ﬁlc °©

EZERINAERIEZTLAREEAER

Bl —fhe



2024 3R

Attendance record of meetings:

The attendance records of each Director at the various
meetings of the Company during the Year are set out as

below:

REBEBIZERERATE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FPHRERBHRS

TRbFRE:

RAFE SEFLEARATRAEZZRL
BRES M

Directors’ attendance record of the board meetings,

committees meetings, and annual general meeting in 2024

CECMFEZEEE ZECRHRRRBAEAGZESZHERENR

Annual Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
general Committee Board Committee Committee
meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings
ENZEE REZ8g® HMZSe
RRBEAS g3 Ezeed kS L
Number of meetings eENY 1 2 5 2 2
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Jiao Shuge EBELE 10 N/A 7 B 5/5 N/A 738 R N/A 7 i
Mr. Tang Nanjun EBHERE 71 N/A 7 i FR 5/5 N/A 7@ A N/A 7 FB
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Wu Guangze REELAE 71 N/A 7 i FR 5/5 N/A 7R i@ A N/A 7 FB
Mr. Zhao Li (appointed on BAEER-_T-_NE 7 N/A 7 i R 35 N/A 7R i@ A3 N/A 7 i
29 April 2024) MAZTNREZH)
Ms. Guo Ting Ting (appointedon  FEEX L (R-F-M%F N/A 7 i@ N/A 7 i FR N/A 7 i FR N/A 7R i@ A N/A 7 FB
18 December 2024) TZATNBEZA)
Mr. Feng Hai (resigned on BREE(R-Z-_MF N/A 7 B N/A 7 B 25 N/A 738 R N/A 7 i
29 April 2024) MAZTABEE)
Independent non-executive BUkyES
Directors
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EEmsk 1l 21 5/5 M0 M
Mr. Li Xindan FOREE 1l 2 5/5 0 W1l
Dr. Lo Wing Yan William EXLCEL 71 22 5/5 W) W)
Mr. Chong Ka Yee HREALE 0 22 5/5 WY W)
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The Chairman also held a meeting with all independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the Year.

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a
dedicated, diligent and proactive manner with reasonable
prudence. They have executed their duties in accordance with
statutory requirements, the Articles of Association and the
Listing Rules. All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
corporate matters of the Company and provided sufficient time
and attention to all significant issues of the Group.

Directors also participate in the consideration and approval
of matters of the Company by way of written resolutions
circulated to the Directors together with supporting
explanatory materials as and when required.

BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDING

The executive Directors meet on a regular basis to discuss
the ordinary business of the Company. Board meetings are
held to discuss the overall development, operation, financial
performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that require approval from the
Board. Reasonable notices are given to Board members to
give them an opportunity to attend. All Board members are
provided relevant documentation covering the subject matter
of the Board meetings. Board members are also provided
with sufficient information in a timely manner to review
and consider matters to be discussed at Board meetings and
also for passing written resolutions. The Company utilises
telephone conferencing for Directors who are not able to
attend in person. The Board held five Board meetings during
the Year.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comments and records within reasonable
time after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”), are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest and
that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
such Board meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee.

The members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. Clear written terms of reference of
all the Board Committees are given to the respective members
of these committees. Details of the Board Committees are set
out below:

1. Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 2001. The
Company adopted a set of revised written terms of
reference for the Audit Committee in December 2022.
During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee is comprised of the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chong Ka Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include,
among other things, review and supervision of
the financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control policies and procedures of the
Company and other duties under the CG Code. The
Audit Committee also acts as the communication
bridge between the Board and the external auditors in
relation to the planning and scope of audit work. The
appointment of members to the Audit Committee are
based on members’ breadth of experience in various
commercial sectors and professional knowledge of
financial reporting and general management.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to, among other things, review interim results
and annual results of the Group, internal control and
risk management issues, and review the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee. The risk management
policies and procedures was adopted in the year of 2016
and the enterprise risk management advising service
and internal control review report are prepared by an
external advisor and would be reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Board adopted a set of revised terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee including changes in
line with the requirements of the CG Code in December
2022. During the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Remuneration Committee is comprised of the
following independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William (Chairman)
Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan

Mr. Li Xindan

Mr. Chong Ka Yee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, determining the policy for
the remuneration of Directors, assessing performance
of the executive Directors, approving the terms of the
Directors’ service contracts, letters of appointment and
reviewing and approving matters relating to the share
schemes as stipulated in Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee reviews and
approves the remuneration packages with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

During the Year, since there were no shares granted
under the share option schemes of the Company, no
material matters relating to them under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules were required to be reviewed or
approved by the Remuneration Committee.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
two meetings to, among other things, review and
recommend remunerations of the Directors and senior
management to the Board and review the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

3. Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in
March 2012 and the Company adopted a set of revised
written terms of reference including changes in line with
the requirements of the CG Code in December 2022.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee is comprised of the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xindan

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William

Mr. Chong Ka Yee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include, among other things, (i) reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board; (ii) to establish
nomination policy to identify potential directors by
developing a list of desirable skills, perspectives and
experience; (iii) selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; (iv) to assess the independence
of Independent non-executive Directors; (v) make
recommendations to the Board; (vi) to review the
nomination policy and board diversity policy on regular
basis; and (vii) to monitor the implementation of the
nomination policy and board diversity policy and report
in the corporate government report annually.

The Nomination Committee has implemented the following
procedures and processes in respect of the nomination of
Directors:

1. The Nomination Committee may select potential
candidates for nomination by: (i) inviting the Board to
nominate suitable candidates, if any, for its consideration;
or (ii) nominating candidates who were not proposed by
the Board members; or (iii) engaging external recruitment
agencies to assist in identifying and selecting suitable
candidates, if considered necessary;
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2. The Nomination Committee will conduct background
search on each potential candidates;

3. After consideration, the Nomination Committee shall then
make recommendations of the suitable candidates for the
Board’'s consideration and approval. For the election of
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation to
the Shareholders; and

4. The Shareholders may also nominate candidates for
election as a Director in accordance with the procedures
posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend
retiring Director(s) to the Board for re-appointment in
accordance with the following procedures:

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service of the retiring
Director(s) to the Company and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, including but not limited
to the attendance of the meetings of the Board and/or
its committees and general meetings;

2.  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also
review and determine whether the retiring Director(s)
continue(s) to satisfy the criteria of the Company; and

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed re-election of director at the general
meeting.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings to, among other things, consider the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors, the appointment of
the Directors and review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company established the dividend policy aimed at setting
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to
apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution
of its profits as dividends to the Shareholders.

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital for expanding the Group’s
business and rewarding the Shareholders.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things,
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

e the actual and expected financial performance of the
Group

e the capital and debt level of the Group
e the general market conditions

e any working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future development plans of the Group

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group

e the liquidity position of the Group

e any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed by any of the
Group's lenders

e the statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is
subject to from time to time

® any other relevant factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

Notwithstanding anything in this Dividend Policy, the declaration
and payment of dividends (if any) by the Company is subject to
the discretion of the Board, any restrictions under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong
Kong and the Articles of Association and any other applicable
laws and regulations.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution
record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to
determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Group in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAININGS AND
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding to duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of interest and business of the Group
and such induction materials would also be provided to
newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. There
is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Directors confirmed that they have completed with the
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and report on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by the following means to develop
and refresh their knowledge during the Year. Mr. Zhao Li
who has been appointed as the non-executive Director on
29 April 2024 and Ms. Guo who has been appointed as the
non-executive Director on 18 December 2024 confirm that
each of them (i) has obtained the legal advice referred to
under Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 14 May 2024 and on
9 January 2025, and (ii) understand their obligations as the
Director.
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Training received
B XA

2024 &R

Directors

Bz

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Jiao Shuge EEEEE
Mr. Tang Nanjun ERBERAE
Non-executive Directors F(HBTEE
Mr. Wu Guangze REEZRE

HHAEEMR - -_MF
MA-+thHEZT)

Mr. Zhao Li (appointed on
29 April 2024)

Ms. Guo Ting Ting (appointed on
18 December 2024)

Mr. Feng Hai (resigned on
29 April 2024)

TZRATNAREZRE)
BEEEM-_T-MEF
MAZTNBEE

Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan EERATE

Mr. Li Xindan ELEAE

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William EXkICEL

Mr. Chong Ka Yee HRALTE

The topics on training mainly covered the Listing Rules update,
corporate governance, finance and industry specific regulations.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Following
enquiries with the Directors, the Company has received
confirmation from each of the Directors confirming that he or
she has complied with the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code for the Year.

Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
FEE L+ (R =ZF ZMWF Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course

Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
Reading materials/attending training course
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SEGREGATION OF DUTIES

In compliance with Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG code, the
roles of the Chairman and the CEO positions are separated
and performed by different individuals, namely Mr. Jiao
Shuge and Mr. Tang Nanjun, respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the management of the
Board and the strategic developments of the Group, while the
CEO is responsible for the Group’s day-to-day management
of the Group's business and corporate administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors bring independent
judgement to the Board. Each independent non-executive
Director sent a written confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors have met the
qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications
and experience to ensure that they are capable of performing
their duties and protect the interests of the stakeholders.
Every appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal
introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of
the Group’s business and operation, his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.

According to the provisions of the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM"). In addition, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation. Furthermore, each Director, including
those appointed for a specific term or holding office as
the Chairman and/or the CEO, are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the selection of
individuals nominated as Director and senior management.
The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy
which is contained in the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee that sets out the selection criteria and
process in relation to nomination of Directors and aims to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the
continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

Detailed information relating to educational, professional
qualifications and relevant work experience are provided at
the Board meeting to approve the proposed appointment
of new Directors. The criteria for selecting Directors are
mainly based on the candidate’s qualifications, experience,
professional knowledge, ethics and integrity.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In December 2022, the Board has adopted a set of revised
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) pursuant to which the Board considers a number of
aspects, including but not limited to, gender, age, culture,
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, diversity of perspectives and length of
services in designing the Board’s composition. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. By adopting such
aspects, it facilitates the Company to develop a pipeline at
candidates to the Board to achieve gender diversity. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and to monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
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During the Year, the Board, via the Nomination Committee,
conducted an annual review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and is satisfied that
the Board Diversity Policy has been properly implemented and

is effective.

Measurable Objectives
In terms of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, there are
the following measurable objectives:

(@) to comply with the requirements as specified under the
Listing Rules from time to time in relation to composition
of the Board;

(b) the number of independent non-executive Directors
appointed must not be less than three and must
represents at least one-third of the Board;

(c) at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise;
and

(d) must appoint a Director of a different gender on or
before 31 December 2024 to avoid single gender board.

As at 31 December 2024, all the measurable objectives under
the Board Diversity Policy have been fulfilled.

REZEFEZERARDF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PREBHS

RAFE EEZCERRAHZBEHESS
% TTAL BR WAM&E&Etiifﬁﬁ’
TEREFEZTIEBRRELZEEBRAN

TiEA B
RERESZZLEREMS BUATAIE
= B E:

() BT LEWHAAUTEHITIREEEETSHK
B #E

b) BEEEMBIFATEEABTE LR
=4 BUELEFENBAREDS
Hz—:

P-BBUNNTESFLAAGEE

(o0 =
MEXERXSTXHEBYEERER

(d $ER-_ZE-_OF+_A=+—-—HBzkZ
FMEE—RTRMEINES WB2E
EEHRE—-

RZF-_MEF+_A=T—H EFE€Z
EERRTHMEANFEBRRHEEK-

43



44

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PHREBHS

Gender Diversity
At Board level:

The proportion of female Board representation is a
measurable objective of the Company in assessing the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The Board
recognises the importance of the Board gender diversity for
enhancing the corporate governance system and strategic
decisions in the boardroom.

As at 31 December 2024 and up to the date of the
date of this report, the Board considers that the gender
diversity is achieved in respect of the Board. A director of
different gender has been appointed to avoid single gender
board. The Board will take opportunity to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for
Board appointments to ensure that appropriate balance of
gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectation and international and local recommended best
practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to
gender parity.

In order to achieve gender diversity on the Board level, the
Board has appointed at least one female Board member
before 31 December 2024.

At workforce level:

In striving to maintain gender diversity, similar considerations
are used when recruiting and selecting senior management
and general staff. As of 31 December 2024, a 55:45 male to
female gender ratio, being a measurable objective for gender
diversity, has been achieved in the workforce (including senior
management). Further information about the composition of
the Group’s workforce can be found in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Board reviews the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives for implementing such policy on a
regular basis and will review the progress on achieving these
objectives, developing successors to the Board, and the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

In determining the remuneration of Directors and senior
management, the Company took into account of () the
prevailing market conditions; (ii) the time commitment
requirements; (iii) the duties and responsibilities; (iv) the
contribution to the Group; (v) the qualifications and (vi) the
experience, to ensure sufficient remuneration levels to attract
and retain high calibre personnel without paying excessively.

Details of emoluments of Directors and the Five highest paid
Individuals as set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the Year in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advices of the Company
Secretary, Mr. Mak Kai Fung. Mr. Mak Kai Fung has
confirmed that he received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the Year in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company has adopted a new Articles of Association
by way of a special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 23 June 2023. As up-to-date version of the
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there was no charge in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable the Shareholders and investors
to make the best investment decisions.

General meetings are valuable platform to allow the Board
to communicate with Shareholders and answer questions
regarding proposed resolutions. Individual resolutions
stipulated at general meetings for each substantial issue and
Board members are available to answer questions raised by
Shareholders.

The Board adopted a revised Shareholder’s communication
policy on 30 December 2022 aiming to provide the
Shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely
access to balanced and understandable information of the
Company. Information of the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders and investors as follows:

J Delivery of interim reports and annual reports to all
Shareholders and other interested parties;

e Announce interim results and annual results on both
the websites of Stock Exchange and the Company; and
issue and publication of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligation under the Listing Rules; and

* Inside Information is disclosed to the public by way of
announcement as required by the Listing Rules and
pursuant to Inside Information Provisions under Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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During the Year, the Board conducted a review of the
implementation and effectiveness of the policy as described
above. Having considered the available channels of
communication in place as detailed above, the Board is
satisfied that the policy has been properly implemented and is
effective.

Procedures for directing Shareholders” enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct enquiries to the Board at any time.
Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary
by mail to the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong at
Level 23, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by Shareholders

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
following the procedures set out below.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
for an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

If the requisition is in order, then the meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
Director, for election as a new Director, the Shareholder must
deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 23, 28
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact
information of the Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding,
the full name of the person proposed for election as a
Director, including the person’s biographical details as
required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to
be proposed). The Notice must also be accompanied by a
letter of consent (the “Consent Letter”) signed by the person
proposed to be elected on his/her willingness to be elected as
a Director.

The period for lodgement of the Notice and the Consent
Letter will commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice by the Company of the general
meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will forward the
relevant documents to the Nomination Committee and the
Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting proposing such person to be elected as a
Director.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group and believe these statements give a true and fair view
of the Group’s affairs and its results. The Directors are also
responsible for the timely publication of financial statements
of the Group and to ensure they are prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable financial
reporting standards. The Directors are also committed
to make appropriate announcements in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules, and to disclose all
information necessary for Shareholders to assess the financial
performance and other aspects of the Company.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief and having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cause significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Prism Hong Kong Limited was appointed as the external
auditor of the Company for the Year and will continue as
such until the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year have been audited by Prism Hong Kong Limited. The
auditors’ responsibilities for the Group’s financial statements
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for evaluating, including
but not limited to, their independence and objectivity of the
external auditor of the Company. During the Year, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the independence of the external
auditor and approve the engagement of the external auditor
to perform statutory audit and approved their fees and
re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

The fees of the external auditor of the Company for audit and
non-audit services for the Year amounted to HK$0.7 million
and nil respectively.

These was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and re-appointment of Prism
Hong Kong Limited as the external auditor during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and to review
its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. The internal
control systems are designed to meet the Group's particular
needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature
can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to
eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s objectives.
Practicable and effective control systems and procedures
have been implemented by the Group to enhance internal
control in an ongoing basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness and
the adequacy of such systems at least annually.
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During the Year, the Directors are responsible for the overall
risk management functions. During the Year, given the
current operation of the Group, no internal audit department
for an internal audit function has been set up within the
Group. In order to comply with Code Provision D.2.5 of
the CG Code, the Board has retained an external advisor
with a view to facilitating adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs, financial
reporting functions, ESG performance and reporting, Listing
Rules compliance and quality of internal control review to
satisfy the Group’s internal audit function as required by the
Stock Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual
reviews on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the Year. The
Audit Committee members, together with the management,
have reviewed, considered and discussed all the findings and
recommendations of the review, and the Audit Committee is
satisfied that the risk management system and the internal
control system of the Group was effective and adequate
during the Year. Pursuant to the system improvement
recommendations made by the external advisor, the Group
will continue to improve its internal management and control
systems.

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements and the “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” section
contained in the Report of the Directors in this annual report.

The Company has developed its code of conduct which
provides a general guideline to the Company’s Directors and
relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the annual internal
control review conducted by external advisor to assist the
Group, and reviews of the internal audit function performed
by executive management, respective Board committees and
the Board, the Audit Committee and the Board are of the
view that the Group has maintained sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems during the Year.
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The management and various departments conducted periodic
self-assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control
policies and procedures. During the Year, management of
the Company had conducted an internal control review on
the systems of internal control which is in compliance with
the CG Code for the wine trading business and follow up the
highlighted areas in the previous years to ensure compliance
with procedures laid down by the Company and the Group.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management are effective and there are no
irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that
suggest there is no material deficiency in the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management system.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material
information about the Group. The Group has in place a
policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out
the procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information. Such policy provides
guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirements. It also includes appropriate internal control
and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information.

Key procedures in place include:

J define the requirements of periodic financial and
operational reporting to the Board and Company
Secretary to enable them to assess inside information
and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

J controls the access to inside information by employees
and safeguarding the
confidentiality of the inside information before it is
properly disclosed to public;

on a need-to-know basis,

J procedures of communicating with the Group’s
stakeholders, including shareholders, investors, analysts,
etc. in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has put in place whistleblowing policy which
applies to all the directors, employees and those who deal
with the Company p (including but not limited to investors,
customers and suppliers etc.). The policy is designed
to provide the employees and any external parties with
confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the Group
the actual or possible improprieties in operation, corporate
financial reporting, internal control or other areas.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received
under the whistleblowing policy are reported to the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The identity of the whistle-blower
and all the concerns or irregularities raised will be treated
with confidence and every effort will be made to ensure that
confidentiality is maintained throughout the process. The
Company is also committed to ensuring the protection of the
whistle-blower against detrimental or unfair treatment.

The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company is committed to achieving the highest
standards of integrity and ethical behavior in conducting
its business. The anti-corruption policy forms an integral
part of the Company’s corporate governance framework.
The anti-corruption policy sets out the specific behavioral
guidelines that the Group’s personnel and business partners
must follow to combat corruption. The anti-corruption policy
is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to align with
the applicable laws and regulations as well as the industry
best practices. In line with this commitment and to ensure
transparency in the Group’'s practices, the Anti-corruption
Policy has been prepared as a guide to all Group employees
and third parties dealing with the Group.

On behalf of the Board
OCl International Holdings Limited

Jiao Shuge
Executive Director (Chairman)

28 March 2025
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EShSHREBRASEHEN

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiao Shuge (Alias Jiao Zhen), aged 59, is the executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (the “Chairman”).
He was also the non-executive Director from 8 March 2021 to
18 May 2023 and the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ") from 18 May 2023 to 14 December 2023. Mr.
Jiao received a Master degree in Engineering from the No. 2
Research Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(fn 2= fn K T % &6 2 — #f %t ) and a Bachelor degree in
Mathematics from Shandong University (1L 3 A £).

Mr. Jiao is currently a director and chief executive officer of
CDH China Management Company Limited, a non-executive
director of WH Group Limited (stock code: 288.HK) and
Mabpharm Limited (stock code: 2181.HK). Mr. Jiao has a
broad range of experience serving as director of various
listed companies. Mr. Jiao was a non-executive director
from February 2004 to April 2012 and as an independent
non-executive director from April 2012 to December 2021 of
China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (stock code: 2319.
HK), and an independent non-executive of China Southern
Airlines Company Limited (stock code: 1055.HK) from June
2015 to April 2021, all of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Jiao also served as a director of Henan
Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd. (J7] 7 £ [& &
&R ) AR A ) (stock code: 000895.5Z) from August
2012 to August 2021, a director of Hainan Poly Pharm Co.
Ltd. (B & M R E M A R 2 7)) (stock code: 300630.
SZ) since June 2015 and was a director of Joyoung Company
Limited (SLF5 X D B BR 2 7)) (stock code: 002242.5Z) from
September 2007 to April 2020, all of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Jiao is also the chairman and
an executive director of Ningbo Akin Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd (B X T 8R E F B K R H R 2 A) since March
2016, a company listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations. He served as the vice general manager of the
direct investment department of China International Capital
Corporation Ltd. (7 B4 8 AR AT from December
1995 to August 2002.
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Mr. Tang Nanjun, aged 59, is the executive Director and the
CEO.

He graduated from the Department of Mechanical
Engineering at Beijing Institute of Technology in 1988,
obtaining a Bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Currently, Mr. Tang is the chairman of the board of directors
of Newsky Technology (Holdings) Limited, which is mainly
a software service provider in People’s Republic of China
("PRC™), providing software development services, technical
services, information technology consulting and planning
services and maintenance-related services to domestic banks
and financial institutions in PRC.

Mr. Tang has over 28 years' of extensive experience as
senior management in various companies. He served various
positions, including the chairman of the board of directors
and the director of Newsky Investment (Holdings) Limited,
from 1996 to 2009 and from 2009 to 2017 respectively;
the general manager and the chairman of the board of
directors of Xiamen Newsky Software Co., Ltd., the shares
of which were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600687), from 2000 to 2001 and from 2000 to 2002
respectively; the chairman and secretary of the board of
directors of Powerise Information Technology Co., Ltd., the
shares of which were listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 000787), from 2006 to 2007 and in 2006
respectively; the director of Xinzhi Technology Co., Ltd.* (37
B R D AR A7) (currently known as Deluxe Family
Co., Ltd.), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600503) from 2005 to 2006;
and the chairman of the board of directors, executive
director, general manager and manager of Beijing Newsky
Hechuang Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (it = #1 F & &l
= B ir A R A A]) from 2011 to 2018.

*  For identification purpose only
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guangze, aged 47, is the non-executive Director.
He was also the executive Director from March 2021 to May
2023 and the CEO from December 2020 to May 2023. He is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wu obtained a Master of Science degree from the
University of Reading in 2001 and a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Hertfordshire in 2000. Mr.
Wu is the managing partner of China Consumer Capital
Partners Limited ("CCC") since 2010. He has over 14 years
of experience in international investment banking and
private equity investment. He is familiar with regulations in
China and international capital market and well-versed in
the consumer and retail sectors in China with strong fund
operating experience. As the managing partner of CCC,
Mr. Wu is experienced in formulation of funds, merger and
acquisition, and follow by the execution of his strategic plans,
the corporate value are enhanced. Projects led by Mr. Wu
include Wumart Stores, Dmall, B&Q China, NP Entertainment,
YL Entertainment & Sports, Linekong Interactive, Womai
COFOC, C.banner, Benlai, Mixblu, Etonkids, etc. Prior to
joining CCC, he was a vice president of Deutsche Bank
Hong Kong’s Investment Banking Department from 2006 to
2009 when he was a key member of the consumer industry
group and led IPOs of several well-known consumer goods
companies.

Mr. Wu was a non-executive director of C.banner
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028.HK), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Zhao Li, aged 39, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 29 April 2024. He has a diverse academic
background and over 15 years of experience in investment
banking. Mr. Zhao graduated from the University of
Melbourne in Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree,
and later obtained a Master’s degree in Commercial Law from
Monash University in Australia. Additionally, he is a Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) certificate holder in the United States.

Currently, Mr. Zhao serves as the Vice Chairman of the
Executive Committee of Shanghai Oriental Securities
Capital Investment Co., Ltd. (at the level of Deputy General
Manager) and chairman of Taomee Holdings Limited,
a former NYSE-listed company (NYSE: TAOM). He has
extensive experience in capital markets, fund investment,
equity financing, and corporate management. Mr. Zhao has
previously worked at Orient Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code:
3958), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and its
subsidiary, Citi Orient Securities Co., Ltd.. He has also served
as a director of a subsidiary of Kintor Pharmaceutical Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9939).

In addition, Mr. Zhao is a member of the 13th Committee
of the Shanghai Youth Federation, vice chairman of the 4th
Committee of the Huangpu District Youth Federation in
Shanghai, a director of the 1st Committee of the Huangpu
District Young Entrepreneurs Association, and a director of
the Huangpu District Youth Innovation and Entrepreneurship
Federation. Mr. Zhao's multiple positions demonstrate his
wide involvement and contributions to society and the
industry.
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Ms. Guo Ting Ting, aged 35, is the non-executive Director.
She is the founder and the chief executive officer of Hello
Moai, Inc., a marketplace and technology platform providing
personalized support during pregnancy and postpartum.
She received both Bachelor of Arts and Masters of Business
Administration from Columbia University.

Ms. Guo is an accomplished entrepreneur and executive
with extensive experience across various sectors. Prior to her
current role, Ms. Guo served in various senior positions in
different companies, including but not limited to, the general
manager and head of anywhere at MiniLuxe, Inc., the general
manager at Bird Global, Inc.,
Penguin Pay LLC, and the co-Founder of Emmy Co.

the head of operations at

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan, aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in May 2017. He is a
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company
(the "Nomination Committee”) and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”).
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Mr. Tso graduated from University of Cambridge with a
Bachelor and a Master degree in Land Economy, majoring
in real estate finance and property law. Mr. Tso is the
founder of the China Mini Storage Limited (“CMS"). Prior
to establishing CMS, based in Beijing, Mr. Tso worked as
an investment director of the Everbright Ashmore China
Real Estate Fund, a joint venture real estate private equity
platform sponsored by China Everbright Limited (stock code:
0165), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and Ashmore Group PLC (LSE stock code: ASHM).
Previously, based in Hong Kong, Mr. Tso also worked at
Merrill Lynch’s Global Commercial Real Estate team where
he was principally involved in the firm’s principal investing
activities in Asian real estate. He also worked at the HSBC's
Global Capital Markets — ABS & Structured Bonds Team
where he was principally involved in the bank’s securitisation
business. As for community services, Mr. Tso has been invited
to become the 11th session member of the China People’s
Political Consultative Conference Beijing Haidian District, the
10th, 11th and 12th session member of the Beijing Youth
Federation, the 3rd and 4th session member of the Beijing
Overseas Friendship Association Youth Committee, the
8th session council member of the Beijing Haidian District
Overseas Friendship Association, the Innovation Committee
Vice Chairman and a council member of the HK Professionals
(Beijing) Association, and an executive member of the Hong
Kong Internet Professional Association (iProA).

Mr. Tso was an independent non-executive director of the
following companies, Da Sen Holdings Group Limited (stock
code: 1580), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, and Shi Shi Services Limited (Formerly known as
Hang Sheng Holdings Limited and Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited) (stock code: 8181).
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Mr. Li Xindan, aged 59, is appointed an independent
non-executive Director in December 2020. He is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Li holds a PhD in Finance, Professor, Doctoral Supervisor,
and Special Allowance Expert of the State Council. He was
a professor of School of Economics and Management of
Southeast University and Dean of the School of Engineering
and Management of Nanjing University. He is currently
the Dean of the New Finance Research Institute of Nanjing
University, the Deputy Director of the Humanities and
Social Sciences Academic Committee of Nanjing University,
the Director of the Academic Committee of the School of
Engineering Management and the Director of the Financial
Engineering Research Centre of Nanjing University. Mr. Li is
also the Director of the Expert Committee of Evaluation of
Science and Technology Innovation Board System, a member
of SSE Index Committee, Standing Director of the China
Finance Academy, the chairman of Jiangsu Capital Market
Research Association, and the vice chairman of Jiangsu
Association of Science and Technology Innovation.

Mr. Li is currently served as an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd (stock code: 600919. SH),
Soochow Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601555.SH) and
Nanjing Securities Co. Ltd. (stock code: 601990.5H), These
three companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of
C.banner International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1028),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
an independent non-executive director of Yoozoo Games
Co., Ltd (stock code: 002174.5Z) a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive
director of Holly Futures Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3678) a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Lo Wing Yan William, aged 64, is appointed an
independent non-executive Director in July 2021. He is also
a chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Dr. Lo
is an experienced executive in the TMT (technology, media
and telecommunications) and the consumer sectors. He has
held senior positions in the past in China Unicom, Hongkong
Telecom, Citibank HK, I.T Limited and South China Media
Group. Dr. Lo graduated from Cambridge University with
a M.Phil. Degree in Pharmacology and a Ph.D. degree in
Molecular Neuroscience in the 80’s. He started his career in
McKinsey & Company Inc. as a management consultant.

Dr. Lo currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of a number of public companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, including an independent
non-executive director of Television Broadcasts Ltd (Stock
code: 511), and CSI Properties Limited (Stock code: 497). Dr.
Lo is also an independent director of Regencell Bioscience
Holdings Limited (Stock code: RGC) which is listed on the
NASDAQ.

Dr. Lo also served as an independent non-executive director
for following companies, including SITC Int’'l Holding
Company Limited (Stock code: 1308) from September 2010
to October 2020, Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 0933) from June 2019 to December 2020, Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Ltd (Stock code: 0404) from June
2018 to September 2019, Ronshine China Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 3301) from January 2016 to June 2019, South
Shore Holdings Limited (Stock code: 577) from June 2019
to November 2022, Oshidori International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 622) from June 2021 to July 2023 and Jingrui
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1862) from October 2013 to
December 2024. Dr. Lo was the chairman in SMI Holdings
Group Limited (Stock code: 0198) from January 2019 to April
2019. Dr. Lo was also an independent non-executive director
of Nam Tai Property Inc. (Stock code: BTP) from July 2003
to November 2021, which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Dr. Lo is the founding governor of ISF Academy
as well as the Chairman of Charles K. Kao Foundation for
Alzheimer’s Disease and Junior Achievement HK.
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Mr. Chong Ka Yee, aged 41,was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2023. He is also
a chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chong is graduated from The University of Melbourne in
Australia with a Bachelor degree in Commerce in 2004 and
he is currently a member of CPA Australia and a CFA Charter
Holder. He has been in the investment banking industry for
more than 15 years. Mr. Chong has extensive experience in
the area in financial management, capital markets, corporate
finance and corporate management through working in listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chong was the chief executive officer of CSFG
International Securities Limited, a subsidiary of China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group (the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412)) and he was
the group executive vice president of Mason Group Holdings
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 273)) and the chief executive officer of Mason
Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mason
Group Holdings Limited. Mr. Chong was also the senior vice
president of leveraged and acquisition finance department
of Haitong International Securities Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong International Securities
Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 665)).

Mr. Chong was a non-executive director of companies listed
on the Stock Exchange including Million Stars Holding Limited
(Stock code: 8093) and Pak Tak International Limited (Stock
code: 2668).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zheng Xiaosu is the chief operating officer of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Zheng holds a Bachelor degree in Mathematics,
Accounting and Financial Management from Loughborough
University in the United Kingdom. Ms. Zheng i s well
experienced in merger and acquisition, direct investment,
investment banking and asset management in Hong Kong.

Ms. Zheng served as the non-executive Director from February
2017 to March 2023. She was also the managing director and
the director of CCBI Investment Limited from February 2021
to March 2023 and CCB International Asset Management
Limited from November 2008 to January 2021, both of
which are ultimately controlled by China Construction Bank
Corporation, which is listed on the Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mak Kai Fung was appointed as the Company Secretary,
the Authorised Representative and the Process Agent in
November 2023. Mr. Mak is an associate member of both
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Mak holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws from Manchester
Metropolitan University and a degree of Master of Corporate
Governance from Open University of Hong Kong (currently
known as Hong Kong Metropolitan University) and he has
over eight years of experience in corporate secretarial field.
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OClI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
“We"” and “Our”, and together with its subsidiaries,
hereinafter referred to as our “Group”) hereby presents this
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report (the
“ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2024 (“Year
2024", the "Reporting Period”). The ESG Report summarizes
our initiatives, strategies and objectives relating to ESG issues,
describes our vision and commitment to the fulfilment of our
corporate social responsibilities, and provides an overview on
our Group's performance, management policies, mechanisms,
and measures in relation to the environmental and social
related matters.

OBJECTIVES

To comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix C2
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Reporting Guide”) of the Main Board Listing Rules
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"HKEx"), we have made relevant disclosures relating to the
material ESG issues identified in this ESG Report pursuant
to the Mandatory Disclosure Requirements and “Comply or
explain” Provisions, include General Disclosure requirements
and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of the ESG Reporting
Guide. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
considers that our Group has complied with the requirements
and provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
We applied the following reporting principles in the
preparation of this ESG Report:

Materiality

We engage with our stakeholders to identify and assess ESG
issues that matter most from their perspectives. We assess the
materiality of these ESG issues based on the corresponding
risks posed on the sustainability on our business. For further
details, please refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative

Where applicable, we provided information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools, and
source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of
emissions/energy consumption disclosed in the respective
sections in this ESG Report.
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Balance

We avoided intentional selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that might inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment to provide an unbiased picture of our performance.

Consistency

We applied consistent methodologies as those adopted
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year 2023") for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

REPORTING SCOPE

During Year 2024, our Group was principally engaged in
asset management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, securities trading and investments, trading
of wines and other beverages. The ESG Report discloses our
Group's performance on environmental and social aspects of
the entire of our Group’s businesses.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

We recognise our corporate social responsibility (“CSR")
to society and the importance of ESG to the corporate
sustainable development. Consequently, we integrate ESG
concepts into our corporate culture and daily operations
where practicable whilst balancing the cost of such
integration against tangible returns. The Board oversees
ESG and review the materiality of ESG issues, practices and
assume the overall responsibilities. Meetings will be held at
least annually and constant review will be conducted at least
annually in coming years to monitor and oversee the progress
against goals and targets for addressing climate-related
issues. ESG issues are identified and evaluated for material
risks posed to our Group. Once identified, the Board will set
up the ESG management measures and approach to react
and mitigate the risks from these material ESG-related issues.
Our management would review the ESG performance of our
Group as well as gathering feedback from the employees
regarding our Group's ESG visions and strategies then report
the results to the Board. As for our Group’s environmental
performance, including its impact to the surroundings will
be reported to the Board at least annually and performance
at social aspects will be reported at least annually in regular
meetings with the Board.
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Undoubtedly, there will be challenges in the ever-changing
business landscape, yet we are determined to do our part in
the ESG journey to bring a positive impact to the community.
We are committed to maintaining and upholding a high
standard of governance over our ESG journey, with a view to
safeguarding the interests of our shareholders, customers,
employees and other stakeholders.

APPROACH AND STRATEGY

ESG forms a crucial part of the risk management and internal
control systems of our Group, the Board is responsible for
overseeing our ESG strategy and reporting, and overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems to address the ESG-related issues. The ESG related
responsibilities have been further delegated from the Board
to the management and the functional department. Through
the adoption of the top-down management approach,
our Group will be committed to promoting ecological and
environmental protection, thus proving the effectiveness of
our ESG management approach.

We established following teams led by the Board to determine
and manage ESG issues, their responsibilities are shown as
follows:

The Board
o Has overall responsibility for overseeing and approving
our ESG policies, strategies and reporting;

J Adopts top-down management approach in managing
ESG issues;

] Delegates the ESG-related responsibilities to the Audit
Committee and Senior Management;

o Sets up ESG management approach and strategy;

J Ensures appropriate ESG-related goals and targets has
been set up;

J Conducts continuous review of ESG performance and
the progress on achievement of ESG-related goals and
targets; and

o Reviews and approves ESG report.
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Audit Committee

Identifies, evaluates and determines ESG related risks
through risk-assessment;

Ensures appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems related to ESG matters; and

Reports to the Board on ESG related matters and issues
identified.

Senior Management

Designs, implements and monitors the risk management
and internal control systems related to ESG matters;

Ensures compliance with legal requirements related to
ESG matters;

Develops and supervises the implementation of ESG
policies and measures;

Sets up and reviews the achievement of ESG-related
goals and targets as well as objectives;

Monitors the progress and performance of ESG
initiatives;
Identifies key stakeholders and prioritizes their ESG

Concerns;

Reports to the Board on ESG work (including the
progress of ESG-related goals and targets); and

Prepares and submits the ESG Report to the Board for
approval.

Departments and Business Units

Implement the ESG objectives, policies and measures;

Report to the management on ESG work and assists
them for preparing ESG report; and

Collect feedback and ESG concerns from stakeholders.
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In order to implement our Group’s sustainable development
philosophy, our strategy is to comply with all relevant laws
and regulations applicable to our scope of business and to
continuously improve our environmental management of
every aspect towards the industry best practice. We also pay
close attention to stakeholders’ demands and established a
diversified communication channel to collect and response
to their concerns. Through the well-defined governance
structure and communication channels, we could identify and
prioritize key ESG related-issues that are closely related to
our business during the materiality assessment process and
to ensure that the ESG strategy is closely aligned with our
overall business strategy.

CONTACT US

Our Group respects your view on this ESG Report. Should you
have any opinions or suggestions, you are welcome to share
your opinion by mail to our Group's principal office at Level
23, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong, China.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Our Group recognises the expectation and feedback from our
stakeholders, which are vital for sustainable development of
our Group. During Year 2024, our Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our Group’s business. Key
stakeholders include shareholders and investors, government
and regulatory authorities, customers, suppliers, employees
and communities. Our Group continued to understand
the key ESG concerns of our key stakeholders through
various communication channels and platforms, such as
communication meetings and corporate website etc., to
promote and adjust the strategy of sustainable development.
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The following table shows the communication channels and
management response to the stakeholders’ expectation and

concerns:

Stakeholders
HHE
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Expectations and Concerns

HMERBEIER

RIE - HEKREGHRS

TREJNEHNERERBIETENBEAR
BNMEEREMEE:

Communication Channels and
Management Responses
BERENEEERE

Internal key stakeholders
ABETEFHE

Employees

7l
0

External key stakeholders
SIBEEFDE

Government and regulatory
Authorities

BT R 85 B HAm X

e labour rights

e Career development

e Remunerations and benefits

e Occupational health and safety

e Respecting all employees and
ensuring fair treatment

o BT HEZ

o EEHE

o HBMBA

s BERELLE

s BEMBEE HMRATHS

e Compliance with laws and
regulations

e Support local economic growth

e Fulfill tax obligation

o BIERNER
s XFM KRB R
s BTIMBEME

e Regular management
communications and performance
review

e Employee communication meetings

e Employee activity, trainings and
voluntary activities

e Email

e Supporting career growth and
providing internal training

e Pay attention to occupational health
and safety

e Establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration scheme

e FHIHEEIRERBREXRTM

s RERREHE

s EEIES B REREEE

o FIE

s XHEEBERR RHAIME
Ell

e TERERELL R

s BYRNTF EBMARFHOFH
B 58 %

e Regulate compliance with local laws
and regulations

e Regular information reporting

e Pay tax on time, and in return
contributing to society

s EEEBTEMEARZLERNBAR

s THEHMW®SE

s AP UALDBELS
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Shareholders and investors

BRRREEE

Customers

Suppliers

HIE

Communities

At &

Return on investment
Corporate governance
Compliant operation
Information transparency
&ﬁ@ﬁ

j = L\
BREE
BREBEHE

Outstanding products and services
Identifying clients’ needs and
improving product and service
quality

Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests

BEEmERE

THREFFE REXEEMN
RBE=
EEXFALE - REEFPMA

Stable demand

Good relationship with the
Company

Corporate reputation

Fair competition/equal rivalry
FRIBE

BN AR R 0T R R
TrRES

PREBRFE FTERF

Environmental protection
Community contribution
Economic development

RERE
M Em A R

wEE R

2024 Annual Report

Annual general meeting and other
general meetings

Annual and interim report
Announcements and circulars
BRERBERGRAEMKRRAE
FRERPHERS

NE KRB K

Customer satisfaction surveys and
feedback form

Customer service hotline and email
Company website

Phone

Mailbox

Social media platforms
EFmEERAEMBERR
BEF RS 2R & B

NS E R

S

A8

R A

Supplier meeting and events
Establish and maintain strong and
long-term relationship with suppliers
Engagement and cooperation

Select suppliers with due care
HEBSZENED
HEEREYRRERBE AR
B 8 1%

2HEREE

BRAEmEMER

ESG reports

Announcements

Company website

Raising awareness of environmental
protection and helping the needy,
nurturing virtue and values
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Materiality assessment was conducted in accordance with
the expectation and feedback from our key stakeholders.
Based on our assessment, the management of our Group
prioritises compliance with laws and regulations, economic
performance, product responsibility, employee right, and
energy consumption and efficiency as material aspects of our
long-term sustainability. Effective internal control systems
on these aspects are reinforced with the aim of enhancing
efficiency of operations and generating the environmental
and social benefits to our stakeholders.

We adopted the following process to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues:

Step 1: identify the ESG-related issues

o The issues are identified based on the disclosure
requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix
C2 to the Listing Rules, the business characteristics of
our Group and the ESG reports of the industry peers

Step 2: prioritise the ESG-related issues
J The management collects feedback from stakeholders in
daily operation

o The management takes into account the materiality to
stakeholders and materiality to business in prioritising
the issues

Step 3: determine material ESG-related issues
e The issues with higher priority were identified as
material issues
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High

Materiality matrix

2 EEMERE
14. Customers privacy protection 21. Compliance with laws
15. Customers satisfaction REZFILRE _and regulatiqns
EEBEE 20. Economic performance BYERRIER
BBRE L]
16. Anti-corruption and anti-fraud 6. Envi | ~0
RESRRER ° 19. Attention to community of employees ° 7. Employee right
0 ry BEHE ETRRER EEES
o]
% 4 ) o \. @ | 13. Product responsibility
< oy 18. Community contribution o EREE
< Bl == m
i HEEE - )
S 17. Quallflcﬁtlons and professional conduct
& ° BEREERT
o 3 o 3. Use of resources
& EREA 12. Suppliers management
§ bl 8. Remunerations and benefits {HpER =
5 HERER ®
g 1. Emission | @
= 11. Prevention of child [ ) B
Y and forced labour ———— : ;
9.0 ti t ki
[ ] BLETR@AST c(l%aggﬁ;l?gé;%piag satety 4. Energy consumption and efficiency
RO AE R Mad
2. Waste management
BRNER
[ ]
° 5. Impact of climate change
10. Employee training and development REBHTE
BIEIIRERE
Low Importance to the Group Hiﬁgh
15 HEMMEERNE e

The top five material ESG-related issues are shown as follows: A KHERF -HE@REREBEHNEXZEET

ESG issues
R HEREARE

Zg

Reasons of why they are material

HERZMWEREHRE

1 Compliance with laws
and regulations

1. BTERERER

2 Economic performance

2. g R IR

3 Employee rights

3. 8 T # 7

Compliance to ensures that businesses operate in an environmentally responsible
manner and demonstrates our commitment to responsible business practices, fair
treatment to our employees, and the well-being of customers and communities.
BRPEANBERFEAENTAEGREE YRARMETXRENNEE -
HETITHWAFFBEBUNEREP ML R AR -

Economic performance is closely correlated to value creation for shareholders and
stakeholders. Sustainable returns on investment can attract and retain investors.
KEXRRERRERFHEREBELESHBEA AIRKEBENKE B RAK
SIRBEBEREE -

Employee rights encompass equal opportunities, non-discrimination, and free
from harassment or abuse to create respectful work environment that values the
well-being and dignity of all employees.
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Reasons of why they are material

HEEMNER

4 Product responsibility
4. EmERE

5 Environmental awareness
of employees

5. B TIRRE®

Our Group confirmed during the Reporting Period that it
had set up suitable and efficient internal control systems
and management policies for ESG matters, and that the
information included in this ESG Report complies with the
guidelines set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide.

OUR GOAL

While developing its business, we are committed to
improving its business operation management. We also set
environmental and social goals for the sustainability of our

Product responsibility ensures our Group prioritize the safety and well-being of
our customers.
EmBEERRIEESEFNRERBIRESAL -

Environmental awareness among employees is a significant factor in reducing
our environmental footprint and supporting sustainability initiatives. Informed
employees can help identify and implement practices that minimize negative
environmental impacts.
BEINRREBRALBMBEZECTAIXFAFBEERMENEEZEAER -
EHRRABNEIRGHIFNTERREBEAREZENTEE -
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business and our goals are shown as follows:

] While promoting the steady growth of our business, our e

EREXBREEENRE  NEEK
HEMRREREEAR/EEKELNZL

Group regards social and environmental responsibility as
one of the core values in its business operations;

Key environmental concern of our Group is energy
consumption and corresponding GHG emissions during
the provision of securities trading and investments, asset
management, investment and financial advisory services
and wine trading businesses;

The goal/target of our Group related to environmental
issues is to maintain stable energy efficiency;

Key social concern of our Group is safety and well-being
of employees as they are the foundation of business
growth;

The goal/target of our Group related to social issues
is to maintain safe working environment and maintain
close relationship with employees:
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Our management teams regularly update the Board on the
achievement of KPI target which include the environmental
and the social goals. The management evaluates the ESG
performance through regular reports provided by each
department or business units and reports the evaluated
results to the Board. The Board reviews the achievement of
objectives and reviews the progress and effectiveness of the
related governance matters. Meanwhile, the Board continues
to monitor the risks posed to our Group from these material
ESG related-issues. As the business continues to develop,
the Board has been paying attention to new ESG-related
issues and will continue to oversee ESG-related work to keep
abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements of HKEx.

We are committed to undertake ESG responsibilities and
improving our ESG performance by upholding good corporate
governance standards, implementing environmentally friendly
measures, responding to stakeholders’ expectation with
practical actions and promoting the sustainable development
of our Group.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 Emissions

Despite that our operation does not produce mass emissions
or impose significant negative impact to the environment,
our Group adopted and implemented relevant environmental
policies and is committed to minimize negative environmental
impacts through managing our business practice, carbon
footprint reduction and efficient resources usage. Hence,
our Group has established relevant emissions reduction
and energy saving initiatives to manage the emissions and
maintain green operations.
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Our Group comply with the following significant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection:

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap 311)

o Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

J Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

] Environmental Protection law of the People’s Republic of
China

] Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control law of the
People’s Republic of China

During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with environmental related laws
and regulations in relation to air and GHG emissions, water
and land discharge, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste that would have significant impact on
our Group.

Air Emissions

Our Group did not own any vehicles, and we expect air
pollutants generated were insignificant during the Reporting
Period, hence, no related targets have been set.

GHG Emissions

The primary sources of GHG emissions of our Group
was energy indirect GHG emissions (scope 2) from the
consumption of purchased electricity, and other indirect GHG
emissions from employees’ business trip (Scope 3). Since we
did not own any vehicles, our Group does not have direct
GHG emission (scope 1). Our Group advocate green office to
reduce negative impact impose to the environment, we target
to gradually reduce the GHG emissions and we promote a
culture of energy saving culture in workplace with practices
mentioned below during the Reporting Period. For the year
ending 31 December 2024 (Year 2024), our Group target to
participate at least one environment campaign.
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Our Group actively adopts the following energy management
and environment protection measures to achieve the target,
which are described below:

o For energy-saving and environment protection measures,
which are described in the section headed “Energy
Management” in aspect A2 Use of resources; and

o Reduce the frequency of business trips, encourage our
staff to utilize electronic communication channels, such
as conference call to reduce carbon emissions generated
during transportation.

2024 Annual Report
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Set forth below our Group’s GHG emissions performance. TXEIAEEREERBHMRKREA -
Emissions
EBNESR
Year 2024 Year 2023

Indicator" EE Unit “E-NEE CZT-=FE
Energy indirect GHG emissions EREZEAERE

(Scope 2) (& E2)

— Purchased electricity -BEE tC0O,e —EtREE 16.97 18.37
Other indirect GHG emissions HMERERE

(Scope 3) HEH(EE3)

- Business air travel - FALRBILE 10 “alkixES 7.59 2.63
Total GHG emission BRERBHENAE tCOe “aliEE 24.56 21.00
Total GHG emissions intensity? tCOefemployee  —&fiREE/

EE 0.79 0.81
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Notes:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “How to prepare
an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the HKEx, and Sustainability Report 2023 published
by Hong Kong Electric Investments Limited.

2. As at 31 December 2024, our Group had a total of 31 (2023: 26)
employees. The data is also used for calculating other intensity
data.

As our business expands across different regions, our
Group involved more business travel to explore business
opportunities, which is reflected in the increase in emissions
from business air travel to 7.59 tCO,e in 2024 (2023: 2.63
tCO,e). Meanwhile, we achieved a decrease in electricity
consumption in office as a result of implementing energy
conservation measures, reducing emissions from purchased
electricity. Despite the increase in total GHG emissions, our
Group recorded a decrease in the emissions intensity of total
GHG emissions in 2024, primarily due to improved energy
efficiency per capita as our workforce expanded from 26 to
31 employees.

Our Group endeavors to improve energy efficiency and
reduce energy consumption by adopting energy management
initiatives in the Section “Use of resources” in this ESG
Report.

Waste Water Discharge

Our Group’s operations only produce domestic waste water
and do not generate industrial waste water. As the property
management company entirely controls water supply and
discharge, our Group cannot obtain water consumption
and discharge data from the management office. Therefore,
our Group cannot provide data on water consumption
and discharge. However, we believe that the domestic
waste water discharge amount of our Group is normal and
reasonable.

RIE - HEKREGHRS

Bt & -

1. REABYRBEEBEUA-_SLLBREEEY LR
EBEEETRR)E LR S A3 M e ) 2 &
RE e hBOBRE-WHE - REFRER
EERERESDREEENREFR AR EMD
(CE_=ZFUHBEBRBE) -

= : B
TR CZF26R)EE-ZREBETARN
Hih = 8% -

—

%
.
Ean

BERMANEXETRABERE A£EZR
HELEHEERARAAE ERBEEZZ
T FRAREEENBEREELMETSIZ
atmMEE(ZE=ZF:263-4A1LtKE
B) R AREMRAHEREE RMERH
RERBERD HMBREBEEENAFER-
EEBREREHMAEE N EAEER -
T NFHBSAERENAEEENAEN
TR - FEZARBEMHNEES AZH26AE
META BHRAHERRAEBEHANRE -

=~

AEEEBERDNARE HENRERREIE
REMR| —HMEMEBRER IO RESEE
R 2 a5 3R A BE TR OH #E e

JBE ok BE K
AEBENEEEELAEEREK XEBELAT
EEK- ARYEEERA T EHHEKE
Bk REBEZIEEERESBKEHER
ZE-At AEBEZRERAEERKER
BREEE-AM BMARSEAEEHLEE
BERKEREBESTNARE-

77



78

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2024 Annual Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HEKREGBHRS

Waste Management

As our Group is a financial services provider with wine trading
business segment, there is no significant environmental
issue was noted and no hazardous waste was generated
in the business activities and therefore no relevant targets
have been set. As a responsible company, our Group will
engage qualified chemical waste collector to handle in case
if any hazardous waste generated to comply with relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

The non-hazardous wastes generated by our Group were
mainly office paper, which were insignificant and had little
impact on the environment. To reduce the environment
impact, from Year 2024 onwards, our implemented measures
to reduce the amount of paper waste, and established
relevant policies to handle any non-hazardous waste
generated, which is Principles of reducing, reuse, and recycle
are applied as follow.

o Recommend double-sided paper use;
o Set defaults to double sided printing;

e Adopt electronic communications and filing to reduce
the use of paper; and

] Appoint certified third-party companies to recycle paper
generated within our operation.

We placed effort to minimize the environmental impact
resulting from non-hazardous wastes from our business
operation, our Group’s total non-hazardous waste intensity
in Year 2024 maintained at a similar level compared with that
of Year 2023. We expect to host at least one waste reduction
campaigns in Year 2025 and target to increase the recycling
rate of the paper and raise the employee’s awareness on
waste reduction in the coming years.
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Set forth below our Group’s waste disposal performance:

RIE - HEKREGHRS

TXHIINIAEENEEYRERR

Consumption

EREEE
Non-hazardous Year 2024 Year 2023
waste category BEEZENEE  Unit By “E-NEE _—_T--FFE
Paper 1R Kg Tr 273 234
Total non-hazardous wastes BEEMEE Kg TR 273 234
Total non-hazardous wastes BEBEWHEE  Kg/employee Tr/ESE 8.81 9.00
intensity g
A2 Use of resources A2 &R £ A
We are dedicated to comply with and ongoing review ﬁz MBHBTREFEERTEBARE HER
of applicable regulations concerning ESG. Our goal is to EHERER - RMNERREZFARE M

maximize resource efficiency, minimize waste, and promote
energy conservation. Our Group did not own any vehicles,
and do not have direct energy consumption. Given the nature
of our business activities, the primary resources consumed by
our group include electricity, water, and paper, we commit
conserving resources, including electricity, water and paper
consumption during our operation and continuously improve
the efficiency of using resources.

Our Group has established relevant policies and procedures
to ensure efficient use of resources,
electricity, office consumables, etc, to minimize unnecessary
use of resources.

include water and

Our goal is to stable the electricity and paper consumption
level. We aim to reduce the use of resources and
corresponding carbon footprint. Environmental awareness
is also promoted among employees to drive their behavioral
changes. We have participated in at least one energy-saving
related campaigns in Year 2024. During Year 2024, energy
saving and environmental protection practice have been
adopted in the office area included by not limited to the

measures below:
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Energy Management

Promote a culture of energy consciousness and adoption
of resource conserving process, such as reminding
employees to switch off lights, unplug chargers;

Use energy-efficient settings on office equipment, such
as install occupancy sensors or timers to automatically
turn off lights in unoccupied areas;

Implement green measures on deploying energy
efficient equipment and enable power-saving settings
on computers, such as sleep mode or hibernation, to
reduce energy consumption during periods of inactivity;

Set up emissions targets based on previous year'’s
actual emissions and monitors targets monthly through
electricity consumption stated in electricity bills which
contribute to most of the carbon dioxide emissions;

Make the most of natural lighting by positioning
workstations near windows and using light-colored
surfaces to reflect and distribute natural light; and

Switch off lights and air-conditioning for rooms and
computers not in use and setting room temperature at
25.5°C.

During the Reporting Period, electricity consumption of our
Group increased slightly as compared with that of Year 2023,
primarily due to the increase in number of employees.

2024 Annual Report
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Set forth below our Group’s energy consumption
performance:

RIE - HEKREGHRS

TXHEINAEBEREEREERIR

Year 2024 Year 2023
Types of energy ERESE Unit Efy “E-NFEE _—T_=fFF
Indirect energy consumption AEERERE
- Purchased electricity -BEE MWh kR 27.35 27.02
Total energy consumption RREREE MWh KB 27.35 27.02
Total energy consumption intensity B¢ R BHEEHE  MWhlemployee KEE/EE 0.88 1.04
Water Management KEFEE

Water is supplied by the Water Suppliers Department, there
is no issue in sourcing water. Our Group's existing businesses
are not expected to pose a significant use of water and
hence has no material impact on the environment and no
related target has been set. As a responsible company, our
Group promote water conservation our employees during the
Reporting Period.

Use of Packaging Material

Our financial services segment does not provide any physical
product, and our wine trading business did not consume
significant amount of packaging materials for product
packaging since we did not involve in production process.

A3 The environment and natural resources

Due to the nature of the business, our Group does not have
any direct and significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources during our operations.
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Raising Environmental Awareness

Our Group integrates green and low-carbon development
into the corporate culture and encourages our employees
to participate in a green office. To promote environmental
awareness among its employees, our Group also issues a
guide for green practices to its employees via email.

When building and evaluate investment portfolios, our
management also consider various sources of pollution,
including water, noise and air. Such that environmentally
friendly entities would be considered as priority.
Environmental impact assessment is performed in order to
assess the environmental risk of our business activities if
necessary.

A4 Climate change

Our Group understands that climate change is a global issue
that affects everyone around the world. We are aware of the
impacts of climate change on the sustainable development
of our wine trading business operations, in particular delivery
and storage.

We carry out risk analysis to determine the negative
impacts of climate change on our operations, and whether
it will affect our Group and our Group's related mitigation
measures. We set parameters and collect information to
identify significant climate-related issues and mitigate their
impacts.

Physical Risks

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms,
rainstorms and typhoons, could lead to an increased
risk of power shortages, interrupt the supply chain and
damage our Group's assets, disrupting the operation of our
Group's offices. These events could also disrupt the work of
employees.
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According to the Code of Practice in Times of Typhoons an
Rainstorm Warnings and the Safety Guide for Working in
Inclement and Hot Weather published and revised by the
Labour Department, we have established with employees
the reasonable and practicable work arrangements under
tropical cyclone warnings, rainstorm warnings or extreme
conditions following super typhoons as well as other severe
weather, including getting to work, leaving work, returning
to work and working from home (if applicable). We have
consulted our employees and involved them in the process
of formulation of work arrangements and contingency
measures.

The work arrangements under severe weather will be
reviewed regularly and updated or revised appropriately
based on experience and the needs and actual conditions of
both employers and employees.

Transition Risks

Our Group anticipates that climate change will drive the
governments and regulatory authorities to introduce more
stringent environmental laws, regulations, and policies in
order to achieve global carbon neutrality. For instance, the
HKEx requires that listed companies enhance climate-related
disclosures in their ESG reports. Consequently, our Group
may face additional compliance costs to meet updated
regulations. Failing to comply with climate change
requirements could expose our Group to claims and litigation,
as well as damage its corporate reputation. To avoid slow
responses to climate-related trends, policies, and regulations,
our Group will closely monitor changes in relevant domestic
and international policies and regulations, as well as
industry trends. It will also enhance its capacity to address
climate-related issues and make timely adjustments.
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B. SOCIAL

B1 Employment

Employees are the most valuable assets of our Group, we
strive to attract and retain talents and reconcile economic
imperatives with well-beings, aiming at reinforcing
satisfaction, loyalty and commitment of human capital. We
aim to provide employees with a comfortable and healthy
working environment and ensure that their rights and
interests are protected. In order to enhance our governance in
human resources management, our Directors directly involved
in governing the recruitment, resignation, termination,
training, promotion, working hours, rest periods, discipline,
other benefits and welfare, we have formulated the human
resource management policy and updated regularly in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. We also
established a sound system of human resources management
covering various aspects of employment.

Employment Practices

During our recruitment process, employees have been hired
based on consideration of their experience, qualifications
and knowledge. All employees have entered into written
employment contracts prior to employment to ensure job
title, job duties, working hours, holidays, remuneration,
termination process and benefit are agreed.

The salary and benefit levels of our employees are reviewed
and adjusted annually based on the results of performance
evaluation. We established a compensation practice taking
into account the overall economic outlook, relevant external
compensation levels as well as the requirement of internal
fairness.

Remuneration and Benefits

A wide range of benefits including gift voucher or cash
coupon for celebrating Chinese traditional festival, annual
health service, comprehensive medical and retirement
schemes are also provided to employees.

Our Group guarantees employees the right to rest and
vacation according to law. Employees enjoy legal holidays and
legal leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave, paid annual
leave and other leave entitlements.
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Communication Channels

Our Group places great importance on receiving feedback
from its employees and has implemented a responsive
platform to facilitate this process. Our Group has established
an efficient communication channel that enables staff to
express their work-related opinions or any other relevant
feedback regarding our Group. If applicable, department head
will take these suggestions into consideration and, if deemed
appropriate, initiate improvements through the human
resources department with the management’s approval.
Undoubtedly, these initiatives contribute to enhancing the
efficiency of our Group’s operations.

Equal Employment Opportunities

We committed that nobody should be treated less favorably
on his/her personal characteristics such as gender, pregnancy,
marital status, disability, family status, and race. Opportunities
for employment, training and career development are equally
opened to all qualified employees.

Our Group does not tolerate the dismissal of employees on
any unreasonable basis. Management will assess the cases
with the department head and human resources department
to ensure there are reasonable grounds and applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong have been complied before
action. We complied with all the relevant laws and regulation,
including the Employment Ordinance (Cap.57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and our Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with employment related laws and regulations that would
have significant impact to our Group.
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A summary on the relevant employee composition related AEBER T _NF+-_A=+—HHES
KPIs of our Group as at 31 December 2024 is disclosed as #AX AR EREEHMERZEN T
follows:

As at As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
R-ZZB-NF R_T_=F
Social KPlIs HEBRENMEE Unit B +=ZA=+-H +-A=+—H
Total workforce EEAY number A& 31 26
Total workforce by gender BEMREINESAY
Male EoRid number A& 17 15
Female pegid number A& 14 11
Total workforce by employment ZEREREIHNES
type 2y
Full-time 2B number A 21 21
Part-Time 3 number AE 10 5
Total workforce by employee #%EBEREIHNESR
category By
Senior management RREBRE number A& 3 2
Mid-level management hEE R number AE 13 13
Entry level EEAB number AE 15 11
Total workforce by age group BRERAREINESR
ay
Below 30 30U T number A 2 2
3010 50 30E 505 number AE 23 21
Over 50 5055 A £ number N 6 3
Total workforce by BRUBRESNESLY
geographical region
The People’s Republic of China ~ FE AR £ M number AE
(the “PRC") (ThE]) 1 1

Hong Kong, China mEE R number A& 30 25
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Employee Composition Employee Composition
By Gender By Age Groups
BEHERNBSEERER BRERANBSEHERHER
6 2

19% 7%

17,
55%

14,
45%

23,
74%
H Male Female Below 30 [ 30 to 50 Over 50
S 7 30AT 30%I505% 50B%A L
Employee Composition Employee Composition
By Employment Type By Employee Category
RERSRBSHERHEKR RESHNESHERHAR
10, 3,
32% 10%
15,
48%
21,
68% 13,
42%
M Full-time Part-time M Senior Mid-level Entry Level
20 P Management Management

SRERE TRERRE HEAB

Employee Composition
By Geographical Region
BRiER SeERHER

1,
3%

30,
97%

M PRC Hong Kong, China
R &% - pE
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A summary on the relevant employee turnover rate related
KPIs of our Group for Year 2024 is disclosed as follows:

2024 Annual Report

AEBR_ZT_MEFEHEERAEXHABY
FRERIEERERENOT

Year 2024 Year 2023

Social KPls HERRERER Unit Ef “E-ME —_T_=F
Employee turnover rate®* {8 % It &3 % % 2 75
Employee turnover rate EZMBEIHET

by gender? WK b &
Male B % % 31 67
Female prgid % % 16 85
Employee turnover rate HZERAREHH

by age group* EER KL=
Below 30 0F M T % % 150 167
30 to 50 30E505% % % 18 68
Over 50 5055 b £ % % - 44
Employee turnover BREEEIMN

rate by geographical EER AL %

region?

The PRC + % % - 175
Hong Kong ) % % 25 59
Total No. of Employee & Employee turnover rate
Resigned Staff (Number) by gender (Percentage)

EERBBASHEZ (AR REBIESHNEERALR(BOL)
40 100%
30 75%
20 50% 31%
10 7 25% - 16%
0 0%
m Total No. of Employee = Total No. of Resigned staff m Male Female
EEBAH BEEK A B AR B g

Employee turnover rate

by age groups (Percentage)
THEERALEER(FEDL)

RERARED
200%
150%

150%
100%
50%
0%

m Below 30

30BRA TN

30 to 50
30%/505%

18%

0%
m Over 50
5088 A £

Employee turnover rate
by geographical region (Percentage)

ﬁfiﬁ’,EiJ Hﬁﬁﬁ/)lb%tt’?‘ (E tt)
30%

25%
20%
10%
0% Q%
m PRC Hong Kong

I 5
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Notes:

3. Total employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the total
number of employees leaving employment during the reporting
period by the average number of employees at the beginning and
the end of the reporting period.

4. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
category during the reporting period by the average number of
employees in the category at the beginning and the end of the
reporting period.

B2 Health and safety

Our Group is committed to provide and maintain a safe,
healthy, and hygienic workplace for all employees, and all
other persons likely to be affected by our operations and
activities.

Our Group comply with occupational health and safety
guidelines recommended by the Labour Department and
occupational Safety and Health Council. Health and safety
standards are given prime consideration in our operations
and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld. Employees
are committed to deliver safety initiatives in reducing the
potential danger in workplace. Considering the occupational
risk, proper protective equipment and guidance are provided
to the employees.

Our Group participates in regular fire drills to raise employees’
safety and fire prevention awareness. Besides, our Group also
purchased medical insurance and compensation insurance
during the Reporting Period to protect the interest of
employees. Appropriate training, education, and evacuation
exercise are organized regularly. Our Group will regularly
review the abovementioned policy to ensure its effectiveness.
Employees are encouraged to report unmanaged workplace
hazard and to suggest improvement on workplace safety.
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A summary on the relevant number and rate of work-related
fatalities related KPIs of our Group for the past three years is
disclosed as follows:

$E@ﬂ£:¢§ﬁillﬁttﬂﬁ)\%&l“%
XHEBANEREREERRERENT

Year 2024 Year 2023 Year 2022
Social KPIs HERBENEE —EZWNE —E-_=ZF Z—ZT-_-F
Number of work-related fatalities I TH A 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities InT X 0% 0% 0%
Lost days due to work injury ITHEELAIIEHE 0 0 0

Our Group strictly abides by the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) or other relevant laws and
regulations on health and safety. During the Reporting Period,
our Group do not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to providing safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards that would have significant impact to our Group's
operation.

B3 Development and training

To accomplish the corporate objectives as well as personnel
development of employees, our Group encourages and
supports our employees in continuous personal and
professional training. Training enhances employees’
competencies and potentials in performing their jobs
effectively and efficiently and leads to long-term mutual
success of employees and our Group.

Depending on operational and management requirements,
and skills required, we committed to create an environment
of continuous improvement through providing in-house
peer learning and on-the-job coaching as well as training or
education subsidies to employees. We also encourage our
staff to attend external training courses and seminars.

In Year 2024, we organized pertinent training courses for
employees. In addition, our professional staffs have also
attended SFC Continuous Professional Training and ACCA
Exams for their continuous professional development.

AEEBERENKBELEREEREKRA) (F
S09E ) HM BHMEEELT AR RIER -
REHAN AEBTTNBETANEEERE
BIEMHEZ2ITHEREAREEERLTRER
ENEEREEMEAEENEEENEX
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ERTTHEEEIBFEAARIESEI-
ERFZIRAREARBERAIT IIENRE S

BHh REMEAEERMOAEE KA
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BIFREE2RERBRUALABERE HMAS
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A summary on the relevant development and training related AEBR T _NFEHEE KFIHABH
KPIs of our Group for Year 2024 is disclosed as follows: BHREVNEEHERENT :
Year 2024 Year 2023
Social KPIs HEBBENIERZR Unit By ZEBECDNMEFE _—_T_=F
Percentage of employees TIEERT DR
trained® % % 29% 31%
Trained percentage by BRUEREDTHNZI
genders® EBEB DS
Male S % % 78% 75%
Female 4 % % 22% 25%
Trained percentage by REEERNE SN
employee category® FIEREB DS
Senior management T%_i&mi% % % 12% 0%
Mid-level management PEEIEE % % 44% 50%
Entry level EEAE % % 44% 50%
Notes: B 3T
5. The percentage of total employees trained is calculated by dividing 5. SIlEEB D LLAHNEREHRBZIIEE 2
the total number of employees trained during the reporting period HBRUBREHREERLEAE-
by the total number of employees as at the end of the reporting
period.
6. The percentage of employees trained for each category is 6. THBZIEEB DL HIEME PRHEZE )”jJ
calculated by dividing the number of employees trained for that IEEABBRURSESHEZIEELHTE

category during the reporting period by the total number of
employees trained during the reporting period.

Total no. of trained & untrained staff

RilRKFZINNR A

71%

[ Total no. of trained staff
ZilfE BBk

Total no. of untrained staff

REFIME S B2

Trained percentage by gender

RENSENZIERRG S

B Male

Female

S

pogid

Sl
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Trained percentage by employee category

BRERNNBSHRIERE ST

12%

44%

I Senior Management

44%

Mid-level Management

SREERE PREIEE
Entry Level
AEAEB
Year 2024 Year 2023
Social KPIs HEERENRER Unit By —E-_NE —FT-=
Average training hours per S & EEF ¥ Z 3
employee’ oY Y hours N 4 4
Average training hours by &M 5 8l 5 8 Z 3|
gender® F g g
Male EER hours N 4 6
Female el hours /)N B 3 3
Average training hoursby ZREEEAE 2 W
employee category? 19 3 G BF e
Senior management ZREIRE hours /N B 3 0
Mid-level management PEBEEE hours AN
Entry level HE AB hours N B 4 5

Average training hours
by gender

BRI &2 K F I3

R X

BESERIE 5 HFIZ

Average training hours
by employee category

B 28

15
10
5 4 3 4 4
3
0 1 A [
= Male Female m Senior Management = Mid-level Management M Entry Level
S ogi ERERE FRERE HEAB
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Notes:

7. The average training hours completed per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during the reporting
period by the total number of employees at the end of the
reporting period.

8. The average training hours completed by each category of
employees is calculated by dividing the total training hours of that
category of employees during the reporting period by the number
of employees in that category at the end of the reporting period.

B4 Labour standards

Our Group prohibits the engagement of any child and forced
labour in any of our operations and services. Children who
are identified by the local labour law should not be employed,
as they reserve the right to pursue education in their
childhood. With the aim to prevent child labour employment,
during the process of recruitment, information of candidate is
verified by checking the identity proof and resume supporting
documents. Labour forced by means of physical punishment,
abuse, involuntary servitude, peonage, or trafficking is strictly
forbidden. We will also avoid engaging with suppliers and
contractors that are known to employ child or involve forced
labour in their products or services.
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Our Group implement the following procedures to prevent
child and forced labour:

] Opinion boxes have been set up to allow employees to
report child labour and/or forced labour;

J Human resources department would verify each
applicants’ age before granting employment; and

J If child and forced labour is identified, disciplinary
actions would be taken immediately.

During the Reporting Period, our Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations nor any cases of
child labour or forced labour in relation to employment and
labour standards, including but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Our
Director did not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations related to recruitment of child
labour or forced labour practices.

B5 Supply chain management

Our Group encourages suppliers to maintain a high standard
on business ethics and conducts, with managing the
environmental and social issues arising from their business
operations. During the Reporting Period, our major suppliers
of wine products are located in Hong Kong.

During the supplier selection and contract drafting processes,
the following factors are considered in achieving “Green
Procurement” on our Group’s supply chain:

J Use of environmental-friendly resources in provision of
products/services;

J Effort spent by the suppliers on limiting emission of
pollutants;
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J Responsible management of environmental impacts;

J Compliance with local environmental and social law and
regulations;

J Historical incidents on bribery, corruption, and money
laundering;

J Existence of discrimination due to ethnicity, gender, age,
disability or marital status on supplier’s recruitment;

] Provision of fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits;

] Provision of a safe working environment which complies
with local laws or practices;

J Community investment initiatives and effort.

To identify environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, our Group implemented the following methods
during supplier selection of supply chain and monitor their
performance:

] We have developed standard procedures in selection,
evaluation and monitoring suppliers;

. We have adopted the principles of openness, fairness
and transparency in supply chain management;

J Factors to be considered when corporation with new
suppliers include economic interests, products/services
quality, products/services safety, as well as suppliers’
compliance with laws and regulations concerning
environmental and social practices;
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° Business licenses, qualification certificates, production
safety permits and other management system
certifications will be collected during the supplier
selection process to ensure that they comply with
relevant social and environmental laws and regulations;

] Our Group will give priority to suppliers who provide
products/services that could promote sustainability;

J Our Group will perform assessment on suppliers on a
risk-basis approach;

o The cooperation with suppliers will be terminated if the
environmental and social standards not in line with our
Group's policy.

During the Reporting Period, our Group has implemented the
abovementioned practices relating to engaging suppliers to
all of our major suppliers.

A summary on the relevant number of suppliers related KPIs
of our Group for Year 2024 is disclosed as follows:
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Year 2024 Year 2023
Location of suppliers HEBN D it @ —E_NEE —FT-=FF
PRC F 5 5
Hong Kong, China B EE 35 36
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B6 Product responsibility

Responsible investment policy

Our Group realises the materiality of environmental, social
and governance factors in affecting the performance of
business, as well as the long-term impact on the surrounding
communities. The investment may impact the local
community, for example on living condition of local citizens,
labour treatment, and natural habitats.

Hence, in the process of making investment decisions, factors
of ESG are integrated into our investment analysis and
decision-making process.

As a responsible investor, we strive to incorporate ESG insight
in managing our investment portfolio, in order to control
undesired risk and maximise shareholders’ value in long-term
basis.

Product Responsibility Policy

Our Group highly values the safety and quality of our
wine products. Our management of wine trading segment
responsible for monitoring the quality of wine products, with
strict compliance with the national/local laws and standards.
Only suppliers with high quality products or performance are
selected by our Group. Warehouse, hygienic condition, quality
control and inspection procedures are examined on a regular
basis. All employees across the value chain will continuously
achieve various quality objectives.

We implement the following measures to maintain the
services' safety:

] Monitor the room temperature and the hygiene level of
warehouse regularly;

J Establish the responsible investment policy;
J Establish the product responsibility policy; and

] Establish the data privacy policy.
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We are committed to providing quality products and services
to customers and focuses on customers’ responses to the
products sold by our Group. Customers can offer their
opinions or lodge complaints through existing communication
channels. We will conduct investigations and prepare reports
based on the responses and take corrective measures when
necessary. During the Reporting Period, our Group did not
identify any material violation of laws and regulations in
respect of product and service quality, we did not receive any
complain, nor any products that needed to be recalled for
safety and health reasons.

Data Privacy Policy

Protecting the security and privacy of stakeholders’ personal
data is important to us. We ensure compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other statutory requirements to meet a
high standard of security and confidentiality of personal data
privacy protection. The following data protection principles
are adopted in preserving proper security and use of data:

] We only collect personal data that are relevant and
required for our businesses;

o We will not share personal data to any entity that is
not a member of our Group without consent unless it is
required by law or it was previously notified;

] We maintain appropriate data collection, storage, and
processing practices and security measures to protect
against unauthorised access to personal information;

] Computer system is regularly updated and is installed
with firewall and antivirus software to avoid possible
hackers’ activities; and

J All employees have signed confidentiality agreement.

Intellectual property rights
We implement the following practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights:

] We use authorised and copyrighted products only;
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J Employees are not allowed to download or install any
forged or copied programs, software or materials; and

] Our standard employment contracts contain provisions
on Intellectual property rights and confidentially.

Our Group strictly abides by the laws and regulations on
product health and safety, advertising, labeling, remedies and
protection of intellectual property rights, and also observes
the laws and regulations related to privacy. There was no case
of violation identified during the Reporting Period.

B7 Anti-corruption

Employees at all levels are expected to behave with integrity,
impartiality and honesty. We do not tolerate corruption,
bribery, extortion, money-laundering and other fraudulent
activities in connection with any of our business operations
that compromise the interest of our shareholders, investors,
customers, and other stakeholders. Our Group is in strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, 4 employees of our Group
received approximately 8 hours of anti-corruption training in
relation to Guidance on Combating Money Laundering and
Terrorist Financing (Virtual Asset Service Providers).

Our Group has provided publications, policy and training in
relation to anti-corruption practices to our Directors, senior
management personnel and employees which expect involved
approximately 6 hours, at least annually. Our Group also
provided anti-corruption policies to new employees.

Our Group has set up whistle-blowing channel in a private
communication channel on reporting suspicious fraudulent
actions to our Group's independent department directly. The
conduct of employee is closely monitored by management.
Ongoing review of the effectiveness of the internal control
systems is conducted to prevent the occurrence of corruption
activities.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly complied
with all applicable laws and regulations, as well as guidance
from various regulatory bodies, including SFC. The Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with related
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.
There were also no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices during the Reporting Period.

B8 Community investment

As a responsible company, we aim at serving and
strengthening the wider community, and encouraging
employees and other stakeholders in supporting the
community. Our Group place high importance for making
positive contribution to the community where it operates,
and considers community benefits as one of its social
responsibilities. We care about the well-being of social
community, and would participate in the charity activities.
Our employees are also encouraged to actively participate in
public conventions, conferences, exhibitions, and events, with
an emphasis on philanthropic contributions, sponsorships,
and community investment.

Selection of supporting charities involves several
considerations. We evaluate the vision and background
of charities organisation. Charities engaged in unethical
activities, and those in unclear financial position, and conflict
of interest with corporation/individual will not be considered.

We will continue to regularly review the objectives and
direction of community investment and monitor community
investment, sponsorship and donation activities and approval
policies. We will review whether our social performance is in
line with the community investment policies at least annually.
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ESG REPORTING GUIDE RIE-MI8KREBHRSHES

The following table is a summary of the relationship between TXRHJIRE HEREAREESIBAE
the ESG Reporting Guide and the issues found relevant to our FHEEENBEERE

Group:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE BY HKEX

ERXGHAMGHRE HEREREERES

Mandatory Disclosure

Requirements Reporting Guideline Section/Remark
BREHBEERE ] & 5 s BB
Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: Governance

(i)  adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues; Structure

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses.

EORRE HESERLWER EFHENIARET: BRARE
iy HEEFTSHRE. ?i‘\&%:%\$ﬁﬁ’ﬁbm:
(i) EFTENRE HLERERERTH REE  BREFN

- BREINLREEEZNRE HER m*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
(BREBTAXZBNRERINER K

(i) EFEMARRER HLEREHBERRTEE X
MEBTCMAMMNEZTAREEBE

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report | Reporting Scope
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.

PEE % &3 [E] BMERRE HeMEAMENERLE A E Lﬁt R L B
%“%i%fx%)\%iﬁ~7i@&%:°‘*$ﬁiﬁ’\]§@$% FERBESR
ek ZTABEBEIRCZEREHREA -
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[FTETHRBERHGX

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

BR

- REE BREEAX

# & 15 5

BE B

A. Environmental

A RIE

Aspect A1

Emissions

2 ™ A1

B

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

A1 Emissions

—RIKE ERABRLRERBHEN RMKRLHWHHES EERES A1 BETD
BEYVYNELESTH:
(@ BX:&k
by BFTHETABEAXZENHBEEZRROIBNER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emission and respective emission data. A1 Emissions —

Air emissions
A1 Emissions —
GHG emissions

B G 4R BUBIEAT

BEDRRE SR N AE R R B o

ATHER Y - R
88 HE AT B

b

KPI'A1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

A1 Emissions —
GHG emissions

B B2 B IR 1R A2

ER@EDEERER(EED)RERBHERE(AMETE)
An@ER)ZE(MASEEEM BHEREAE) -

ATEER Y — R
ERBEHEMW
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[FTETHRBERHGX

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE BHREXN

BEE ] & 5 5 BB

A. Environmental

A RIE

Aspect A1 Emissions

fE & A1 235 &7

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where A1 Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per — Waste
facility). management

B3 AR IRAL3 MELAEEEEYHAEUMFAE)R(MER)ERE(MWMAE | AMBERY—RE
EEEM - SEREHH) - g =

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where A1 Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per — Waste
facility). management

BRENIERAL MELABEZEEYREEAE) N(MEBEREZEWNAE | AMBERY—RE
EEEf BEXREFHE)- W) E B

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve A1 Emissions —
them. Greenhouse gas

emissions

B 248 M IRALS BRI MR EEREREIN ELE EMEMA - ATBERU — R
=R 8 HE X

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are A1 Emissions
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps — Waste

taken to achieve them. management

M52 4E MR 1R A16 HMAEREEERBETEEYN AL REAMETINRE | AMBERY—RE
BERRREINELAEZTHERIA LR - g R
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[T 8RR KX

General disclosure/

KPls Reporting guideline Section/Remark

—REE BHREXN

BEE ] & 15 5l BB

A. Environmental

A RIE

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

& ' A2 BIREA

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water A2 Use of
and other raw materials. resources

—MREE ERERERMEIERR KEREAMEM) S BE - A2 &R fE A

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, A2 Use of
gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of resources
production volume, per facility).

7 52 48 MR 1R A2.1 RENESWEE R/ XHEELRINE  Raom)EEE A A2 & JR1E A
TEFAKABEIRTZEWMAGEESN BERXRMETHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of A2 Use of
production volume, per facility). resources

B 5 A IR 1R A2.2 BAREKERZEWUNEGEESE N BERBTE) - A2 B IRE A
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS

[FTETHRBERHGX

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE BHREXN

BEE ] & 15 5l BB

A. Environmental

A RIE

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

& ' A2 BIREA

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken A2 Use of
to achieve them. resources

75248 MR IR A2.3 BRIV RERMNZEERAENNELBFMEKR A2 & JR1E A

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that A2 Use of
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to resources
achieve them.

A MIEIRA24 it SKER @ AR KR | AT B (A BB - BA KPR AT A2 89 R K 3K A2EBIRfE A
HREAREAEINELE RN ILR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) A2 Use of
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. resources

7 52 4B W 1R A2.5 B mFAAeEEMHNES(UEE) R(NER) 8 £ E A2 & JR1E A

PR B
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environment and natural resources.

[ <F 508 52 | 1R X

General disclosure/

KPls Reporting guideline Section/Remark
—REE BREX

BE ] & 15 5l BB
A. Environmental

ARIR

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

[ EA3 BERRXRAER

General disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the A3 The

environment and
natural resources

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

—RIKE BMEBETAHRERRAEREXNERNTENHE - A3IRIE R KA
&R
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the A3 The

environment and
natural resources

N EEHITE -

79 B2 48 AR 1R A3.1 HAEBEHHERELRARAERNEAZERERNERE | ABRERXRA
BERTENTH- &R

Aspect A4 Climate Change

[E m A4 Rz

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant A4 Climate
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may change
impact, the issuer.

— R E BRI REHERERAEGHETAEELENEARKEMN A4 & Z 1L
HEEHHEK -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have A4 Climate
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the change
actions taken to manage them.

7 52 48 W e 1R AL B RS HBETAEEYENEARGHEBER VRS -Eid
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[FTETHRBERHGX

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

- REE BEEAX

BR

# & 15 5

BE B

B. Social

B.#&

Aspect B1

Employment and Labor Practices

B mB1

ERERREIER

General disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.

B1 Employment

— MR E ERFWNEE BELREN IERE RY THEHE - B1{E 1%
%t~ RBCAR DA Ko Bl 5 38 J /& F A9
(@ HBRER: &
by BTHETABEAXZENHBERZRRINER -

KPIs B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- B1 Employment

or part-time), age group and geographical region.

B 4 A8 IR 15 B 1.1

R BREAR(MEBEERRE)  FidR RitES 5
BB e -

B1 & &

KPIs B1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

B1 Employment

78 42 45 WIE1EB1.2

2R FRARREE S MIEERELE -

B1{& &
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[FTETHRBERHGX

General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE BHREXN
BEE ] & 15 5l BB
B. Social
B.&t &
Aspect B2 Health and Safety
fE EB2 BERZR
General disclosure Information on: B2 Health and
(a) the policies; and safety
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RIKE EFARBZE2TIHBRRERREEERBEBELEREEN B2fi2 R % &
(@ BX:X&k
by BTFTHETABEAXZENHEBZEIRZLAOINNER-
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of B2 Health and
the past three years including the reporting year. safety
78 82 4 W5 12 B2.1 BEZF(ERERFRE)BFRITHNAZ R E- B2 2B R 2
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. B2 Health and
safety
7 52 48 W5 15B2.2 HAIBGELXITIEAS- B2 RE = &
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2 Health and
and how they are implemented and monitored. safety
79 82 48 W5 1§ B2.3 HAFFERMOBERREZ BB UREBATRESR BREREZRR

JTE e
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[T 8RR KX

General disclosure/

KPls Reporting guideline Section/Remark

—REE BREX

BEE ] & 15 5l BB

B. Social

B.&t &

Aspect B3 Development and Training

g mB3 B R R

General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for | B3 Development
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. and training

—RIEE FERRATEEBTIEBRENAILRENBR -HE | B3EREKEI
FEE -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | B3 Development
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). and training

7 52 4 W 1EB3.1 BRMFREEEN(MNEREEE PREEB)EI>NXI | BIEEREKFI
EBEBHMD -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | B3 Development
and employee category. and training

79 52 4 W 5 1% B3.2 BRMFIREERRNE D BREE TKAXIN F IR - B3 % & & 1F 3l
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COMPLY OR EXPLAIN PROVISIONS
[T 8RR KX
General disclosure/
KPls Reporting guideline Section/Remark
—REE BHREXN
BEE ] & 5 5 BB
B. Social
B4t &
Aspect B4 Labor Standards
[E m B4 % I8
General disclosure Information on: B4 Labour
(a) the policies; and standards
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labor.
—MREE BB IEETIHRALTH: B4 & T % Al
(@ HBXR:k&k
by BFHBEBTABEAXZENHBEERBROBNER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4 Labour
child and forced labour. standards
B 52 45 X 15 12 B4 1 il BEEANERUABEEET NARAST - B4 4 T # Al
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when B4 Labour
discovered. standards
B 52 48 R HE 15 B4.2 M EZERERBRARHERGRBRAERIRE R - B4 45 T = Al
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General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

—REE BHREXN

BEE ] & 15 5l BB

B. Social

B.&t &

Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management

fE T B5 HEEER

General disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply | B5 Supply chain
chain. management

—RIEE EEMHEENRREAESRAREBE- B5 f#t fE 4 B 1%

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. B5 Supply chain

management

2 52 45 R $5 12 B5. 1 MBI S HEREAE - B5 1 FE 52 B 38

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number | B5 Supply chain
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how management
they are implemented and monitored.

B8 52 45 R 5 1R B5.2 A ERERBEEENEN RMERTEBAEMNOMHRER | BSHEEEIRE

ZBH URBBARTREEL X -

KPI B5.3

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social

B5 Supply chain

risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and management
monitored.
B9 B2 45 W5 1% B5.3 HMEEEBNHERESERANRE R L SEARNIED B5 it f& 3 B 12

ARBEATRERET A -

KPI B5.4

Description of practices used to promote environmentally

B5 Supply chain

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and management
how they are implemented and monitored.
79 $2 48 W 15 1% B5.4 Ml EREHEEREESPARERRER ARG OED - LA | BSHEREEIRE

REBATRERET A
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General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

- REE HREEX

BE ] & 45 5l B EE
B. Social

B.i&

Aspect B6 Product Responsibility

[E EB6 EmEE

General disclosure Information on: B6 Product

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

responsibility

—RIKE FERMRHERMRBENEREREL: BEE RELILES B6ZE mn B £
H AR R E
(@ BX:&k
by BFTHETABEAXZENHBEEZRROIBNER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for B6 Product

safety and health reasons.

responsibility

38 2 45 IR 15 B6. 1

EEXCEXEMBBTRLE2AREEAMADKRNA

L e

B6E mh B 1T

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

B6 Product
responsibility

38 42 A8 R 1K 15 B6.2

BEEBRERMRBORFERE ARBEH T E -

B6/E M B

KPI B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

B6 Product
responsibility

8 §2 45 A5 15B6.3

WM REENRENZEREBOED -

B6E m B 1

KPI B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6 Product
responsibility

B8 4 A48 W15 15B6.4

Ml EEREBENER@MKIRERF -

B6/E M B

KPI B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

B6 Product
responsibility

8 42 45 WIB 12 B6.5

WIOEBEERRELIALBRE  URBBATRER A -

B6E mh B 1T
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General disclosure/
KPls

Reporting guideline

Section/Remark

- REE HREEX

BE ] & 45 5l B EE
B. Social

B.i&

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

f& mB7 k&S

General disclosure Information on: B7

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

—RIEE BRI IR R HFRERED: BTRE S
(@ HBXR:k&k
by BFHBEBTABEAXZENHBEERBROBNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices B7

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

Anti-corruption

78 B2 48 W 12 B7.1 REFBAHBETAXIHEERHICEANBESHAR BTRE S
HEBE RFAER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing B7
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. Anti-corruption

B 52 45 5 1R B7.2 A EEERBEREF UAREERNTRER A BTRE S

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and B7
staff. Anti-corruption

74 52 4 W 12 B7.3 M EFREIRHEOREFEI - BTRE S
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General disclosure/

KPls Reporting guideline Section/Remark

—REE BHREXN

BEE ] & 15 5l BB

B. Social

B.&t &

Aspect B8 Community Investment

fE ™ B8 HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs B8 Community
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its investment
activities take into consideration the communities” interests.

—RIKE ERANHRSERTHREEMELEFTENEREEXBE B8t R IX &
HEERERMAHBE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental B8 Community
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). investment

2§ 45 % 5 12 B8. 1 ETERER(NHE BREFE BIFR F Xt B8t BRI &
BE)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. B8 Community

investment
7 52 4 W 5 15 B8.2 EEIGEEMHIBE RS EREFR) - B8t B &
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The directors of OCI International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
business and geographical segments are set out in Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 151 to 152.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) does
not recommend any payment of a final dividend for the Year
(2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and future developments of the Group
for the Year are contained in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual report,
there were no material events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial performance indicators is provided in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 8, page
4 and pages 9 to 27 of this annual report.

Detailed information of the Group’s corporate governance
is contained in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 28 to 53 of this annual report.
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In addition, details regarding the Group’s performance
by reference to environmental and social- related key
performance indicators and policies, as well as compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Company are provided in the paragraph
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 64 to 114 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business
risks, operational risks, financial risks, and environmental,
social and governance risks that may have different levels of
impact on the Group’s financial performance, operations,
business as well as future prospects.

The following highlights the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group and it is not meant to be exhaustive. There may
be other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but turn out to be
material in the future.

Economic Risks
— A severe or prolonged downturn of economy.

—  Negative effect on our operational, financing or
investing activities due to inflation, fluctuations of
interest rates and other measures relating to financial
policies.

Operational Risks
—  Failure to compete in the competitive environment
which the Group operates in.

The Group is also exposed to certain financial risk, including
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of financial risks are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
and the section headed “FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS” under
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” to this annual
report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years are set out on page
292.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the Company's share
capital are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distributions to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
as at 31 December 2024 comprised the share premium
and accumulated losses with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$228.02 million (2023: HK$226.78 million).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”) provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which they may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of their office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Mr. Jiao Shuge (Alias Jiao Zhen) (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Nanjun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wu Guangze*

Mr. Zhao Li* (appointed on 29 April 2024)

Ms. Guo Ting Ting* (appointed on 18 December 2024)

Mr. Tso Siu Lun Alan**

Mr. Li Xindan**

Dr. Lo Wing Yan William**

Mr. Chong Ka Yee**

Mr. Feng Hai* (resigned on 29 April 2024)

* Non-executive Director
**  Independent non-executive Director

REZEFEZERARDF

DIRECTORS' REPORT 117
EFEWSE
ME - MERR
AEEREFENYE BERREZED

HEHENEEMBRRME -

A% IR
ARBAZBARAKFEREZEHABIANE S
Bt 7% R 526 ©

/N VA B R
R-Z-mME+-_FA=+—H8B AQ A AJ4#
DERFARABRR(IBRRDZHEERER®D
BERZFTEBZAREN28028E8FT(Z
T-=F:2678EBET) -

EESTRE
AprlMBERAN(HAEERAANDSRE -
EEEZARNETHERS A EREMAR T @
“Ei%ﬁ(ﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁ?@%ia1ﬂﬁé$“Té%
hESRIE

g5
RAFERBEAREABRZIEETR

£ RS (BB ()

EFEELXE(BEE#HTE)

REZRE~

WMOGE*R=ZF=-Z@mEF
A=+ HEZE)

et (R-DZFE-MmF
+=ZA+/\HEZE)

HE kL

20 FF 5 A

A

HEEE E*

BB % (R F = WEMA =+ AR

* FERITES
> BIUNFRTEE



118

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
E58HS

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 54 to 63
of this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration and
the Five highest individuals are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Articles 87(1) and 87(2) of the Articles
of Association, Mr. Jiao Shuge, Mr. Li Xindan and Dr. Lo
Wing Yan William shall be retired and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. As such, Mr. Zhao Li and Ms. Guo Ting Ting
will retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

All Directors’ appointments will be subject to normal
retirement and re-election at the annual general meeting by
the Shareholders pursuant to the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
Each of the Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTOR’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Following enquiries
with the Directors, the Company has received confirmation
from each of the Directors confirming that he or she has
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in
the Model Code for the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register maintained
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by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or BIZBESITHMEARRRBRAZEZRE R
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange 1T :
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
Long position interests in the Company RAERBNREER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company XA A&ZKREE0.01ETHEER (KK
(“Shares”)
Number Approximate %
of Shares Issued Voting
Name of chief executives Capacity/Nature of interests interested Shares
HEEEREN HNEEBRTH
FTETHRABHESR B REantE g g=! REERG %
Mr. Wu Guangze Beneficial owner 31,000,000 2.07%
REERE EnEAR A
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, neither B EXF#EEEIIN RZT-_WF+ =R =

the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had
any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any associated
corporations, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
shares or debt securities of the Company or had exercised any
such right during the Year.

DIRECTORS” INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS"’
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no any
contract of significance (whether for the provision of services

INTEREST IN

to the Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which any controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to Directors, as at 31 December 2024, the
persons or companies (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register of substantial Shareholders
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in the ordinary Shares as at 31 December R
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BEHNINT :

2024:
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
BRRERB g 4 BROBE BREBABIL
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ Investment Fund L. P. (Fff £ 1) ExEAA
JZ International Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 440,000,000 29.34%
JZ International Ltd. (#f7F 1) XPEHE B E
Golden Power Group Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 314,000,000 20.94%
ENEBERRAI(AF2) ERBEAA
Orient Ruixin Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RAEEERRA(MF2) REGEEE R
Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Management Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
Co., Limited (Note 2)
RAER(LB)REERERARNZF2) XEHEZBEER
Shanghai Orient Securities Capital Investment  Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
Co., Ltd. (Note 2)
LEBRFABHEAREBRRBAI(MZ2) XEHZEZEER
Orient Securities Company Limited (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 314,000,000 20.94%
RABFROERDR (M E2) XEHEEE R
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 194,960,000 12.99%
BREZERBR AR (A E3) EnEEA
CCBI Investments Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BRREBEKREER AR (HZ3) REGEEE R
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BRERER)ERRA(MT3) XEHEEE S
CCB Financial Holdings Limited (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
BITeMERBR QR (ME3) REHEE R
CCB International Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
(Note 3)
ROBEREEZERER AR (HZ3) REHEE R
China Construction Bank Corporation (Note 3)  Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%
FERRRITROERRA(MF3) REGEEE R
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 194,960,000 12.99%

PRESREERAEEDE(HE3)

REHEB R
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Notes:

1. JZ Investment Fund L.P., an exempted limited partnership governed
by the board of its general partner, JZ International Ltd..

2. R #EF R M AR 2 A (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.) directly
holds 100% of the equity mterest in Shanghai Orient Securities
Capital Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn holds 100% of the
equity interest in Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai) Investment Management
Co., Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital
of Orient Ruixin Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Golden Power Group Limited. Therefore, 3 77 &
% B% 15 & BR 2 & (Orient Securities Co., Ltd.), Shanghai Orient
Securities Capltal Investment Co., Ltd., Orient Ruiyi (Shanghai)
Investment Management Co., Limited and Orient Ruixin Limited
are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Golden
Power Group Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

3. Central Huijin Investment Ltd. directly holds 57.11% of the equity
interest in China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn
holds 100% of the issued share capital of CCB International Group
Holdings Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share
capital of CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn holds
100% of the issued share capital of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of
CCBI Investments Limited, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Cheer Hope Holdings Limited. Therefore, Central
Huijin Investment Ltd., China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial Holdings
Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI Investments
Limited are taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by
Cheer Hope Holdings Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person,
other than the Directors, whose interests are set out herein
this report, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2012 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) has
been adopted by the Company pursuant to a shareholder’s
resolution passed on 17 December 2012 and expired on 16
December 2022. The expiration of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme does not affect the rights of the outstanding options
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and those
outstanding options continue to be valid and exercisable
during the prescribed exercisable period in accordance with
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. No service provider sublimit
was set under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Purpose and Participants

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to reward
any Directors and employees of the Group, any director or
employee of a company or entity in which the Group had
invested in and any advisors (professional or otherwise),
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters, any director or employee of any service partners
of any member of the Group who the Board considered, in
its sole discretion, had contributed to or would contribute to
the Group (the “2012 Participants”) and to encourage 2012
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.
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Maximum Entitlement of each 2012 Participants

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each grantee under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
(when aggregated with any shares subject to options granted
during such period under any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company other than those options granted pursuant
to specific approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the shares in issue for the time being, unless
further grant of options being approved by Shareholders in
general meeting with such 2012 Participant and his associates
abstaining from voting. Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue
on the date of such grant; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of
options shall be subject to prior approval by resolution of the
shareholders (voting by way of poll).

Option Period, Minimum Period for which an Option Must
be Held Before It Can be Exercised and Consideration on
Acceptance of the Option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the period
to be determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at
the time of grant of the option which shall not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant. The 2012 Share Option
Scheme does not specify a minimum period for which an
option must be held nor a performance target which must
be achieved before an option can be exercised. However,
the rules of the 2012 Share Option Scheme provide that the
Board may determine, at its discretion, such term(s) on the
grant of an option, which decision may vary on a case by case
basis. A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
as consideration for the grant of option is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of the grant of option within a
period of 28 days from the date of grant. Such remittance is
not refundable in any circumstances.
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Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Shares.

Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all the options to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue (or the shares of the subsidiary) as at its
adoption date (the “2012 Scheme Mandate Limit”). Upon its
expiration, no further options shall be offered or granted.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed refreshing the
2012 Scheme Mandate Limit so that the Company would be
allowed to grant options under the Share Option Scheme for
subscription up to a total of 149,974,992 shares, representing
10% of the number of shares in issue as at 24 May 2021.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 16 September 2021, an ordinary resolution was passed to
grant 55,000,000 share options to Mr. Wu Guangze carrying
the rights to subscribe for 55,000,000 shares and 50,000,000
share options to Mr. Wei Bin carrying the rights to subscribe
for 50,000,000 shares at an exercise price of HK$4.53 per
Share (the “"Grant”) under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

Validity period of the share options are from 15 October
2021 to 6 June 2031 (both dates inclusive). The share options
of each Grantee will be vested in five equal tranches (being
11,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wu Guangze
and 10,000,000 Share Options per tranche for Mr. Wei Bin)
in accordance with the vesting schedule of the share options,
subject to the fulfilment of certain performance targets.
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Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 15 October 2021, the Company granted the Grant on

15 October 2021.

Details of the Grant are set out below:

Tranches

First tranche

Second tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

For the year ending 31 December
2021, the Company records a net
profit (after deducting minority
interests and non-recurring gains
and losses (Note)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2021 is not less than
HK$495,004,000.

For the year ending 3 1 December
2022, the Company records a net
profit (after deducting minority
interests and non-recurring gains
and losses (Note)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2022 is not less than
HK$594,005,000.
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Tranches

Third tranche

Fourth tranche

Performance Targets

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(i)

For the year ending 3 1
December 2023, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests
and non-recurring gains and
losses (Note)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operations
and listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2023 is not less than
HK$712,806,000.

For the year ending 3 1 December
2024, the Company records a net
profit (after deducting minority
interests and non-recurring gains
and losses (Note)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s operations and
listing status; and

the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2024 is not less than
HK$855,367,000.
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Tranches Performance Targets

Fifth tranche (i) For the year ending 31
December 2025, the Company
records a net profit (after
deducting minority interests
and non-recurring gains and
losses (Note)) and there is no
occurrence of events that would
have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s operations
and listing status; and

(i) the audited net assets of the
Company as at 31 December
2025 is not less than
HK$1,026,440,000.

Note:

Non-recurring gains and losses refer to highly infrequent profit or
charge not arising from the Company’s ordinary and usual course of
business, including but not limited to the impairment losses on defaulted
investments and gains or losses on disposal of subsidiaries or business.

Details of the share options outstanding during the Year are
as follows:
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Number of share options
BREZER
Outstanding at the beginning of FEKRITE
the Year 33,000,000 84,000,000
Granted during the Year FAKS - -
Lapsed during the Year F R KW (11,000,000) (51,000,000)
Outstanding at the end of the Year ~ F K A & 17 22,000,000 33,000,000

During the Year, except for the aforesaid, there is no other
options granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or forfeited
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.
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Given the vesting conditions for the third tranche are not
met, the corresponding tranche of share options (being
11,000,000 share options for Mr. Wu Guangze) has been
automatically lapsed during the Year.

The number of shares of the Company that may be issued
in respect of options granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme during the Year (i.e. 22,000,000) divided by the
weight average number of shares of 1,499,749,920 share for
the Year was 1.47%.

NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) has been adopted by the Company pursuant to
a shareholder’s resolution passed on 23 June 2023 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Purposes

The purposes of the New Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to reward Participants
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and
to encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Participants

Participants include the employee participants, related entity
participants and service providers. The eligibility of each of
the Participant shall be determined by the Board from time to
time on the basis of the participant’s contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.
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Total Number of Shares Available for Issue

The total number of the shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme and all options and awards to be granted
under any other share option scheme(s) and share award
scheme(s) of the Company (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the Adoption Date or the relevant date of approval of
the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit. Within the
Scheme Mandate Limit, the total number of the shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
to the service provider(s) under the New Share Option Scheme
and all options and awards to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) and share award scheme(s) of the
Company (the “Service Provider Sublimit”) shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue as at the Adoption
Date or the relevant date of approval of the refreshment of
the Service Provider Sublimit.

The number of shares available for issue under the New Share
Option Scheme at the beginning of the Year is 116,974,992,
representing approximately 7.8% of the issued shares and
the end of the Year and the date of this annual report is
127,974,992, representing approximately 8.5% of the issued
shares as at the date of this annual report. There is no service
provider sublimit set under the New Share Option Scheme.

Maximum Entitlement of each Participant

The total number of the shares issued and to be issued in
respect of all options (including the options) and awards
granted to each Participant (excluding any options (including
the options) or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the relevant schemes) under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) and share award
scheme(s) of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue.

Option Period

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, an
Option may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during
the period for the exercise of an option to be notified by the
Board to the grantee at the time of making an offer, but in any
event shall not exceed ten years from the offer date.
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VESTING PERIOD

The vesting period for the options shall not be less than
12 months from the offer date, provided that where the
participant is:

(i)

an employee participant who is a director or senior
manager of the Company and specifically identified by
the Board, the remuneration committee of the Board
shall; or

an employee participant other than a director and senior
manager of the Company and specifically identified
by the Board, the Board shall have the authority to
determine a shorter vesting period under the following
specific circumstances:

(a)

grants of the options in compensatory nature to a
new employee participant to replace his/her share
options or awards forfeited when leaving his/her
previous employer;

grants of the options to an employee participant
whose employment is terminated due to death or
disability or occurrence of any out-of-control event;

grants of the options with performance-based
vesting conditions in lieu of time-based vesting
criteria and the employee participant is required to
satisfy the performance-based vesting conditions
within 12 months from the grant of options. For
the avoidance of doubt and save as otherwise
provided in this paragraph, the vesting period shall
not be less than 12 months if no performance
target is imposed;

grants of the options that are made in batches
during a year for compliance reasons, which
include the options that should have been granted
earlier if not for such compliance reasons. In such
case, the vesting period may be shorter to reflect
the time from which the options would have been
granted; and

grants of the options with a mixed or accelerated
vesting schedule such as where the options may
vest evenly over a period of 12 months.
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GRANT OF OPTIONS

On and subject to the terms of the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at any time and from time
to time within the Scheme Period (as defined below) to make
an Offer to any Participant as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select, and subject to such conditions as the Board
may think fit, which may include a condition that the Grantee
shall not dispose of the Shares issued upon exercise of the
Option within such period of time or under such conditions
as the Board may at its absolute discretion determine,
the vesting period for the Option to be granted and the
performance targets, if any, attached to the Options to be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme, to subscribe
during the Option Period (as defined below) for such number
of Shares (being a board lot for dealing in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof) as the
Board may determine at the Exercise Price provided always
that an Offer made to such Participant will not constitute an
invitation to the public to subscribe for the Shares under any
applicable legislations.

An offer shall be made to a Participant on a business day
in writing in such form as the Board may from time to time
determine, requiring the Participant to undertake to hold the
Option on the terms on which it is to be granted and to be
bound by the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme
and shall remain open for acceptance by the Participant
concerned for a period of five business days from the Offer
Date (inclusive of the offer date) provided that no such Offer
shall be open for acceptance after the Scheme Period (subject
to early termination thereof).

Consideration on Acceptance of the Option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and an
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted and accepted and to have taken effect on the
offer date when a letter in such form as the Board may from
time to time determine signifying acceptance of the Option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company within five
business days from the offer date (inclusive of the offer date).
Such remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.
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Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the Adoption
Date and expiring at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.
Accordingly, the remaining life of the New Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this report is approximately 8 years.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the New Share Option Scheme since the
Adoption Date.

EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
Offer Date, which must be a business day;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the offer
Date; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date,
provided that in the event of fractional prices, the
exercise price per share shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR OTHER
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has no
outstanding convertible securities, options or similar rights in
issue as at 31 December 2024.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2024, the total borrowing (including lease
liabilities) of the Group amounted to HK$5.96 million (2023:
HK$9.14 million).
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DONATIONS
For the Year, the Group did not made any charitable and
other donations (2023: Nil).

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”)
in Hong Kong. Under the Scheme, employer and employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and a minimum
level of relevant income of HK$7,100 for the employees’
contribution. The Group’s employees in the PRC, participate
in a defined contribution central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries was entered into or existed
during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Schemes”, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreements for the Year, and there did not
subsist any equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company as at 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
There were no competing business of which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or in-directly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to, among
other things, the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, time, commitment, duties and responsibilities,
contribution to the Group, comparable market statistics and
prevailing marketing practice and trends.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to the Shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the largest supplier of the Group by itself
and the next four largest suppliers accounted for about
30.1% and 37.0% respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

During the Year, the largest customer of the Group by itself
and the next four largest customers accounted for about
23.0% and 35.6% of the Group's turnover (excluding income
(loss) from securities trading and investments). The five largest
customers are from provision of asset management services,
provision of securities underwriting and placing services and
sales of goods.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions during the Year as set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements fall within
the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but are subject to exemptions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are fully exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance code are based on the
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. During the Year, the Company has complied
with all the CG Code.

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 31 March 2023 and 18 December 2024 in relation to
the resignation of Ms. Zheng Xiaosu (“Ms. Zheng") as the
non-executive Director and the appointment of Ms. Guo Ting
Ting (“Ms. Guo") as the non-executive Director.

Following the resignation of Ms. Zheng with effect from
31 March 2023, the Company had a single gender board
which did not comply with the diversity requirement under
Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. The reason for the delay
in re-complying with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules is that
although, since the resignation of Ms. Zheng, the Board was
in the process of identifying a female candidate but failed to
identify a suitable and qualified female candidate.

Following the appointment of Ms. Guo as the non-executive
Director with effect from 18 December 2024, the Board is
no longer made up by directors of a single gender and has
therefore satisfied the diversity requirement under Rule 13.92
of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
On 29 April 2024, Mr. Zhao Li has been appointed as the
non-executive Director.
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On 29 April 2024, Mr.
non-executive Director.

Feng Hai has resigned as the

On 29 April 2024, the investment committee of the Company
has been dissolved.

On 5 December 2024, Dr. Lo Wing Yan William has resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Jingrui Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1862).

On 18 December 2024, Ms. Guo Ting Ting has been
appointed as the non-executive Director.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were audited by Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”) and the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Year were audited by Prism Hong Kong Limited (“Prism”).

Crowe resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 17 November 2023. Prism was appointed as the new
auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of Crowe to hold the office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Prism
as the auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other changes in
auditors of the Company during the past three years.

On behalf of the Board
OClI International Holdings Limited

Jiao Shuge
Executive Director (Chairman)

28 March 2025
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%@ Prism

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF OCI INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
OCl International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 151 to 291, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Allowance for expected credit loss of debt investments at amortised cost

Refer to Notes 3b(i), 15 and 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount
of the Group’s debt investments at amortised cost and
the related loss allowance amounted to approximately
HK$20,856,000 and approximately HK$20,516,000,
respectively.

The determination of loss allowance using the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model is subject to
a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default (“PD"), loss given default
("LGD"), exposures at default (“"EAD") and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors. Management judgement
and estimates are involved in the selection of those
parameters and the application of the assumptions.

We identified the allowance for ECL of debt
investments measured at amortised cost as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the gross
carrying amount as at 31 December 2024 and the
determination of loss allowance involved significant
management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for ECL of
debt investments at amortised cost included:

J obtaining an understanding of the management
process and key internal controls over the
measurement of loss allowance;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used
by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the
key parameters and assumptions in the ECL
model, including any quantitative, qualitative
and forward-looking information;

o assessing the accuracy of data used for the key
parameters in the ECL model,

o checking the mathematical accuracy of the ECL
calculations; and

o evaluating whether the disclosures on provision
of ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Allowance for expected credit loss of trade receivables

Refer to Notes 3b(i), 17 and 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Note 2(j)(i).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of
the Group’'s trade receivables was approximately
HK$20,784,000, after net off the loss allowance for
ECL of HK$ Nil.

The management measures loss allowances on
trade receivables at amounts equal to lifetime ECL.
ECL allowance on trade receivables are estimated
using a provision matrix which involves significant
management judgement in estimating the expected
loss rate based on historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions.

We identified the allowance for ECL of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the carrying amount as at 31 December
2024 and the determination of loss allowance involved
significant management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to the allowance for ECL of
trade receivables included:

J obtaining an understanding of the management
process and key internal controls over the
measurement of loss allowance;

o assessing the reliability of the ECL model used
by management in determining loss allowance,
including assessing the appropriateness of the
key parameters and assumptions and in the ECL
model, including any quantitative, qualitative
and forward-looking information;

o assessing the accuracy of data used for the key
parameters in the ECL model,

o checking the mathematical accuracy of the ECL
calculations; and

o evaluating whether the disclosures on provision
of ECL meet the disclosure requirements in the
prevailing accounting standards.
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Fair value measurement of financial assets

in Note 2(g).

Refer to Notes 3b(ii), 19 and 27(d) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$96,880,000, were categorised
as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy, which
represented 35.8% of the Group’s net assets.

The Group engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer (the “external valuer”) to apply
valuation techniques to determine the fair values of
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
that are not quoted in active markets. These valuation
techniques, in particular those included significant
unobservable inputs, involved subjective judgements
and assumptions. The sensitivity of the assumptions
used may have a material impact on the valuation of
these financial assets.

We identified the fair value measurement of financial
assets categorised as Level 3 as a key audit matter due
to (i) the determination of the model adopted and key
inputs required management’s significant judgement
and estimation; and (ii) the prescribed value of the
financial assets categorised as Level 3 is significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial
assets categorised as Level 3 included:

J understanding and evaluating the internal
controls relating to management’s model used,
development of significant assumptions and
major data inputs and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty;

o evaluating the external valuer’s competence,
capability and objectivity;

o engaging auditor’s valuation expert to assist
us in evaluating the valuation methodologies
and key assumptions adopted by the Group’s
external valuer in the valuations of financial
assets categorised as Level 3 by (i) examining
the terms of the financial instruments and
the relevant agreements; (ii) assessing the
reasonableness of valuation methodologies; and
(iii) assessing the key parameters used against
available market information;

J evaluating the adequacy of related disclosures
of valuations of financial assets at fair value in
the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

2024 Annual Report
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

] Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

] Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

] Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yip Chi Chiu.

Prism Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yip Chi Chiu

Practising certificate number: P06934

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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2024 3R

REBEBIZERERATR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR*LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moERREMhEANR X

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT_MF+-_A=1T—-HILFE

NOTE 2024 2023
(k=3 1 3 —E_Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTAET
Revenue Iz 4
Revenue from asset management REBEEB W% 23,707 42,746
Revenue from investment and financial REKRELRMBHARSE 2 W
advisory services 525 435
Income from underwriting and placingof ~ REZFHBHREE 2K A
securities 18,295 -
Sales of goods HEEm 44,460 36,636
(Loss) income from securities trading and KEBHEERREZ(BR)
investments, net WA ERE (6,328) 9,731
80,659 89,548
Cost of sales and services rendered HERCRERBRA (60,107) (33,968)
20,552 55,580
Other income H A 5 12,611 7,011
Selling and distribution costs HERKHER (14) (14)
General and administrative expenses —BRAIBZH (42,077) (76,767)
Impairment losses (recognised) reversedon Bt & R A& (B R) &M@ 2
financial assets BEEE (36) 3,629
Loss from operations REXRER (8,964) (10,561)
Finance costs H%ER 6(a) (379) (4,426)
Share of profits of joint venture [Efh & & A 8l Al 1,976 1,739
Share of losses of associate BB EAFER (1,483) 5
Loss before taxation BAaEE (8,850) (13,248)
Income tax credit FTEB R R - 10
Loss for the year rFEERHE (8,850) (13,238)
Attributable to: LT AT S
Equity shareholders of the Company ARRERRE (9,779) (13,118)
Non-controlling interests EERER 929 (120)
Loss for the year rFEEFR (8,850) (13,238)
Loss per share BREE 10 HK(0.65) cents  HK(0.87) cents
- Basic and diluted - EAREE (0.65) 3 1l (0.87) % Al
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

oA kkEMEERHR A

For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE

NOTE 2024 2023
it & —E-ME —TC-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET
Loss for the year KEEEE (8,850) (13,238)
Other comprehensive expense: Ht2E X H:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently ~ E# At @ BN HE B
to profit or loss: ZHEA
Exchange differences arising on translation M ENBEBELECER Z5H
of foreign operations (480) (419)
Total comprehensive expense for the year A FE2H X H A H (9,330) (13,657)
Attributable to: UTALER:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAIEHERKRE (10,094) (13,425)
Non-controlling interests MR 764 (232)
Total comprehensive expense for the year 2" £ E 2 X H 4 5§ (9,330) (13,657)

The notes on pages 157 to 291 form part of these financial
statements.

HREISTE2NENMERLEEMBRERA
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REEFEZERERAA
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
im 6 B IS A R R

As at 31 December 2024
RZE-_mMFE+-_A=+—H

NOTE 2024 2023
B 3% —E-_ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FETL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERHZE 11 7,178 14,795
Interest in an associate REE DR 2 & 14 5,017 =
Interest in a joint venture AEE DRI ZE® 13 8,462 6,709
Rental deposits HE®e 18 1,086 1,086
21,743 22,590
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 16 6,667 6,719
Trade receivables EUWE 5 ER 17 20,784 45474
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & + T8 1 58 & H o fE Y Bk 7R 18 19,811 7,950
Debt investments at amortised cost g ?él KAGTECEBERE 15 340 21,020
Financial assets at fair value through profitor Z A FEt A BH L2 MEE
loss 19 111,082 115,032
Time deposits with original maturity date ~ REIBHBB=FEANTHEFX
over three months 20 60,927 14,845
Cash and cash equivalents BekHeFEER 20 67,130 89,948
286,741 300,988
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Contract liabilities EHNEE 4(b) 15,719 3,272
Accruals and other payables B HBEREMmENER 21 15,361 30,390
Lease liabilities HE&ERE 22 3,341 3,174
Current tax payable JE BN ER B IR 25(a) 794 798
=~ 35215 . 37,634
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZE 251,526 263,354
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZAER A AR 273,269 285,944
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY E =K
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 2,620 5,961

NET ASSETS

EERE 270,649 279,983
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R e MBI

As at 31 December 2024
RZBE-_m&E+=-A=+—H

NOTE 2024 2023
B 3% —E-_ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE

Share capital R R 26(c) 14,998 14,998
Reserves 1B 262,144 272,238

Total equity attributable to equity FRuEERREGARESR
shareholders of the Company 277,142 287,236
Non-controlling interests FERER (6,493) (7,253)
TOTAL EQUITY ‘R 270,649 279,983

The consolidated financial statements on pages 151 to 291
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2025, and are signed on its behalf by:

Jiao Shuge
Director

EF

The notes on pages 157 to 291 form part of these financial
statements.

HAFISIE2MNBZHEAVBERRENE
“ThRE=ZA-t+ N \BEEE=gHEREET
HF OUHANTEERAEESE.

Wu Guangze
REE
Director

EF
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2024 E3f REEFEZERER AR
CONSGLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MOEMEEIR
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_ME+_A=+-HLEE
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRAERRRER
Non-
Share Share  Translation Other  Accumulated controlling
capial premium Teserve reserye losses Total interests — Total equity
BE  ROEE EiEE  AbEE  Zi6R B fBRER  BER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Térn  TEr  TAr  TEx TEn  TEn TEx  TEn
(Note26  (Note26  (Note 26
(Note 26(c) (i) (i) (i)
(W (Wi (W&
(W 3H26(0) (i) (o)) (i)
Balance at 1 January 2023 “RCCE-f-HER 14998 498,790 (780) 3B (5778 300,661 (021) 293640
Changes in equity for 2023 CEICERERD:
Loss for the year TERER - - = -1y (13N (1200 (1323%)
Other comprehensive expense for the year KEREMREYE - - (307) - i 307) (1) (419)
Total comprehensive expense for the year REERERLAE - - (307) - By (134) @) (1365)
Balance at 31 December 2023 ZEIZETZA=T-H 14,998 498,790 (1,087) 3431 (228,3%) 287,36 (725) 279,983

Balance at 1 January 2024

“RCRE-R-RER

14,998 498,790 (1,087) 331 (2288%) 287,36 (7253) 219983

Changes in equity for 2024 CECRERERD:

Loss for the year TERER - - - - 9779 919 99 (8850)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEEBAERL - - (315) = = (315) (165) (480)
Total comprehensive expense for the year RERRARLER - - (319) - (9779 (10,09) T6d (9330)
Deregistration of subsidiary 1IN - - - - - - (4) (4)

Balance at 31 December 2024

CECMETCACT-BER

14,998 498,790 (1,40) 3431 (38675 2714 (6493) 270,649

The notes on pages 157 to 291 form part of these financial

statements.

HANFIS7TE29 T BEMNNEALERTBERED
—E e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE

2024 Annual Report

NOTE 2024 2023
P & “E-ME —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Cash from (used in) operations ReXBREHMARE 20(b) 8,821 (23,022)
Bank interest received BEWRITHE 3,931 2,520
Income tax paid E 2351 Fr 15 85t = (157)
Income tax refunded BREMEH - 628
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) REeFZHMB(FRAREEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 12,752 (20,031)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Payments for purchase of property, plant BADE BEREZEIHN
and equipment 2B (6) (73)
Increase in time deposits with original REIBBREB=EA T H
maturity date over three months FRIE M (46,082) (14,820)
Payment for investment in an associate REERANRENK (6,500) -
Proceeds from sale of debt investment collateral H & &% % & & 8 & Fr 5 78 20,665 =
Net proceed received for disposal of subsidiary i & Kf & X 7] F1 15 5L B % & 12 389 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEHFFERESFE (31,534) (14,893)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMER 20(c) = (46,977)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEHENELRT S 20(c) (3,174) (7,089)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSNFEIHS 20(c) (379) (714)
Interest paid RESENN 20(c) - (3,962)
Repayment to a related party M) 8 Bk 7 (8 R ;R 20(c) = (47,008)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZHFABRLTZE (3,553) (105,750)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRASEEHEERALRE
EQUIVALENTS (22,335) (140,674)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—-HzZBEE&R
AT 1 JANUARY ReEEER 89,948 230,568
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE NEEXRH 2T E
CHANGES (483) 54
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RTZA=+-HBZEER
AT 31 DECEMBER RE¢ZEER 67,130 89,948

statements.

The notes on pages 157 to 291 form part of these financial FHRFEI57E291ENMH T AL SHEHREN
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

OCI International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Level 23, 28 Hennessy
Road, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in asset
management, provision of investment and financial
advisory services, provision of securities underwriting
and placing services, trading of wines and beverage, and
securities trading and investments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

—RaEn
REBRERERAERAR(AATDNHA
EHETMRNIRERREEBR QA
HBEMREEBME XS AAER 2 A (5B
R Ee ARG M # = E
& F 2 & X B 5 5l & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands & & /&
B ERFE285R231 -

ARAR/—HAREERAF  ENBA
AZIBEBREEERE RERER
MBHEARYE RUEEFEHEMEER
B ETHEERRREENESFEER
HIZE -

SAMBBREDUBTBED 27
BRLARRANDREERAREN S
5| 55 % -
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OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
= 6

15 ¥y 2% Bl 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Bz

2.

— F —
=
— =

mEFTA=T—BLEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Material accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.

2024 Annual Report
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2024 3R

REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interest in an associate
and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit of loss (“"FVPL") are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(g).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about the carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

2. BAEBHERKRE)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fm © B 5 ¥R % Bid 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EASHEBKE)
(c) Changes in accounting policies c) EBstBE2H

The Group has applied the following amendments AEBEKEESHMASRMGH

to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial NTEBVBREERBITAEHR

statements for the current accounting period: RAGHBRNZE B @K :

e Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of o FBABEFERAFIRUEETAR) -
financial statements — Classification of MBHREx22Y - BEIEAR
liabilities as current or non-current (“2020 NBAERBI=B=FFE
amendments”) HE: D)

e Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of s BAEGHENFEIRUEFTAX)
financial statements — Non-current liabilities MBHm&x 22V WHEEHED
with covenants (“2022 amendments") nBaE(ZBF87

x])

e Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases — Lease e EFEBMBmEEINFI6HE(E

Liability in a sale and leaseback AR MHE - ERMEBFHME
EA8E

e Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash e BAEGTERNFETRUERAX)
flows and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: BeReXR BN KRS E
Disclosures — Supplier finance arrangements BIE75R ¢ T H: #E: #

FEEEE L

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs in the MRAFRERNEETEEM B RS

current year has had no material impact on the HEAHAEBRREAFERBEFE

Group's financial positions and performance for the ZHBRARERRAR AZEHRE

current and prior years and/or on the disclosures MBERERFEFERIREEATE -

set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new and AEBVEERETANRAGEHME
amendments to HKFRSs that is not yet effective for W AR AR 2 FE] R ] B8 B 1% i

the current accounting period. HAHER -
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until
the date on which control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI") represent the
equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

2. BAEBHERKRE)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
= 6

15 ¥y 2% Bl 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Bz

2.

— F —
=
— =

mEFTA=T—BLEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

For each business combination, the Group can
elect to measure any NCI either at fair value or at
the NClI's proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NClI are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. NCI in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between NCI and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of NCI and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see Note 2(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

2.

2024 Annual Report
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over the financial and operating
policies.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the
Group or Company has joint control, whereby the
Group or Company has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets
and obligations for its liabilities

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate
or joint venture that forms part of the Group's
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see
Notes 2(f) and 2(j)(ii)). At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method, together with any other
long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture, after applying the ECL model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see
Note 2(j)(i)).

Unrealised gains arising resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint
venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains,
but only to the extent there is no evidence of an
impairment.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

retained interest is not remeasured.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(g)).
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are
stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(j)
(ii)), unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
NCl in the acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

Other investments in securities

The Group's policies for investments in securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at FVPL for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see Note 27(d).
These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification.

(i) Non-equity investments
Non-equity investments are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Expected credit
losses, interest income calculated using
the effective interest method (see Note
2 (u)(ii)(b)), foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is

recognised in profit or loss.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Otherinvestments in securities (Continued)

(i) Non-equity investments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI") — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection
of contractual cash flows and sale.
Expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or
loss and computed in the same manner
as if the financial asset was measured at
amortised cost. The difference between
the fair value and the amortised cost
is recognised in other comprehensive
income (“OCI"). When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated
in OCl is recycled from equity to profit
or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g)

(h)

Other investments in securities (Continued)
(i) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL, unless the investment
is not held for trading purposes and on
initial recognition the group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in OCI. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. If such election is made for a
particular investment, at the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings and not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss (see Note 2(u)(ii)(a)).

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest (see Note
2(i)) and items of plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Properties leased for own  Over the period of the

use lease term

Over the shorter of the
terms of the lease
or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixture and
equipment

5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each report period and adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for leases that have a short lease term of
12 months or less, and leases of low-value items.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value item, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is recognised
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Notes 2(h) and 2(j)(ii)).
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits are accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in non-equity securities carried at
amortised cost (see Notes 2(g)(i), 2(u)(ii)(b) and
2(j)(i)). Any excess of the nominal value over the
initial fair value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in
the cost of right-of use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
if the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
lease modification, which means a change in the
scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract if
such modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case, the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the

following items:

° financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables
and debt investments at amortised cost);

and

° contract assets (see Note 2(1)).

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including listed securities and unlisted
investment funds, are not subject to the ECL

assessment.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(). Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Generally, credit losses are
measured as the present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following rates if the effect is
material:

o fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

. variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are the portion of
ECLs that result from default events that
are possible within the 12 months after
the reporting date (or a shorter period
if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months); and

o lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR”)

When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

date of initial recognition.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

e  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument'’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and
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4 /A [

Wk O l\

&7 ¥ ¥ %% Bff 51

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (“SICR”)

(Continued)

o existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in non-equity securities
that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in OClI
and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).
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2024 3R

REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(). Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

o significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

o significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or contract assets is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets
(other than inventories and contract assets) to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or cash-generating
units (“CGU"s). Goodwill arising from a
business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a
pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed. For other assets, an impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the
resulting carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see Notes 2(j)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first in first out method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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2024 3R

REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(u)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the terms in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 2(j)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 2(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note
2(u)). A contract liability is also recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such latter cases,
a corresponding receivable is also recognised (see
Note 2(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 2(u)).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m])

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration
and only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain
a significant financing component and other
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method and including an allowance for
credit losses (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and other
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECLs in accordance with the policy set out in (see
Note 2(j)(i)).

Trade and other payables (other than refund
labilities)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.
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2024 3R

REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The
par value of the shares issued and fully paid is
recognised in the share capital account. Any excess
of proceeds from a new issue of shares (net of any
incremental costs directly attributable to the new
issue) over the par value of the shares issued is
recognised in the share premium account.

(p)

(q)

(r)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially

at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently,

these borrowings are stated at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with Note 2(w).

Employee benefits

()

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the polynomial
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items recognised directly in equity
or in OCI.

2.

BA 8 5B ()
) EEBER ()

(s)

(ii)

(iii)

&
Fi 13

2024 Annual Report

LUR 17 73 B 7 49 19 5 (&)
REBHE BHEE2BR
BBEREREZ YNBEESF
EHERz R RFEELZE
A EXBGARBZF
BEzBRualk BIFERKZEE
MXAERAREE AIRNE
AfEBPELHERE - RNE
BRH CEHIASAIZEHER
HAEERBREBECERECZE
BREB(LNEANRERTF L
HEAR) HEREEZED A
ARB B T E R R B %K
MK ERRIN - BRAE R
RUABRFEHERR BEINBER
BETE(ERTAD ZETR
MEOEERARANEE)XBER
EREREXRARESR
) e

ARIEEF

AR AR R AN R E N B R
PR 48 A - A 2 fin 7S & 1B
RF R A& LR A R B A K
AE(AREEBE)T LARER

B
B BEE RN ERETR

H-ERBaER BEXKAH
SEERNED T REMEE WS
REEREIE B BRI



2024 3R

REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable
or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustments to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for:

— temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences;

—  temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture to
the extent that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future;

—  taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill; and

—  those related to the income taxes arising from
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Future taxable profits
are determined based on the reversal of relevant
taxable temporary differences. If the amount of
taxable temporary differences is insufficient to
recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future
taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on
the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the
Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t}  Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts (Continued)

()

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, a separate asset
is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement is limited
to the carrying amount of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract. A
provision for onerous contracts is measured
at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract, which is determined based on the
incremental costs of fulfilling the obligation
under that contract and an allocation of other
costs directly related to fulfilling that contract.
Before a provision is established, the group
recognises any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract (see Note 2(j)(ii)).
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when

it arises from the sale of goods, the provision
of services or other sources (including securities
trading and investments) in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a
gross basis. In determining whether the Group
acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the products
before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group's ability to direct
the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as
value added tax or other sales taxes.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

2.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u] Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Investment and financial advisory
services income

Depending on the nature of the services
and the contract terms, investment
advisory services fees and financial
advisory services fees are recognised in
profit or loss over time using a method
that depicts the Group's performance,
or at a point in time when the service is
completed.

Asset management fees

Asset management fees include periodic
management fees calculated based
on assets under management and
performance-based fee. The fees are
recognised progressively over time using
a method that depicts the Group’s
performance, to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

Income from underwriting and placing
of securities

The Group provides placing or
underwriting services to customers for
their fund raising activities in equity and
debt capital markets. Revenue in respect
of the commission on underwriting and
placing of securities is recognised when
the relevant placing or underwriting
activities are completed. Accordingly,
the revenue is recognised at a point in
time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u] Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue from other sources and other
income

(a)

(b)

(c)

Dividends

o Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. The “effective
interest rate” is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired). However, for financial
assets that have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset
is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis.

Realised/unrealised gains or losses
from financial assets at FVPL

Net gains (losses) on financial assets at
FVPL are recognised on the transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes
are exchanged and unrealised fair value
gains (losses) on financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the period in which
they arise.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue from other sources and other
income (Continued)
(d) Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the reporting
date. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the
date of transactions are used. Foreign currency
differences are recognised in OCl and accumulated
in the exchange reserve, except to the extent that
the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its
entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative
amount in the exchange reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal. On disposal of
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation that have been
attributed to the NCI shall be derecognised, but
shall not be reclassified to profit or loss. If the
Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary
but retains control, then the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.
When the Group disposes of only part of an
associate or joint venture while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion
of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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2,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(z)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Crypto currency

Since the Group actively trades crypto-currencies,
purchasing them with a view to their resale in
the near future, and generating a profit from
fluctuations in the price, the Company applies the
guidance in HKAS 2 for commodity broker— traders
and measures the crypto currency at fair value less
costs to sell. The Company considers there are
no significant “costs to sell" crypto currency and
hence measurement of crypto currency is based
on their fair values with changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss in the period of the
changes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting

policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart

from those involving estimations (see below), that
the directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies

and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

i)

Determination of consolidation scope

All facts and circumstances must be taken
into consideration in the assessment of
whether the Group, as an investor, controls
the investee. The principle of control includes
three elements: (i) power over the investee;
(ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from involvement with the investee; and (iii)
the ability to use power over the investee to
affect the amount of investors’ returns. The
Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

For structured entities, the Group assesses
whether (i) there are any other holders in
these investment funds which have practical
ability to remove the Group, and prevent the
Group to direct the relevant activities of the
investment funds; and (ii) the combination of
investments it holds, if any, together with its
remuneration creates exposure to variability
of returns from the activities of the structured
entities that is of such significance indicating
that the Group is a principal. The structured
entities shall be consolidated if the Group acts
in the role of principal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b)

The following are the key assumptions concerning

the future, and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that

may have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

i)

Loss allowances on financial assets at
amortised cost

In determining expected credit loss for
financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the most significant judgements relate to
defining what is considered to be a significant
increase in credit risk and in making
assumptions and estimates to incorporate
relevant information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of economic
conditions. A high degree of uncertainty
is involved in making estimations using
assumptions that are highly subjective and
very sensitive to the risk factors. Management
reviews the loss allowance on a regular basis.
Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional impairment charge to profit or loss.

2024 Annual Report
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(b) (Continued)

ii)  Fair value of financial instruments

The Group holds financial instruments that
are not traded or quoted in active markets.
The Group uses its judgement to select the
appropriate methods and make assumptions
based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period to estimate
the fair value of such financial instruments
classified as FVPL. Valuation techniques
include the market approach using prices
and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical
or comparable assets or liabilities such
as net asset values as provided by fund
administrators, broker quotes, last transacted
price and discounted cash flow approach
which utilises inputs such as projected
cash flow and discount rate. Broker quotes
obtained from the pricing sources (such as
pricing agencies or bond/debt market makers)
may be indicative and not executable or
binding. The Group would exercise judgement
and estimates on the quantity and quality
of pricing sources uses. Although best
estimate is used in estimating fair values,
there are inherent limitations in any valuation
technique. Estimated fair values may differ
from the values that would have been used if
a readily available market existed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 3. FIRESHIE NG ANPARARENT

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY ZIRIR(E)
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (%)

iii) Income tax i) P8 H

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and significant estimation
are required in determining the provision for
income tax. Management carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes
in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and
temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered. The Group has
not recognised deferred income tax assets
in respect of estimated tax losses carried
forward disclosed in Note 25(b) as there is no
evidence that future taxable profits will be
available.
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4,

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are asset
management, provision of investment and
financial advisory services, provision of securities
underwriting and placing services, trading of

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

4 WERDBHS
(a) Wz

wines and beverage, and securities trading and

investments.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

PA K 78 25

AEEFEXHREEER RHE
BREMMBHEARE REIFHFE
HEREERE BEERKMES
EERERE-

RIBEMIBRBRIADZIEFAE

customers by major products or service lines is as M=
follows:
2024 2023
—E-WE —ZT-_=4£f
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue from contracts with ERAMBHREEREISH
customers within the scope of HENEEFHNEHAK
HKFRS 15 A
Disaggregated by major productsor X EZE R K RE K E o
service lines
- Asset management - BEETIE 23,707 42,746
— Investment and financial advisory —-BERMBERRS
services 525 435
— Income from underwriting and - REEFFBHERES
placing of securities Z WA 18,295 -
— Trading of wines and beverage - BEEREBEARM 44,460 36,636
86,987 79,817
Revenue from other sources KRB HMRIEN KR
Change in fair value of financial KAFEFAERZZ SR
assets at fair value through profit EEANTFEZSH
or loss (7,449) 9,392
Dividend income g B A - 339
Gain on trading of cryptocurrencies B B I % & ¥ &9 UL 25 1,121 -
(6,328) 9,731
Total st 80,659 89,548
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

Bz

4,
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mEFTA=T—BLEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Note
4(c).

The Group has applied practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its income from
investment and financial advisory services and asset
management as the Group recognises revenue
at the amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed
to date.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to exempt the
disclosure of revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date to its revenue from
sales of wines and beverage as the performance
obligation is part of a contract that has an original
expected duration of one year or less.

The Group will recognise the expected revenue
in the future when the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts are satisfied (see
Note 2(u)).

4,
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_T_MEFT-_A=+-HILEFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4L BBERNEBRSE(E)

(b) Liabilities related to contract with customers (b) BERHEEZFEANERE
2024 2023
el 11 3 —B-=F%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTAT
Contract liabilities aHAEE
— Billings in advance of - FRAEAEEREHNEN
performance in respect of GRS
asset management activity - 577
- Billings in advance of —ERAUBHERAREHNELD
performance in respect of GRS
financial advisory services 615 -
— Billings in advance of - FHEEAEERRBEER
performance in respect EH) B A TE R
of trading of wines and
beverage activity 15,104 2,695
15,719 3,272
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

b BWBERDBPHRS(F)

2024 Annual Report

Liabilities related to contract with customers (b) EEHEEFEANEREHE)
(Continued)
Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEBEZZE
2024 2023
ZE-MF —T_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Balance at 1 January R—A—HzZz&% 3,272 1,548
Decrease in contract liabilities FABREVNFTAEGNE
as a result of recognising BHRABREDERRD
revenue during the year that
was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of
the year (3,272) (971)
Increase in contract liabilities B 75 55 R RIS 80 B A0 FE Y
as a result of billings in REEHBEEEM
advance of performance of
financial advisory services 615 -
Increase in contract liabilities FEARKBEENRELD
as a result of billings in JERT B E QB &GN
advance of trading of wines
and beverage activity 15,104 2,695
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—Bz#&#&% 15,719 3,272

When the Group receives fee income before
financial advisory services commences, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of the
contract, until the revenue recognised on the
project exceeds the amount of fee income received.

2 N5 B B RS RE R AR 75 R 46 A UL
RERRAER E8EASOMSBR
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Liabilities related to contract with customers
(Continued)

Movements in contract liabilities (Continued)
When the Group receives advance payment
from customers to purchase wine and beverage
products before the customers take possession
of and accepts the products, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of the contract, until
the revenue recognised on the relevant contract
exceeds the amount of the advance payment
received.

The amount of billings in advance of financial
advisory services and trading of wines and
beverage activity are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

Segment reporting

The Group's executive directors are the chief
operation decision makers (“CODM") as they
collectively make strategic decisions towards the
Group’s operations based on nature of business.

In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the CODM
for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following reportable segments:

(a) asset management

(b) investment and financial advisory services
(c)  underwriting and placing of securities

(d) securities trading and investments

(e) trading of wines and beverage

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING(Continued) L WHERABPHSE(E)
(c) Segment reporting (c) ZHMWSEH
Segment revenue and results D E W R FEE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with KEEFPEANK D EERK S
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, AHE s ERAEER T = @
as well as information regarding the Group’s FRZZE_=F+ZRA=+—HL
reportable segments as provided to the CODM FENERIBE RS BRBATMG M
for the purposes of resources allocation and MEELERRERBEARLEE
assessment of segment performance for the years AEHmDENERFHINWT -
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out
below.
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_ZF_-_NME+=-A=+—HL
£
Investment
and financial  Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERHME  BFAHR BEEER BEER
EEER BARE 45 %E HREER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A A AR TAR Az ThAx
Revenue from contracts with REEFANNNE
customers
At a point in time RE-KBY - - 18,295 - 44,460 62,755
QOver time BR-BEH 23,707 525 - - - 24,232
23,707 525 18,295 - 44,460 86,987
Revenue from other sources REEMGRRH Y E - - - (6,328) - (6,328)
Reportable segment revenue (loss) T2 H 2 B K& (F4) 23,707 525 18,295 (6,328) 44,460 80,659
Reportable segment profit (loss) T2 &2 HHF (F#E) 6,275 523 191 (7,689) (3,886) (4,586)
Other income A 12,611
Unallocated corporate and ﬁi RARREMS M
other expenses (15,013)
Share of losses of associate EEBRERAER (1,483)
Finance costs BHER (379)
Loss before taxation BEAER (8,850)
Income tax credit RERES -
Loss for the year FEEE (8,850)
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4.
(c] Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

BRABWS (&)
(c) &S E)
7 EE W R ()
BE_Z_=f+t-RA=t+t-—-HL
FE

Investment
and financial Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERYEK BHAHER FHEER BEER
BEER FARE (5 kA SRMEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAL TAL TARL TR TEL
Revenue from contracts with REEFGHANNE
customers
At a point in time RE-BRE - - - - 36,636 36,636
Over time BH-RERE 42,746 435 - - - 43,181
42,746 435 - - 36,636 79,817
Revenue from other sources REEtRENUE = = = 9,731 = 9,731
Reportable segment revenue EEE B e 42,746 435 - 9,731 36,636 89,548
Reportable segment profit (loss) T 2 &2 HHF (FE) 8,798 43 - (3.243) (6,993) (1,006)
Other income B A 7,011
Unallocated corporate and other ~ RAB AR RE M T
expenses (14,827)
Finance costs BHER (4,426)
Loss before taxation BRBNER (13,248)
Income tax credit AERES 10
Loss for the year FEEE (13,238)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and income generated
by those segments.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned
by or loss from each segment without allocation of
other income, share of losses of associate, finance
costs and unallocated corporate and other expenses.
This is the information reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

4,
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4.

(c)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's
assets and liabilities by reportable and operating
segments:

As at 31 December 2024

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

BRABWS (&)
(c) &S E)
PHEEREE
LUTREEZR/MBEN R ZAKHE
BERBBZOM:

R-EBE-_MNE+=-A=+—H

Investment
and financial  Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory  and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERMH EHEEER BHEER HEER
EEER BARE g RE HmEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THR THR TR TEr TEr
ASSETS EE
Segment assets THEE 32,012 - - 111,488 21,193 164,693
Unallocated items: FARER:
Property, plant and equipment ng BRERRE 7,158
Interest in an associate REERTNESR 5,017
Deposits, prepayments and other &% B RER £ 4
receivables JE Y BB 3,559
Time deposits with original maturity RSB B=E A M
date over three months EHFH 60,927
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEER 67,130
Total assets BELE 308,484
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities PHEE 9,237 615 1,556 2,465 15,178 29,051
Unallocated items: *ORER:
Other payables EERRR 2,823
Lease liabilities RERE 5,961
Total liabilities RERE 37,835
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BE-_T-_NF+-A=1+—-BLFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 4, BRAWIRS (&
(c) Segment reporting (Continued) (c) DWWEH &)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) SHEEREEE)
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-_=%+-A=+—H
Investment
and financial Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset advisory and placing of trading and wines and
management services securities investments beverage Total
RERHH EREER FHEER BEER
BEER FARE (5 %A mEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR ThR TiEn Tin T
ASSETS £E
Segment assets THEE 53,651 435 - 136,862 13,903 204,851
Unallocated items: FORER:
Property, plant and equipment ng RERRE 11,119
Deposits, prepayments and other &% - BRFBRE {1/
receivables WEE 2,815
Time deposits with original maturity 55|85 AR & =A%
date over three months TEER 14,845
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhReSEES 89,948
Total assets AESE 323,578
LIABILITIES a8
Segment liabilities RN | 16,184 - - 9,701 3,255 29,140
Unallocated items: AABER:
Other payables EfEAEE 5,320
Lease liabilities BERE 9,135
Total liabilities BfEEE 43,595
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable and
operating segments, other than certain
property, plant and equipment, interest in an
associate, certain deposits, prepayments and
other receivables, time deposits with original
maturity date over three months, and cash
and cash equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable and
operating segments, other than certain other
payables and lease liabilities.

Other segment information
Amounts included in measure of segment profit or
loss or segment assets:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Investment

Asset  and financial
management  advisory services

RERME

BEEE BARE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_T_MET_A=+t—-HILFE

b BWBERABHRS (&

(c)

Underwriting
and placing
of securities
EEEHER

EE
HK$000
TR

“*Hﬁi(é‘%)

PHEEREE(E)
REENBEZDBERREERD
fic

s MABEENEKREZBREEEZED
MoHEETHE ﬁ%& VeI
e BN ERD BT
% EH\E&EmEW%E
AERIHEBB=M/ANTEH
FRAEReRRSFEER
BR S o

ki

/tgn

s FMARABEIEEEZHREEZED
MoEETEMBEMNEKRERERE
ERERI-

Bt HEH
BRERFESEHEMEEEBRD I
BEZRIE

BE-_Z-_HmW&E+=ZA=+—AH1L
FE

Securities Trading of

trading and wines and
investments beverage  Unallocated Total

#FEER BEHER
RE HREE AAE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn TEn TEn

Additions to property, plant ~ #1% - % R &

and equipment RE 5 -
Depreciation of property, EN Y ET

plant and equipment il 13 -
Impairment losses recognised L& REEHR 2

on financial assets HEBE = =
Interest in joint venture RAERRZER 8,462 =
Share of profits of joint EEAERAET

venture (1,976) -

= 3,648 3,960 7,621

36 = = 36
= = = 8,462

= = = (1,976)
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4 /A [

#n & B 15 ¥ R B 51

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c] Segment reporting (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2024 Annual Report

b BWBERDBPHRS(F)

(c)

D EWE(E)

Bt 7 s EH (&)
BE-_F-_=f+t+=-HA=+—-H8L
FE

Investment ~ Underwriting Securities Trading of
Asset and financial and placing trading and wines and
management  advisory services of securities investments beverage Unallocated Total
REREB  EFBER  EFEER BEER
BEER FARK [ k& HREE ARR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER ThER ThER ThER ThER ThER ThER
Additions to property, plant ~ #1% - B E Rkt
and equipment RE = = = - - 73 73
Depreciation of property, nE BRERRE
plant and equipment ik 3 - - - 3,648 3,966 7,637
Impairment losses reversed ~ FEeBEEREZ
on financial assets BEBE - - - (3,629) - - (3.629)
Interest in joint venture REERA LR 6,709 - - - - - 6,709
Share of profits of joint EEAERAER
venture (1,739) - - - - - (1,739)
Information about major customers BREITEEFZEH
The Group's customer base is diversified and AEEBZEPHZTIL B=(ZF
includes three (2023: two) customers with whom TZF MBRFP IR SGBEHANR
the value of transactions has exceeded 10% (2023: EERANR(TERREREEFSFEER

10%) of the Group’s revenues (excluding income
(loss) from securities trading and investments) as

REEZWA(EE)10%(ZF =
=F:10%) HIWMT -

follows:
Notes 2024 2023
e —Z-—mgE Z—ZT-=%F
HK$000 HK$'000
F#E T THTT
Customer A B2FEA (i) 20,000 38,003
Customer B =FB (i), (iv) 10,254 N/A 7~ i A
Customer C EPC (iii), (iv) 9,053 N/A 1~ iE
Customer D 2FD (i), (iv)  N/A X\ A 11,018
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REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(c)

Segment reporting (Continued)
Information about major customers (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Revenue from asset management business segment,
calculated in terms of assets under management.

(i) Revenue from underwriting and placing of securities
business segment.

(iii)  Revenue from trading of wines and beverage business
segment.

(iv)  The corresponding value of transaction did not exceed
10% of the Group's revenue.

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, interest in joint
venture and interest in associate (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset,
in the case of property, plant and equipment, and
the location of operations, in the case of interest in
joint venture and interest in associate.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_T_MET_A=+t—-HILFE

b WERABPHRS (&)

(c) &S E)
BREEEFZEHN(E)
Bt 5

(h REBEEEBEXEBHBzUZE
EREEE -

(i) FEREEZHFEBOIHFWA-

(i) REAEBERRRESEBIMLZ

I 2% o

(ivy HEMNZXSEBETBBEANE®EKA
#10% °

1h 7 & H

TEREINEBOXAEEK B IR
FRERMAEBEME  BE KK
B REERAIZERENBE R
AvEZ(BEXRRBEE) DM
BANEEN BEPMHENEIR
RREERBXINEVOLE - &
EERNBEENWBUEDNERE
Fma%uﬁmm% e ]
ME)REENNUEBE(RALARZ
xRk i“**“?ZT’éﬁnﬁﬁ ) °

Revenues from external

customers Specified non-current assets
REHNBEE 2K BEFXRRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EomE —T=F ZEZONF —T_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FER FE T
Hong Kong BB 86,987 79,817 12,189 14,778
The People’s Republic ## A R £ HME
of China ("PRC") ( [#E]) - - 8,468 6,726
86,987 79,817 20,657 21,504
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_F_ME+-_A=+—-HBLEE

2024 Annual Report

5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hfthik A
2024 2023
—E-NE —FE-=4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FE T
Bank Interest income FTR B U A 4,230 3,032
Income from termination of KERIEFBEHETHEZB/A
memorandum of understanding (R Kt 5E30)
(see Note 30) - 3,286
Gain (loss) on disposal of a subsidiary H & i B A 7 2 Wz (B 18) 6,356 (30)
Sundry income MR A 2,025 723
12,611 7,011
6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. [Ri% AR 8

Loss before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting):

BB AEBERAER (Gt A) T A EEEK
=R

(a) Finance costs (a) MEEHA
2024 2023
—E-_MUE —_ZET=-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T
Interest on other borrowings HMEEMNE - 1,195
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBMNE 379 714

Interest on amount due to e BB SR F B
a related party - 2,317
Other borrowing costs H & B AR - 200
379 4,426
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fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) [ iR Bl & 18 (&
(b) Staff costs (b) EIMAK
2024 2023
—EomE —=EE-=£
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T
Directors’ emoluments (Note 8) EEM S (HES)

— fees and other emoluments — e kHEAMN e 1,209 2,064
Other staff costs EMmETHX

— salaries, allowances and bonus —&H e FAKE4A 20,263 32,307

— retirement benefits scheme —IR K& T 5T 8 H 3

contributions 508 652
21,980 35,023
(c) Otheritems (c) HfbiEH
2024 2023
—E-NFE —TZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FE T
Depreciation charge (Note 11) e (M)
— owned property, plant and - BEVE BEEKXRE
equipment 939 954
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 6,682 6,683
7,621 7,637
Impairment losses recognised BB B R ()

(reversed)

— debt investments —ERRE 36 (3,629)
Auditors’ remunerations % SRD B & 700 700
Legal and professional expenses FERBEXER 1,758 20,255
Cost of inventories (Note 16) FERA (K E16) 42,003 33,968
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) GNIE B R (W 2s) - FEE 183 (328)
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216 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fm © B 5 ¥R % Bid 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. NiGoEaMNEMhEZTBWR XA
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE = i
INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or a) REcEEREMEZEBERAN
loss and other comprehensive income represents: WIEE -
2024 2023
—E_MmE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current tax BN HA % 1]
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - EBANEH
Over-provision in respect of prior years i@ & 4 [& 8 58 % # - (10)
Provision for the year FEEB = -
- (10)
(@) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the () RERSHSRABELES
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, ORISR N S
the Group is not subject to any income tax in W 5% R BR R I ) AE A FT S
these two jurisdictions. o
(b) For the years ended 31 December 2024 and ) BE-F_NFR-_F_=F
2023, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified TZA=+-BLEFE K&
entity of the Group is calculated in accordance BEERERNTENGSHD
with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. IRIE R 15 BB R M AR5 e
Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime, REMEHRBEBMRE - &5
the first HK$2 million of profits of a qualifying BRERRNE2EEE TH
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and MR8 25%ME - MiBidE2 8/
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at BATH R AR A Z16.5% R
16.5%. The profits of other group entities in Blo T FEFIE BB XM AR
Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered MAKREREHMERONE
profits tax rates regime will continue to be i 48t 1 4R B T R R 16.5% BB o
taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax HRAKRERBE-_T_MF
has been provided for in the consolidated —E-_=FfT-A=+—8H
financial statements as the Group has no I E I A R R R MO R
estimated assessable profits for the years RirEMBRERRE B G

ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. T8
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REBEBIZERERATR

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represents:
(Continued)

(c) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is 25%
(2023: 25%).

No PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for in the consolidated financial
statements as the Group has no estimated
assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_T_MEFT-_A=+-HILEFE

RECEBREMEBRE XA
FiwmaE)

@) REEEEREMZEAKRERAN
BIEE (&)

(@ ':F‘ B ¥MEHKEEA25%(Z
T =ZF:25%) -

HRAEEREBEZ T _NF
kKZZTZ=F+=ZR=+—8H
EFEEVEMFTERBEF -
MW ERARE R ER NET R
PRECERGBRBE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 7. NGB ahEHEMWEZEEWRZ XABKFL
OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE B (=)
INCOME (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REAMEFEZHREBIHES S
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BiEZHER:
2024 2023
TBEDmE ZEZZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH& T
Loss before taxation B % B S 1B (8,850) (13,248)

Notional tax on loss before taxation, & AIE B 2 £ & F 18

calculated at the rates applicable REBAERER 2 &M E

to profits in the jurisdictions A EGE

concerned (1,346) (2,071)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 1% 2 X H ¥ 1B 2

for tax purpose yE 1,343 2,785
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBERH Z WA HFHIE 2

tax purpose wE (1,747) (815)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & ﬁ?’é REEBEHEHEL

=& 1,874 1,566

Tax effect of unrecognised temporary & ﬁﬁ RERF T =EE A

differences w2 125 108
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) i@ K R 2 i B

recognised &5 18 = (1,138)
Over-provision in respect of prior BEFEBEBERE

years _ (10)
Tax effect of share of results of joint EE AL P EEENRB

venture ma (494) (435)
Tax effect of share of results of JEMEE RRIEENNB

associate A 245 -

Income tax credit FT 15 Bl 4K 2 - (10)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. ESi=E

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENSRENEST ZHMAOT :
as follows:

Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors

4nEs FATES BIHGES
Tso Siu Lun Lo Wing Yan
Jiao Shuge  Tang Nanjun Thaoli  Wu Guangze FengHai  GuoTingting  Chong Ka Yee Alan Li Xindan William Total 2024
EHE ERE B fRE )3 15 #zd Edh EI Bk ZBIREEF

HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THR TR Thr TER TR Thn THr THR ThL Thn THR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note h) (Note €) (Note f)
(Hrita) (b) (W& (W &) (¥ &h) (Hite) (W)

Fees e - - - 240 - 9 240 240 240 240 1,209
Other emoluments e
Salaries it - - - - - - - - - - -
Discretionary bonus REE - - - - - - - - - - -

Retirement benefit scheme & {R 8 13 81 - - - - - - - - - - -

- - - 10 - 9 210 10 10 210 1,209
Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#rES FHNES Buknngs
Tso Siu Lun Lo Wing Yan

Jiao Shuge ~ Tang Nanjun FengHai  Wu Guangze WeiBin  Zheng Xiaosu  Chong Ka Yee Alan Li Xindan William Total 2023

EHE [ 58 REE B I3 B L F0f Bk ZZCFa

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER Thn Tin TEn TER Tin Tin TEn TER Tin TEn

(Note a) (Note b) (Note h) (Note d) (Note g) (Note i) (Note f)

(Ha) (Hitb) (Hith) (itd) (Hg) (i) (Hif)

Fees #e S - - - - - 186 240 20 240 906
Other emoluments LU E
Salaries ie - - - 1,150 - - - - - - 1,150
Discretionary bonus RETL - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit scheme & {R 7@ 3 & - - - 8 - - = g S 5 8

- - - 1,158 - - 186 20 240 10 2,064
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fm © B 5 ¥R % Bid 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of independent non-executive directors
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration.

Notes:

(a)  Mr. Jiao Shuge redesignated from a non-executive director
and appointed as a chief executive officer on 18 May 2023
and resigned as a chief executive officer on 14 December
2023.

(b)  Mr. Tang Nanjun appointed as an executive director and
chief executive officer on 14 December 2023.

() Mr. Zhao Li appointed as an non-executive director on
29 April 2024.

(d)  Mr. Wu Guangze redesignated from an executive director
and resigned as a chief executive officer on 18 May 2023.

(e)  Ms. Guo Tingting appointed as an non-executive director on
18 December 2024..

() Mr. Chong Ka Yee appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 23 March 2023.

(g) Mr. Wei Bin resigned from non-executive director on
29 September 2023.

(h)  Mr. Feng Hai resigned from non-executive director on 29
April 2024.

(i) Ms. Zheng Xiaosu resigned as non-executive director on 31
March 2023.
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EBME(E)
FRATEEMEEREFERELARANR
AEBEHKORBME - LAt B 7 FFH
TEEFNHERRFEEARAESTH
BRI E -

RBEFE AEEREDFHEME
MEZEZME  AESRSHE AL
AXREERO BB RIERBEREE - B
BESHEXRERRETAHFS ILHE-

GEX

(@) EHEMEER-_ZT_=ZFHEA+/\BH
P TEESATIREZAEEFHTE
YR T _=F+_A+tHNBEHEHITEE
WITE -

by EEEE4ER_ZT_=F+_FTHH
BEZERATESREFENTE -

(0 BMAXTERZ-_T-_NFUA-+HhAE
ZERFUTES-

d REZE4ER-_ZT-_=F#RA+N\BH
PTESHATRFTEFHNTE °

() BEELZIAR-_Z_WNFF+-_A+N\H
BZERIENTES-

f) HEEREER-_ZT-_=F=HA=-+=H

EZAABILIERNITES -

(9 BREENR-_ZFE-_=ZFLA-t+NLB#
{{3 WITES -

hy BEEER-_ZFTE-_NFNUWA=-t+NLBE
FHEBTES -

(i) BPNEw+TR_T-_=%F=A=+—8

BEFNTES -
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9.

REBEBIZERERATR

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, no director of the Company (2023: Nil)
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8 above. The
emoluments of five (2023: five) individuals for the year
ended 31 December 2024 were as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

ReHMAL

AEBAZEERME AN ALT I
BARABER( T _ZF:8) - FF
ZHEEREXHEFSEE - BEZZT
ZHE+ZA=Z+—BLEFE A=

To=F AMALTZBMEWT:

2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TH T
Salaries and other benefits FrekEAMmER 4,860 10,460
Contributions to retirement R KAR ) EF &R
benefits schemes 72 68
4,932 10,528
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REHMEN LA TAR :
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE EBE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 JT 4 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t & 1,500,000 JT 1 —

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,500,001% JT & 2,000,000 7 7T -
2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000 7% 7T -
2,500,001 % 7T & 3,000,000 % 7T -

- s w
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE

2024 Annual Report

10. BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 10. SRERNEEERE
2024 2023
ZEBE-NE —T_=F
HK$000 HK$ 000
TERT FHETT
Loss BiE
Loss attributable to equity shareholders ZX 2 &) # 5 A% 3 F& 15 &5 18
of the Company (9,779) (13,118)
2024 2023
—E-mE —T—=
Number of shares k% & B
Weighted average number of ordinary B % 17 & 3@ % 04 F 5 &
shares in issue 1,499,749,920 1,499,749,920
Basic loss per share was calculated as the loss for the REXBEBDRARFEARRKRREE
period attributable to ordinary shareholders of the HEHABEBRUEETSE ﬁﬂx 1
Company divided by the weighted average number of HitE
ordinary shares in issue.
For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the BE-_T_NFER-_FTE-_=F+=ZAH=
diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share T—BLEEE -BRARABRENTT
because the exercise price of Company's share options FESRARHFEHME SEREFEEE

was higher than the average market price for shares. BHREARNEBEER -
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11.

REEFEZERABRAF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

. ME -BERR
(a) FRTEE %R

Properties
leased for Furniture,
own use Leasehold fixtures and
carried at cost  improvements equipment Total
URATENR B -£ER
BEREENE HE#£E B a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAx
Cost: KA
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=%-f—H 20,431 2,793 2,185 25,409
Exchange adjustments R AR - S (4) (4)
Additions NE - = 73 73
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F+ZRA=+-H 20,431 2,793 2,254 25,478
At 1 January 2024 R-E-ME-A—H 20,431 2,793 2,254 25,478
Exchange adjustments X% - = (4) (4)
Additions nE - - 6 6
Expiration of lease contract BESNIH (8,284) = = (8,284)
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+=A=+—-H 12,147 2,793 2,256 17,196
Accumulated depreciation: RAHE:
At 1 January 2023 R-_E-=%—-A-H 1,751 187 1,111 3,049
Exchange adjustments B XA B - - (3) (3)
Provided for the year ERNEE 6,683 698 256 7,637
At 31 December 2023 W-E-=F+-A=+—-H 8,434 885 1,364 10,683
At 1 January 2024 W-_ZE-_N¥-HF—-H 8,434 885 1,364 10,683
Exchange adjustments 5B - - (2) 2)
Provided for the year ENEE 6,682 697 242 7,621
Expiration of lease contract HEAHNEE (8,284) = = (8,284)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+ZA=+-H 6,832 1,582 1,604 10,018
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2024 RZF-ME+ZA=+—H 5,315 1,211 652 7,178
At 31 December 2023 W-_E-_=%+-RA=+-8H 11,997 1,908 890 14,795

223



OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2024 Annual Report

224 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET+_A=T-—HILLFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) M. ME - BERXEBE)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use REERNS>THOERAEEENR
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EHFEMAT :

2024 2023

—E-mE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FTAT

Properties leased for own use, carried FHE B AW W E - AT E

at depreciated cost X A B TR 5,315 11,997
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HEBRGPHEINEERTHAN L
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BESTWOT:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAET

Depreciation charge of right-of-use REEBRE >N FERAE

assets by class of underlying asset: EEMITEER:

Properties leased for own use HEBRMYE 6,682 6,683
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) T & & & ) & (M 5 6(a)) 379 714
Expense relating to short-term leases HEHHAEF BN T H 89 359
Variable lease payments not included in 7] & f & & X I £ 5+ A

the measurement of lease liabilities HEBENFE - 2,600
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the HEReREBENFHAEENE
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in ERBENHR T ORI EMT20%

Notes 20 and 22, respectively. 227 5 H o
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
4 years. Lease payments are increased on an
agreement-to-agreement basis to reflect market
rentals.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease
for an additional period after the end of the
contract term. Where practicable, the Group seeks
to include such extension options exercisable by
the Group to provide operational flexibility. The
Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options, the future
lease payments during the extension periods are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

M. ME-BMERREB(E)

(b)

EREEREGE)

HEB BB Y=
AEEEREHEGZESERYD
XESMRGRHEN - HEBRS
e B E4F - HE M FIR @ Rl
HBEAAUNRRTISHEE -

REBHEBREARNBRAERR
HESEHNBEINEIER - EAITH
BT NEEBHNRBEARNEETA
THEOBERER URERHELE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_Z_NE+-_A=+—-HILEE

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. RIfBLrINKRE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at AABR_ZZE-_MNMER-_ZTE_=F+=
31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: A=+t—BzZ2XEMBRAAFBEET:
Place of Particulars of
incorporation or Issued and
Name of subsidiary registration Place of operation ~ paid up capital Proportion of ownership interest Principal activities
ARRLY BEAR
HEARZE ERbE EEnY BRRAHE BRERZEMN TEER
Direct Indirect
B B
2024 2023 2024 2023

ZE_QmE -S-Zf ZE-@ME —%F-=F

OCI Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 - - - 100%  Investment holding
RRARARLA B Bi 1,000% ¢ - - - 100% REZR
0CI Asset Management Cayman Islands Hong Kong Us$1 - - 100% 100%  Fund management
(Cayman) Co Ltd
0CI Asset Management REHS () (E3 - - 100% 00% Z4ER
(Cayman) Co Ltd
OCl Asset Management Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$20,001,000 - = 100% 100%  Asset management
Company Limited
RREEERERAA B B 20,001,000 7T - - 100% 100% BEER
Real Treasure Investment Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS 1 100% 100% - - Trading of wines and
beverage, and
investment holding
EEREERAA g3 3 17 100% 100% - - BEBRHGEE
RRRERRK
OC! Administrative Services Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% - - Provision of management
Limited services to group
companies
RRERTHREARAA ER Bi 1,000% 100% 100% - - WEERARHERR
%
RE(LELCEEREN  MRC PRC HK$14,750,500 - - 51% 51%  Provision of financia
BRAT() advisory service
RR(LELXERRES  tE hE 14,750,500 7T - - 51% 51% REFHERARY
BRA()
OCl Global SPC-OCI US Dollar - Cayman Islands Hong Kong US$1,768,226 - S 100% 100%  Investment fund
Debt Fund SP(ii
0CI Global SPC-OCI US Dollar ~ F & 3 & Bl 1,768,226% 1T - - 100% 100% %EEE

Debt Fund SP(ii)
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(i)  Registered as a wholly owned foreign enterprise
under PRC Law.

(i)  The Group considers that it has ability to control
through its representatives on the board of the
investment fund and acting as a fund manager. The
“paid up capital” disclosed above represents the
participating shares of the respective investment
fund at the end of the reporting period.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets or liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 23 October 2024, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, with an independent third party, to
dispose its entire interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, OClI
Capital Limited, which was principally engaged in provision
of securities trading and investments for a consideration of
HK$400,000. The net assets of OCI Capital Limited at the
date of disposal were as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

REKELAIRE(EF)
(i) WEFEZZZMAIBBELE -

iy *&EERR EEBRNKREETE
FENRREIECTESKLERFE
A EXWEN B RKA]EE
AREESNREHR RS ERRD -

LR BARNFROEZTEMNER

ARREERR ERAINARAMNE
RAIEBREAKRENXEREELER
E-ARAEFAR REEMHER
ANFBRERFEBER TR -

HE—BKHEBAR
RZEZMNFEF+AZ+T=ZHB x5H
HBIYE =T EERE URE
4000008 THEHEREZEMBAAR
BEAERRAGTEREREFSFE
BEREENEHEZ REELRAARA
AREERBHZEEFEN T

2024
—E_MmF
HK$’000
FERT

Consideration received and receivable:
Cash received

B R EKAE:
B W3R

400
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE

12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12. RBAINKRE(E)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) HE—-HBKB LR E)
23 October
2024
—E-mEF
+HA=+=8
HK$'000
FET
Analysis of assets and (liabilities) kERHEIEERERB) O
over which the control was lost:
Debt investments at amortised cost BEBEKATECEBRE -
Cash b 11
Other receivables H b g W BR 1B 5
Amount due to immediate holding company JET EEER R RIRIEA (204,230)
Other payables H fh & < BR 18 (5,972)
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFHE (210,186)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan f&% B FhoeE R 204,230
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHMWBRARA K= 6,356
400
Satisfied by: BRAUNTHAEN:
Cash consideration BeRE 400
400
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRESRAFE:
Cash consideration received BUWR R E 400
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERTEHRER S (11)

389
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquired 60% paid-up
capital of L EREME R & E BT IR BR A A (the "Joint
Venture”) from a third party at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$3,660,000. As of the acquisition date,
the fair value of the Group’s share of the Joint Venture's
identifiable assets and liabilities was approximately
HK$4,273,000, resulting a gain on bargain purchase of
a joint venture of approximately HK$613,000.

Pursuant to the Article of Association of the Joint
Venture, the Joint Venture is jointly controlled by the
Group and the other party because the relevant activity
affecting its returns from its involvement with the Joint
Venture requires the unanimous consent of the Group
and the other party sharing the control. Therefore, the
Joint Venture is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.

Details of the Group’s interest in joint venture, which
is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

13. REELAIER

W (]

R-ZZTB-_—_FFA-_+=B - K&£EFEI
/& R (B #3,660,0008 T A 5 = H WK iE
IWERRMEABREERERLABI(EE
AFDE0O%MEHBR A - RULE A H -
AEEREGEAGELAAUHRNEERARE
ZRARFEHBAL273,0008 T ELEHE
BEAE QA2 Wz 4613,0008 7T °

RESEAAMNEREREA 5EA
AmARERS—HAREH REA
YERSRARAAFBEMIERED
BEAERBRAEEHENS 5 — &
AE-Bit ZABARAEAXEEN
AEBDAAE-

ARERGANBERED ZRABAT
TR (R ARMBEEDT

7

Proportion of

Particulars of ownership
Form of Place of registered interest
Name of business incorporation and paid-up held by
joint venture structure and business capital the Group Principal activity
ot it B L K FERUN e 4 B3
EENRER FBEREA  EXHE BRREFHE BEzAI TEERK
Shandong Civil Aviation Incorporated PRC Registered share capital: 60% Provision of asset
Dongsheng Investment BRI av t RMB5,000,000 (2023:60%) management and
Management Company Limited* Paid-up capital: (ZTZ=%:  advisory services
WREHRAREER RMBS5,000,000 60%) RUEEEEERA
BRRA BEMBRA: ARK RS
5,000,0007T
BRRA: ARHK
5,000,0007T

*  For identification only

The Joint Venture in which the Group participates is an
unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is
not available.

* EHRZF

AEBE2BE K -GERAAR/IFLTA

AER UEMSHRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_ZT_MF+-_A=1T—-HILFE

13.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 13.
Summarised financial information of the Joint Venture,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a

Re e
AEATZHBANBEE EREHRK
ErEMERELRE)

NaliER(E)

2024 Annual Report

B A W5 ®

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated FANEEHBECHEREEOT
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2024 2023
TBEDmE Z—ZEZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH& T
The Joint Venture’s =N
Current assets B & E 14,127 18,813
Non-current assets FEMEBEE 5,023 4,913
Current liabilities mE A& (4,494) (12,208)
Non-current liabilities FmBBEE (553) (337)
Equity attributable to the equity EaRREGER
shareholders 14,103 11,181
Total equity 4 14,103 11,181
Included in the above assets and FALMMEERABE:
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents IE e hkREEEIEA 13,696 15,146
Current financial liabilities (excluding nBeMBEANBEEES R
trade and other payables) H h & 3R I8) (353) (639)
Non-current financial liabilities FERE & Fh E & (553) (334)
Revenue W 5 12,625 26,956
Profit for the period attributable to the  # 25 % 3 Ji& b 7~ Hi 4 i 71
equity shareholders 3,293 2,899
Included in the above profit: A LEHEF
Depreciation and amortisation & (148) (810)
Interest income B WA 47 180
Interest expense ME X (40) (66)
Income tax expense FriE A (933) (161)
Reconciled to the Group's interest BEAEEREERATARZ
in the Joint Venture EZ YR
The Joint Venture's net assets attributable # 5 f% 3 & 15 & & A &
to the equity shareholders BEEFE 14,103 11,181
Ownership interest held by the Group AEBFENMAEER 60% 60%
Group's share of the Joint Venture's rEBREEEERAZ
net assets BEFE 8,462 6,709
Carrying amount of the Group's interest A& B # s 2 REE 8,462 6,709
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14.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Details of the Group’s interest in an associate, which
is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 231
fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

14. RBE LI iR

AEBEREZE QA NESE

KR 6 B 7%

RPUBSZEAR FBOT:

Proportion of

ownership
Form of Place of interest
business incorporation Paid-up held by
Name of associate structure and business capital the Group  Principal activity
S IR FEEEER
BHELAER FRLEREA EXHE HBRRE Eazasl TEXH
Hope Investment Group Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong HK$13,265,306 49%  Information
("Hope Investment”) (2023: Nil)  technology business
HEREBRAA + M A G 13,265,306 7% 1T 49% EAMBEH

(HERE])

Summarised financial information of Hope Investment,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a

(ZB-=%:9)

HEREZMBERAME(CHEFR
RZEMERFLABEREAY BT ®

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated KANEHEHBEZHERERENT :
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2024
—E-MF
HK$'000
THER
Hope Investment’s HERE
Current assets mEE E 10,239
Current liabilities mEEE (1
Equity attributable to the equity shareholders EmRREGER 10,238
Total equity AR 10,238
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_E_NE+T-_A=T-HLEE

2024 Annual Report

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 14. RBELRI BE(E)
2024
—E-_lmE
HK$'000
FERT
Revenue W = -
Loss for the period attributable to the equity EaRREGEAAEEIR
shareholders 3,027
Included in the above loss: EFA LS
Development cost 2 X AR 3,023
Sundry fee MIEE A 4
Reconciled to the Group's interest HEAEERFEREZ
in Hope Investment EEHE
The Associate’s net assets attributable to the equity # %5 I% 3R & {65 B & 1 &)
shareholders BEEFE 10,238
Ownership interest held by the Group AEBEFENMAREER 49%
Group's share of the Hope Investment's net assets A& B EHITFERE 2
BEFE 5,017
Carrying amount of the Group's interest rEEEZZEREE 5,017
Hope Investment, the only associate in which the Group %T ERASEEZ2ROE -—BER
participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose CRIELETABER EWisWmE-

quoted market price is not available.
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15. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

15. RBEARGFECEBERE

Note 2024 2023
Bt 5% —E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL
Corporate debt securities NEEBEFH (@) 20,856 230,952
Less: Loss allowance (see Note 27(b)(i)) & : &5 18 B & (B Bt 5£27(b)(0)) (20,516) (209,932)
Total debt investments at amortised B R N E2BEHRERE
cost, net of loss allowance (M EERE) 340 21,020
(a) Corporate debt securities (a) AREBES
Corporate debt securities comprise the following: RAEBHBHFBIE:
Note 2024 2023
B 3% —E-ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FETL
SP Note SPEE 0) - 101,574
RD Note RDE & (ii) — 108,376
CFLD Note CFLDE (iii) 20,856 21,002
Gross carrying amount R+ZA=+—HBzZ@BEHEE
at 31 December 20,856 230,952
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

15. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST 15. RIBEM NG BECEBRRE(E

(Continued)
(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued) (a) DABEBEHFERE)
Notes: B 3
(i) SP Note represented US$13 million 8% senior secured SPEERIEH=M(EB)BRE A F(SP
guaranteed notes issued by Sanpower (Hong Kong) EBRTADETR-_Z-LFt
Company Limited (“SP Note Issuer”) maturing on 30 A=+HEEMI3EEESEHR
July 2019 with a right to extend the maturity date by BEHRBEEREEZER MAKEESF
further 12 months exercisable by the Group. The SP EE K E Hﬂ E 12TI B e SPEIE LA
Note is secured by a charge over 131,000,000 shares FTEERRZERAERAA(—HERE
of C.banner International Holdings Limited, a company BBMERXGMERIA LMz AR
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. 131,000,000/ iR ) tEE B (R - £

The Group does not have the right to sell or re-pledge
the shares held as collateral in the absence of default
by SP Note Issuer. In addition, the SP Note is also
secured by corporate guarantee provided by Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd. (the “Corporate Guarantor”) and
personal guarantee provided by Yuan Yafei (the
“Personal Guarantor”), controlling shareholder of
Corporate Guarantor.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd and Yuan Yafei, being the guarantors
of the SP Note failed to provide additional collateral
requested by the Group pursuant to the terms of the
SP Note and this has resulted in occurrence of events
of default ("EOD") under the terms of the SP Note.
In October 2018, the Group has issued EOD notice
to SP Note Issuer in respect of all outstanding sums
owing by SP Note Issuer. The Company has made
announcements on 29 October 2018, 20 November
2018 and 10 January 2019 in relation to the default of
the SP Note.

SPERBITAREBELNNBRT
AEBEENEXBRBMBIRD
BB R I SPEBEIIUA=ZBE
BEERA2A(T2AERALD TR
MAREREARERAZERE
BEDHFEAERADRENE
AERBEE -

RBEE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—8H
LFE SPEBRERA=ZREESA
R~ 8 MR 5 IR R BE IR RSP R 1k
REAREEEBREHRBINER D
ERENEHERASHDOELE -
RZFB-NF+H KXEBE P
RRETABNNMAE REERRA

Iﬁ#

]
B

ﬁSP—;—TF?’V‘ﬁ)\?‘HjL%’]%#L%W
RAER_E-NF+AZTAH
CCE-NF+-AZt+HEZ
—NF-RBTERSPEBRENF

A==

N
0|

XA m B

EE

5
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15. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 1 November 2018, the Group appointed a legal
adviser and the Group brought legal proceedings
against the Corporate Guarantor and the Personal
Guarantor at the Intermediate People’s Court of
Jiangsu Province (the “Court”) by the end of November
2018 for all outstanding sums owing by the SP Note
Issuer under the SP Note. On 20 December 2018, the
Court issued a & & # fi# £ (the “Mediation Order”,
order numbered (2018) Su 01 Min Chu N0.3422) in
relation to the payments obligations of the Corporate
Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor, in respect of
the amounts owed under the SP Note recorded in the
A EE 1% % (the "Settlement Agreement”) entered
into between OCI Capital Limited ("OCI Capital”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the
Corporate Guarantor and the Personal Guarantor on
the same day as a result of the mediation conducted
by the Court. Although the Corporate Guarantor
and the Personal Guarantor are required under the
Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement to
repay amounts owed under the SP Note to OCI Capital
by making an initial US$2,000,000 payment by 28
December 2018 and twelve further monthly payments
during 2019, no payment was received by OCI
Capital based on the Mediation Order and Settlement
Agreement. Given such failure to pay in accordance
with the agreed schedule, all amounts payable under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement
became immediately due and payable. Accordingly, on
9 January 2019, the Group submitted an application to
the Court for the enforcement of amounts due under
the Mediation Order and the Settlement Agreement.

The Company received notice from the Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd on 8 December 2021 that the
Restructuring Plan (the “Plan”) of Sanpower Group
Co., Ltd was passed. The Plan is scheduled to resolve
the defaulted debts and part of the related interest
due through business restructuring and improving
fund pool through disposal of certain assets or
investments. The Plan will last through 2021 and
2028. The Company is registered as one of the
Sanpower’s debtors and will be notified by Sanpower
Group Co., Ltd for their updates on the Plan.

On 20 December 2023, there was a voluntary
conditional cash offer (the "Offer”) made by First
Shanghai Securities Limited, for and on behalf of
Orchid Valley Holdings Limited (the “Offeror”)
in respect of the charged C.banner International
Holdings Limited’'s shares at the offer price of
HK$0.16 per share. The Group has accepted the Offer
and transferred the charged C.banner International
Holdings Limited shares to the Offeror in January
2024.

15. #&

(a)

BMEMARStHEZEBRE

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE
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R-ZZE—NFE+—F—B ' A&EH
ZELAEER mMAEER=-Z—
NF+—AEARSPEEEITAR
BSPEBEER2HREERAM
i%%¢@AE£ﬁU%ﬁDﬁﬁ
AEIERARBAERAREZE
HR-R-_ZE—NEFE+_A= +E
FRBEHREABZ((ABEE] X
E R 9 A(2018)8: 01 & #)34225%) -
NAEBLARERARBAERA
m/ﬁEK AEEMBRAAIERE
BEAXBR

NAR([RBEX]) QA
®AR MAﬁﬁA%ﬁﬁm%%ﬁ
RRBETLMERE(HAEHE])
It sk MSPEBRB I AXREZHN
HEAL ﬁAﬂﬁﬁ%A&MAﬁ
RAEBRBEABERMNBHERE
BEANEESPEEREE & RORE
FRAARZ-ZZE—N\F+=A=+N
Emiﬁéézmmw%ﬁ&%:
E-NFINBINT_HIZAR
ﬁ%@ﬁﬁhxwum#m%
R W R E B AR @W*
%@%mim%ﬁﬁﬁ%’%ﬁm
BABMERNBEHEENHREY
EXANEESHREMN AL A&
EE%:E hE—ANBBER
REHBRHFRATHABEE XA E B
%ETﬂ%mﬁo

=
S

Y 25

X

2ol
=

p=Ill3
N\

R N

an
¥

e

+
B | g O R R

ms 98 g i+

\

2F)

Dl g g It 3
SRl

prrt R i

2% EE ¥ N 5B A
o N
o |1 B m B W B I
N 38 BH A D ST oM

ﬁ
=i

N g

< F =
2w
[N
&

B

o

SRR DD B SRS  E ]1] B
M D | ol e D DD

S0 g 4 Iy BS oM o
R [l e S 54

M | S A oy at |

~

S b= | ) om B IW o g D |

I || 4

—®+=-_A=-+A F—
& % A R 2 A X & Orchid Valley
Holdlngs Limited ([EH A B E T
BEEBRZERAERA ﬁk@kﬁ@
FEEBRGREEZN(EN])
ABEROI6E L AEEK =
M — H&%gﬁlha\ﬁ
BEBRBERER ARG E
EONI

%
&l
XNH
H

ZNME
=z =
) F
T

235



236

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2024 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bid 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

15. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount
of the SP Note was approximately HK$20,305,000,
after a provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$81,269,000 (see Note 27(b)(i)). During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interest in OCI Capital Limited (see Note
12), a subsidiary which held the SP note. Following
this disposal, the SP note was derecognised from the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

(i)  RD Note represented US$15 million 10% senior
guaranteed notes issued by Rundong Fortune
Investment Limited (“RD Note Issuer”) matured on 15
April 2019. The RD Note is secured by a charge over
78,000,000 shares of China Rundong Auto Group
Limited (“China Rundong Shares”), a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Group does not have the right to sell or re-pledge the
shares held as collateral in the absence of default by
RD Note Issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, RD Note
Issuer failed to repay the outstanding interest and
handling fee receivable and this has resulted in
occurrence of event of default under the terms of the
RD Note. The Company has made announcements on
8 August 2019 in relation to the default of the RD
Note.

15. RBEN A ECEBRE(E

() DEEHRESE)

M e : (&)

W (&)
R-ZE-_=Z=F+=-_A=+—H 3%
125 B 5 18 B 15 49 81,269,000 & T
(5 Mt 5£27(0)(0) %%  SP = ¥ 19 BR ™%
E#) 74 20,305,000 B - HE_ZT =
mE+-—A=+—BLEEFE &%
EHEERRBZEABRAR(—ME
BESPEENHMBERRNZ TR A
(2N E12) Rt ER SPE
BEASERAMBHREKRIEER

(i) RDEZE & & HRundong Fortunelnvestment
Limited((RDEE 2T ADEITHR =
—nimﬁwﬂiaiﬂﬂﬂa’]wﬁ%%
EPLF?%%E;% KE 7(*???
EBBMERSGAMBRAR LT ZAR)
78,000,000 f% A% 17 (¢T£§Bﬁfﬁj)
EEIR - ERDEB BT ARBEND
ERT  AEEEELESBERBHR
BRHAKER-
REE=-ZE—HAhE+=-_A=+—8
IFFE RDEBEBHITALREERE
FMEREBRKRFES SEHELERD
ZEBRRATHENEH -ARAE
RZZTE—AFNABNBHRDEEE
B ERE -
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15. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

In 2019, following the RD Note Issuer’s failure to
repay the outstanding principal amount and the
outstanding interest and handling fee receivable
of the RD Note, the Group exercised its right as a
chargee in possession of the charged shares and sold
2,019,000 China Rundong Shares on the market for
HK$3,648,440 and subsequently contracted with two
third parties, LanHai International Trading Limited
and Ms. Ding Yi (“Potential Purchasers”) which
are independent of the Group, to sell the remaining
75,981,000 China Rundong Shares (“Remaining
Shares”) for HK$80,000,000. LanHai International
Trading Limited is the wholly owned subsidiary of
Lanhai Holding (Group) Company Limited, which is in
turn 99% controlled by Mr. Mi Chunlei. Nonetheless,
neither of the Potential Purchasers paid any of
the consideration to the Group. The Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the Potential
Purchasers. On 16 August 2019, a Writ of Summons
to LanHai International Trading Limited and Ms. Ding
Yi was filed to the High Court of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company attended the mediation
but no agreement was reached with the Potential
Purchasers. Further Witness Statement was exchanged
and the case management conference hearing was
held on 29 November 2021. The legal proceedings
between the Group against the Potential Purchasers
was conducted in October 2023 and the Group lost
the legal case.

In 2021 and 2020, the Group further disposed of
800,000 and 5,491,000 China Rundong Shares,
respectively, on the open market for HK$612,000
and HK$4,495,200, respectively. The China Rundong
Shares were suspended for trading since 1 April 2021
and subsequent delisted on 31 October 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of the
RD Note was HK$Nil, after a provision for impairment
loss of approximately HK$108,376,000 (see Note
27(b) (i)). During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in OCI
Capital Limited (see Note 12), a subsidiary which held
the RD note. Following this disposal, the RD note was
derecognised from the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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BE-Z-_mMFE+=-A=

T-BLEEE

15. DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(Continued)

(a) Corporate debt securities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

CFLD Note represented US$2.69 million (face value)
of 9% guaranteed bond issued by CFLD Cayman
Investment Ltd (“CFLD Note Issuer”) matured on
31 July 2021. The Group received a default notice in
respect of CFLD Note on 9 March 2021.

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount
of the CFLD Note was approximately HK$715,000,
after a provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$20,287,000 (see Note 27(b) (i)).

On 24 January 2023, a restructuring scheme was
approved by the court, under which the creditors were
offered with different new bonds for selection by
9 January 2024 to exchange for the CFLD Note. The
Group had submitted an application for the selection
of new bonds under the restructuring scheme and
subsequently received the new bonds in January
2024. The new bonds represented US$2.69 million
(face value) of 2.5% bond issued by CFLD Cayman
Investment Ltd.

As at 31 December 2024, the net carrying amount of
the new CFLD bonds was approximately HK$340,000,
after a provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$20,516,000 (see Note 27(b) (i)).

All debt investments held by the Group were past
due and impaired at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
Further details on the Group's credit risk arising

from debt investments at amortised cost are set
out in Note 27(b)(i).
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BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

INVENTORIES 16. 76
2024 2023
ZEBE-NE —T_=F
HK$000 HK$ 000
FER FAT
Goods purchased for resale HEEZEBER® 6,667 6,719

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

RAMI L AERE

MEESBEIN

expenses and included in profit or loss is as follows: R
2024 2023
—E_@OmF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH& T
Carrying amount of inventories EEREHAFTECERAEE
sold and utilised 42,003 33,968
TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BEWEZIRIE
2024 2023
“E-NE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FET
Trade debtors in respect of wines and FHREEEBARKGZ
beverage trading B5EHA 5 20
Fees receivables from asset management K EEEEIE 2 Rl & A 20,779 45,454
20,784 45,474

All of the trade receivables are carried at amortised cost.

FTERKE ZRBEDREBHEKAE-
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17. BEREZRE(E)
Ageing analysis fRER 2D AT

RBEEEH BEERRREERBE
EZRRESRBAZZEZAMIRED

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables,
arising from the business of wines and beverage trading

based on date of invoice at the reporting date: M :
2024 2023
g g1 3 —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT
0 to 60 days 0&260H 5 20

RBEEAH BEEEEXEBRELE ZRIK
BRBERER WS BHZKER D0

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables,
arising from the business of asset management based

on date of revenue recognition at the reporting date: ™
2024 2023
—E-@mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
0 to 60 days 0Z260H 3,909 4,666
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,927 2,357
91 to 180 days 912180 H 5,702 7,033
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 2,595 27,365
Over 365 days 365H A 6,646 4,033
20,779 45,454

AEBRTFHADELRKREEESE
FENEI120RZFHEEHM-BEE
BEXBHNEKREAARTERAEERRI0
FREH -FRASEEERRLES
U FBEERRNE - FFEBHIH
FE27(b) °

The Group allows an average credit period from 90 to
120 days to its trade customers in respect of wines and
beverage trading. Fees receivables in respect of the
business of asset management are normally due within
30 days upon presenting the invoice. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising trade
receivables are set out in Note 27(b).
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18. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18. ®#E B MmBEKHMEUWERIE
RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
ZE-MF —T_=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
Other receivables H 4th i Uk BR 18 4,258 2,475
Deposits with brokers NFCE SRR ER S - 769
4,258 3,244
Rental and other deposits MEREMES
- Non-current portion —JE BN HA & 1,086 1,086
— Current portion —BIHfE & 139 168
Prepayments A HRIE
- Prepayments for fund sub-advisory services —TEff & & 2 & 7% # R % 5B - 489
— Prepayments for purchase of wine -ERNEBE %J BB RIE 14,405 3,337
— Other prepayments —H fh & T 5K IE 1,009 712
Less: Non-current portion of rental deposits & : T & 1k & JE BN H3 2F & (1,086) (1,086)

19,811

7,950
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19. RA T BFABRZEMREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=#%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Unlisted investment funds FLTREES
- OCI Equities Fund SP —-OCI Equities Fund SP 92,017 102,403
— OCI Chiyu Fixed Income Fund SP —-OCI Chiyu Fixed Income Fund SP 4,863 -
Investments in listed securities RNRETHFESFHNEE 14,192 12,563
Investments in listed warrants N ETRIREBHNIRE 10 66
Total financial assets at fair value through BATEFAER ERMEE
profit or loss 485 111,082 115,032
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20. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 20. R HBEBB=-BAMNEHER R
DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ENBEEFEEEB
EQUIVALENTS
(a) Time deposits with original maturity date over (a) REEHBERIRREREEXRDHN
three months and cash and cash equivalents in FREHBBEBEB=ZEAANEHREFRR
the consolidated statements of financial position RekReLZEEBEERE:
and cash flows comprise:
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FTAT
Time deposits with original maturity RE|EA B A=A
date over three months TFHER 60,927 14,845
Cash at financial institution and on PRBEBELRFENRS
hand 67,130 89,948
Cash and cash equivalents in the REEMBERALREERERF
consolidated statements of financial NRekReEHEER
position and cash flows 67,130 89,948
At 31 December 2024, the time deposits with RZE-_WF+—_A=+—H" K
original maturity date over three months carried BB B=EANTEHERESF
interest rate from 3.70% to 4.78% (31 December FEHE3T0%EL78% (Z T ==
2023: 5.35%) per annum. +=-A=+—H:535%): & o
At 31 December 2024, there were bank balances RZTE-_NMNF+=_A=+—H"
and cash denominated in RMB amounting to TRAE%?@Z?E ‘B RkRE
approximately HK$322,000 (2023: approximately # /322,000 (ZEZ=F: 4

HK$237,000). Remittance of funds out of PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

237,000 L) AP HELE £ A
BTHhBEBRNBEREBINEE HIH
8B B AE B o
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20. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 20. REBAEBRA=-"@BMNEHER ]’
DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ERKRESFSHEB (&)
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BRBABEEKLEXERMARSY
used in operations: iR :
Note 2024 2023
B 3 e 11 3 —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R FET
Loss before taxation bR B Al B 18 (8,850) (13,248)
Adjustments for: BRATHEEELRE:
Depreciation e 6(c) 7,621 7,637
Impairment losses recognised BREREBERE
(reversed) on debt investments VRN R
6(c) 36 (3,629)
Foreign exchange loss (gain), net HNE BB (M R)  FE 183 (328)
Change in fair value of BEAFEGFABRE
financial assets at fair value ZEMEEATE
through profit or loss & 4(a) 7,449 (9,392)
Finance costs HBER 6(a) 379 4,426
Bank interest income FITH B WA 5 (4,230) (3,032)
Share of profits of joint venture Eiha < Rnaaf (1,976) (1,739)
Share of loss of associate EiEHERAER 1,483 =
(Gain) loss on disposal of HE W% Gl
a subsidiary (W) E R (6,356) 30
Changes in working capital: LEEeEY:
Decrease (increase) in inventories 17 & 35 4> (3& 4n) 52 (463)
Decrease (increase) in trade EWE 5 KR
receivables B (48 0) 24,690 (38,043)
(Increase) decrease in deposits, Re FENFER
prepayments and other H fth & W AR 1B
receivables (38 1) > (11,567) 9,682
(Increase) decrease in financial asset & A F{EzF AEBZ 2
at FVPL & @& E (g )R (3,499) 4,620
(Decrease) increase in accruals and  JEEt B K H
other payables P BR B O 438 AN (9,041) 18,733
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEMN 12,447 1,724
Cash from (used in) operations REXBREFARS 8,821 (23,022)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_T_MEFT-_A=+-HILEFE

200 REHBBE-"BENEHRER ]
ERBESFHERE (&)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) REMEZBNEEHR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's THRANAEEREMEETSH 2 B
liabilities from financing activities, including both EEgH(REReNIReET) -
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from BEREGHFELENBELDE SR
financing activities are liabilities for which cash IARBAERRNAEEZEHEERN
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified EXRSPELEBREETH 2 RERE
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash mafE-
flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Lease
liabilities Total
HEARE B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTAT
At1lJanuary2024 ~  R=F-QWF-A-R S ZESE 21550
Changes from financing cash flows: REBENRERELZD
Capital element of lease rentals paid BN HLAB S 2 ER S H (3.174) (3.174)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ERENEE 2F B D (379) (379)
Total changes from financing RETHRERNELHETE
PER CE . St
Other changes: Hih &8 :
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) B % & A (F4 51 6(a)) 379 379
Total other changes Hip @ 8@ 379 379

At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_WNFE+-_A=+—H 5,961 5,961
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20. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 20. REHEBR=-BEAMNEHER ]

DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ERRESFEBE(E)
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing c) REMETHINEEHRGE)

activities (Continued)

Amount
Accrued duetoa Lease
interests  Borrowings  related party liabilities Total
FEf
Eit g B BHEIZE  HERE R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL AR TEL TEL

At 1 January 2023 R-B-=5-A-H 250 46,861 46,930 16,224 110,265

Changes from financing cash flows: RERENREREED:

Repayment of shareholder'sloans ~ EERRE X - (46,977) - - (46,977)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B EHEE 2 EATH - - - (7,089) (7,089)
Interest element of lease rentals paid  ERBAHRE 2 FEH 5 - - - (714) (714)
Interest paid BXfHE (3,962) = = = (3,962)
Repayment to a related party mEHHEERE - - (47,008) - (47,008)

Total changes from financing cash BMEZFHRERELHLE

oW B%62) _¢esm (7008 | 7.803) _ (105,750)
Bxchangeadjustments EARE o] LG 19
Other changes: BEgs:

Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BHERMT6) 3712 - - 714 4,426
Total other changes g BesE 3,712 - - 714 4,426

At 31 December 2023 R-E-ZE+-A=1+-H = = = 9,135 9,135
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20. TIME DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY 20. REHBBB=BBNEHER ]

DATE OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH ERRESFEBE(E)
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d HERESRLE
Amounts included in the statement of cash flows FAHERSRE %:z MeBEET
for leases comprise the following: R
2024 2023
—E-NFE —ZTZ=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within financing cash flows MEEESRER 3,553 7,803
These amounts relate to the lease rentals paid ZESBREEE T -_NFER=
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and —=+ZHA=+—8H Jtﬁfiﬁ
2023. JHEHEER-
21. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EstRIBELEfMERKRIE
2024 2023
—E-NE —ZTZ=F
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR FEIT
Accrued legal and professional fees Bt ZEREBEXEHA 1,091 1,836
Advisory fee payable EFRE A 302 346
Other accruals (Note (i)) E b & 51 5% 38 (M 7)) 9,895 24,710
Other payables ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁi 4,073 3,498
Financial liabilities measured at BEBEKAFTECERAE
amortised costs 15,361 30,390
Note (i):  As at 31 December 2024, it included HK$8,468,000 MeE@: RZTE—_WmF+-_A=Z+—H &8
accrued staff cost (2023: HK$15,931,000) and nil FEFE R B T Ak 48,468,000 (= &
provision of the legal cost related to legal case (2023: Z=4:15931,0008 ) KEERER
HK$5,360,000). HHHEEEEERBE( T =4

5,360,000/%8 7T) °
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22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HEGR
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRIWTAESEHEEENHKRTEHE
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities: BB R
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
“E-ME+ZB=1-H ZE-ZF+ZA=1-H
Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
BEAEMNHZ BEAEAR ZERERHRZ RERERK
R a8 RE B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiExn TAL TAEL
Within 1 year fegt® 4 3% e 353
After 1 year but within 2 years BEIFETBELE 2,620 2,665 3,341 3,553
After 2 years but within 5 years BR2FRABABSE - - 2,620 2,665
I S L e g
5,961 6,218 9,135 9,771
Less: total future interest expenses BoARMERYER (257) (636)

Present value of lease liabilities HEEBE/HE 5,961 9,135
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
managed by the local government authorities. Employees
of these subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the defined salaries
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from the above
mentioned retirement plans at their normal retirement
age.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with those
schemes beyond the annual contributions described
above.

23.
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fi2 & iR fif 18 il

RE SR KRG E
AEBRBRBEEHAEHERABESTE K
IR EEERBEINDEEA LA AR
ERARATEHRENRTENREEREIT B
wElM A BEeHE((BRBES ] -2
BB EHHBUSTATEMNR
EHERBEKRFE -RERBESE &
T REREREHELZEERBRANSY
mMEBSHEHT EEEHRROEH
F AWK A &= PR % A30,000/8 7T ° % &
Be BRI BB ASBITEFRR
W Ey SRR PR K IR B B FOK FE -

AEBEFBR(TNEFEFTB)KILOME
RAIZBREZNAEHBRNEENRE
HEREKRBEHNE -ZEMBRAZE
EAREHETEERMKNFRMN LA RKG
P EGSHEPBEEBERINAEIEK
FRBEDLAENRKER -

B bt F E RO N B YA E %
ZFEMEANREERANLEBEEMERK
B
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Bz

24,

—E_MET_A=T-BLEE

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
2012 share option scheme

a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted by the Company on
17 December 2012 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options at nil
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company.

On 15 October 2021, the Company granted a total of
105,000,000 options (the “Share Options”) to certain
directors. The Share Options will be vested in five equal
tranches in accordance with the vesting schedule of
the Share Options, subject to the fulfilment of certain
performance targets (the “Vesting Condition”). Where
performance targets have not been met, the share
options of a specific tranche will not vest. The estimated
fair value of the five tranches of the share options using
the polynomial model was approximately HK$1.55,
HK$1.78, HK$1.94, HK$2.07 and HK$2.19 at the grant
date. The Share Options are exercisable within a period
of 10 years from the date of grant. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

The Group recognises share-based payments expenses
in its consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income based on awards ultimately
expected to vest.

24,

2024 Annual Report

MNERBEUNRMDRERNRS
—E-_—FERESE
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T E £ &% 1 A& #£105,000,00017 B8 A% 4
((BRE) BERESZBERENS
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TEZEEZE(BBHEMHED - MAREKE
BEE BTHAIANBERESETSES -
FHEREARLBHENQAFEFERE
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24. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24. WREEZEZESWARNDRBRERNXRZAE)
(Continued)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) REMHERREGHOT
follows:

Number of Vesting date
instruments  (note) Expiry date

IARE BERASMHE VR

Options granted to directorson R -ZE-—%+A+HA

15 October 2021 KTESENBERE

First tranche £—H 21,000,000 1 April 2022 31 March 2028
—E--_FfNMA-B Z—ZE-N\E=ZR=1+-H

Second tranche £ 21,000,000 1 April 2023 31 March 2029
“E-ZHMNA-H ZE-NF=ZAZ=+-H

Third tranche £ 21,000,000 1 April 2024 31 March 2030
“T-_MENA-B ZE=FHX=A=1+-—H

Fourth tranche %10 5 21,000,000 1 April 2025 31 March 2031
“E-_RFENA-B Z—E=-%=ZHR=+-H

Fifth tranche g 21,000,000 1 April 2026 6 June 2031

ZZZREWMA-B ZE=-FXARH

Total share options granted REmBERESYA 105,000,000

Note: The number of options to be exercised after each Med: RBEEBEHERTITEOER
vesting period is subject to fulfillment of certain BEEXGBEBRUHMENE T X
performance targets as set out in the Vesting BEBREMMBAR-

Condition.
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24. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24, NWERBE W UNBRNDBEENKZ(E)
(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices (b) BREHZEERMEFHITEENT :
of share options are as follows:
2024 2023
“R-RE It Jmiag
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
MELH METH
TEE EBREHA 1B BREZA
Outstanding at the beginning of EMRATE HK$4.53 HK$4.53
the year 4538 T 33,000,000 453%TT 84,000,000
Lapsed during the year EREX HK$4.53 HK$4.53
4538 T (11,000,000) 4533 T (51,000,000)
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ X H KT HK$4.53 HK$4.53
4538 T 22,000,000 453587 33,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year ERUIHE HK$4.53 HK$4.53
4538 T - 453%TT =
The options outstanding at 31 December 2024 had R_EBE_WE+_RA=+—BRT
an exercise price of HK$4.53 (2023: HK$4.53) and EHERENTERE RASSET(Z
a weighted average remaining contractual life of T =F 4538 ) RIMETFHK
6.3 years (2023: 7.0 years). TEHNFHR3IF(ZTE =4
7.0%) -
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFERRRE

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a polynomial model.
The contractual life of the share options is used as
an input into this model. Expectations early exercise
are incorporated into the polynomial model.

h 3% BB B A T 4k BR(E A& B 3R B9 AR
BAFESEROBERENRF
EfE -REBERENRAFEDE
REZBRARE T AL - BREN
BHOFHREZREEN —HEAHK
BE-REPETENHEEMAAZEN
Ba o
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BE-_T-_WFE+-_A=+—HLEE

24, NERBBUARDBREPHRZ(E)

(Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFERBRE)

(Continued)
Options
granted on
15 October
2021
R-ZEZ-—F
Fair value of share options and +HA+®EA
assumptions EBEREATERABR BB R
Share price at the grant date REBHOKRE HK$4.15
41573 7T
Exercise price TR HK$4.53
4.53% 7T
Expected volatility 8 HA R 1R 54%
Option life (expressed as weighted average @~ BREFH (R A ZBEAERE T 8.3 years
life used in the modelling under EEPE AR INE TS FE) 8.34

polynomial model)

Expected dividends T B BR B 0%
Risk-free interest rate E R 1.36% — 1.60%
Exercise multiple THEEH 2.47
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24. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 24. NIERSGBEUIARMNMRBERNXZ(E)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREAFTERRBRK(E)
(Continued)
The expected volatility of share price is calculated BREMNBHERBDBEAQGEA
based on the statistical analysis of historical F Al 15 & K &Y 1 7] 78 B3 R 2RO 18 &Y
volatility of the Company, adjusted for any BERAEREL KBNS DT
expected changes to future volatility based on E-EHREERELRE - T8
publicly available information. Expected dividends BABBERENEBHTGH AT
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the BEGTEEERTE -

subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service BREDRBRBEEGR T - K
condition. This condition has not been taken into BRENATFEFEARE BT
account in the grant date fair value measurement mERzGH BEEERERT
of the services received. There were no market N RO R R i

conditions associated with the share option grants.

No expense was recognised in the consolidated BHE_ZTZ-_MF+-_A=+—8H1I
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive FE - ITERGEeEERAMEZE
income for the year ended 31 December 2024 WakPBERAX(ZETEZ=ZF:
(2023: Nil) as the directors of the Company were #) RFERARAREERARE
of the view that the relevant performance targets BHBETHAEEBEZHREENX-

under the Vesting Condition will not be satisfied.

New Share Option Scheme FEREE

A new share option scheme (the “New Share KRR ERER_ZE-_=F A=
Option Scheme”) has been adopted by the TZHBBNREABZREMN—IB
Company pursuant to a shareholder’s resolution MERESE( T ERESSD -

passed on 23 June 2023.

Since its adoptions, no share options have been BERMAR BIEBRERENB
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the PR et R E - 171 - sEdE sl &k

New Share Option Scheme. R o
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25.

REBEBIZERERATR

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

25.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
( E_F_MEF A=t -HIEFE

n 6 B Bk i & B 89 R 15 R

107 )

(a)

REVBRRTRPHOBEHIRE

2024 2023

—E_@mE =%

HK$'000 HK$000

TR FHE T

Tax payable at 1 January R—A—BZEMNBIE 798 337
Exchange difference ME H = &8 (4)

Over provision in prior year BEFEBRBERE - (10)

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid E BEENEW = (157)

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBEBMNGEH - 628

Tax payable at 31 December RTZA=+—RZEMNBIEA 794 798

Representing: ¥
Hong Kong Profits Tax Payable JE 1T & A MNEB 794 798

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of approximately HK$245,256,788 (2023:
approximately HK$436,704,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$4,096,000
(31 December 2023: HK$6,360,000) that will
expire within 5 years. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

(b)

AERAELEHEEE(EE)
BEWF200FTH 0K A& H
I #% Bt 2 5 % I8 &5 18 49 245,256,788
BIL(ZF = = F 1 49436,704,000
?érc)ﬁﬁamﬁkmlﬁﬁﬁ VERZSN
HEBRBEEERRER B HEH
B 18 2 R 2K JE SR B s A &Y Al g M T
R ARERBEEBEEELRASF
A ) B Y &5 184,096,000 T(= =
—=%+=ZH=+—H :6,360,000
Bor) cHM /BB ER A -
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26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the

26 EIN-EBREKRSR
(a) BEZmEBD ﬁiﬁ

AEBERAED mﬁﬁﬁmi%ﬂﬁi

REHOERIEAN
E I NYNETR R W K= )
FROBHFHEHINMOT

oA

EAﬁ%ﬂi

changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:

Accumulated

Share capital ~ Share premium losses Total
Company P N Bx RHEE 2itFR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
THRT THRT ThER ThR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-B-_=E-A-HzE&4% 14,998 498,790 (234,303) 279,485
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBERRZEXLAR
for the year - - (37,112) (37,112)
Balance at 31 December 2023 and R-F-=f+-A=t-AEk
1 January 2024 “ECmE-A-BIE8 14,998 498,790 Q72,015) W73
Profit and total comprehensive income AEERHRZENEEE
for the year - - 1,248 1,248
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-F-METZA=1+-Rz
g 14,998 498,790 (270,767) 243,021
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26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 26 EIR-REBRERE(E)
(b) Dividend (b) BRE
The board of directors does not recommend any §$ TEZ A FEIR M E AR
dividend payment for the year (2023: Nil). B(ZEZ=F:8&)-
(c) Share capital (c) B

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

FREEICNB T EE

Number Share
of Shares capital
R&GEE R A
‘000 HK$"000
TR TER
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R-ZE-_=ZF—-F—-H - Z%==
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +-A=+-B - —Z-_MWE—A
—BR-Z-_MAF+-_A=+—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R_E_=Z¥-A—-RBR ZZT_=%
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +-A=+—-B - ZF-WF—A
—BR-ZZ-_ME+_A=t—H 1,499,750 14,998
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TRBRHEARBRRKRIRTEES RS

receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

BRERBEERARAARE LILER
BE—R-FAEBERYARRAMNER
TEEFARFE

H I
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26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands,
the funds in the Company’s share premium
account are distributable to the equity
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set

out in Note 2(v).

Other reserve
The other reserve comprises the changes in

(iii)

equity as a result of change in the Group’s
interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2(d).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

26.

2024 Annual Report

ER-FERRI(E)

(d)

(e)

BENEER AR

(i) RGEE
REFERS QA MERE
BRREREEBREZ  NAA
HERMENERAERKER
TRHZER MAQAZK
MEBR cEELAI DK T #EDS
PR o

BEHE
BERBEREREBINER
MBHREMELNABINEE
MeERBERRBME2VAE
AABRRERE -

(ii)

(iii) A bt 15
Hi#EEEREAARAEEREA X
EEGEMR —HNEB RS
REBMEIMEL ZREE
B o 5% I B T I MY EE2(d) T #X

BATBREIE -

EXER
AEEEREANTIEARRRE
AEBERFBERKENRE N ERER
@K AR E m MR EE - A
RAGENKANERFSBRERE N
BEBAREZBRRREEDR X R
Hip Mz H R E SR -

AEBEEHRILERZAEEARAR
B ABBERSRERD®HA K
MBS EEKFERRBEE RN
TEAMNBERREZENTE X
REBEZEBERNOZEH ERRIBAE
8 o
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26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its gearing ratio and cash flow requirements,
taking into account its future financial obligations
and commitments. For this purpose, the Group
defines gearing ratio as total borrowings (including
lease liabilities) over total equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31
December 2024, the Group's gearing ratio was 2.2%
(2023: 3.3%).

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new
debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

OCI Asset Management Company Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Regulated
Subsidiary”), is granted licenses by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) for the
business they operate in. The Regulated Subsidiary is
subject to liquid capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management of the Group
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the Regulated
Subsidiary’s liquid capital level to ensure compliance
with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Regulated Subsidiary has no
non-compliance of capital requirements imposed by
the SF(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

26 EIN-EBRRR(E)

(e)

BARED(E)
AEEEBBRVTHEHEEABLEM
BeREE R WEBEERKRY B
BEEMEAENEETEEEALEE -3
EmE AEEBEEAEGBLEE
EBEAUBHRARATBERE
FHEABA BRUAEAREX R T
“mME+-_A=Z+—H A£EEHN
BEABBLRA2 2 (T - =4
3.3%) °

AREE BEEEYESEHHAEH
BEAEETA - BBEFIAEBLR
R -ARAREHBENBRROK
BEER BOTHR EEFETR
BHIHEEENRERBR -

ARalZ2EMNBRARAIREEEETE
ERAGZREMNBLAT]NTE
EERFLBEEBEES(RE
EEEERBREBEFAREZE
K- ZXHEEMBARAEBTHEAER
FLBHEMBRERBANTESRR
HEMBRERBAADTEERS
EeHWRE- AEEEEESHE
NERZHAEMNBRAINRHES
KEUNBREEESF KB B K
BR)BAUANKERDESHRTE - &
EZTE_NEFRZFT_=F+=A
S+ —BALEEFEFERN ZHEM
BRARAIVEEREFF KB E(H K
BR)BAUAEBSHEZRE
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to currency, interest rate, credit and liquidity
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value or cash
flows of an asset, liability or forecast transaction
denominated in foreign currency (that is, a
currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which the transactions relate)
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The functional currency of
the Hong Kong subsidiaries is HK$ and the
functional currency of PRC subsidiaries is
Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group is exposed to
currency risk primarily arising from investments
denominated in United States Dollars (“US$").
As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HK$ and the US$ to be
insignificant.

As most of the Group’s financial instruments at
31 December 2024 and 2023 are denominated
in either HK$ or US$, management does not
consider there to be any significant currency risk
associated them.

2024 Annual Report

MiERRERKEM T AR FE

AEERARXRBERTELERR A
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(a) ™H AR
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B E
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M ER NI EE) g E
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RO ERRABRIEREUET
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T X T 2 ] O [ R B A
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest-bearing financial
assets. The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to time deposits
with original maturity date over three month,
and fixed-rate debt securities issued at fixed
rates. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk mainly from balances with
banks carrying interest at prevailing market
rates.

Management of the Group monitors the
related interest rate exposure closely to
ensure the interest rate risks are maintained
at an acceptable level. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate arising from the Group’s
HK$denominated financial instruments. The
Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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MHEEREEREM TR FEE)

™% ke ()
(i) 7 FE =

MERBRESRIANHDFE
EARKRAEERERTH M X
BimbRRBER - NKE
MAEXREBRETEXREBF S SR
BE-ASBEHGEBRIH
FREE-"EANENERNRE
BEBEHRZFENEXME
B ANEBETEERRESRA X
R TE2XREZEBTHEHN
KT BHIRITHERR -

AEBEEBZVERMARBA
ERBE O - AR X R R
MEARAESIKE -AEEH
ReRMNEEREEETHEH
AEBUAETHENEZRTA
SIEMNBERITEEREK
B o AN B B AT E RN KR
BE-AM EEEBRFER
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. Bl EREERERTIE 2 FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WHBERKGE)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) 7= 7@ B (&)
The following table, as reported to the MAKSEEREEMZ2®H T&X
management of the Group, details the FHIWAEERBE RO A
interest rate risk profile of the Group's PREERERABGEZMNER
interest-bearing financial assets and financial & B
liabilities at the end of the reporting period:
Note 2024 2023
B 5 —E-NF —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THET
Net fixed rate financial assets EB £ MEE (G E)
(liabilities): FEE
Debt securities measured REBHKATEN
at amortised cost B & 5 15 340 21,020
Time deposits with RE A HEA
original maturity date =B A8 EHREFX
over three months 20 60,927 14,845
Lease liabilities HEBAE 22 (5,961) (9,135)
55,306 26,730
Net variable rate financial asset: E8 & B & E F# -
Cash at financial institution TRIEER S 20 67,130 89,948
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The analysis is prepared
assuming interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities outstanding at the end of
respective reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. When reporting to
management of the Group on the interest
rate risk, a 50 basis points (“bps”) increase
or decrease in the relevant interest rates will
be adopted for sensitivity analysis, assuming
all other variables were held constant, which
represents a reasonably possible change in
interest rates. Interest-bearing bank deposits
are not included in the sensitivity analysis
for the change of interest rate as the bank
deposit rate is at a low level and management
of the Group considers such the impact
of bank deposit interest is insignificant. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in loss after taxation of the Group or vice

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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MHEEREEREM TR FEE)

™% ke ()
(i) FFE =z (E)

WREEZ DR

ATHREDHTLDERAE R
RMEELREBMABENHNXER
BEE - ZOoMDIBIRNERSE
HRNAEARSREERS
REBEERBREFEHREEM
RE - ERAASEEEERS
MERERE  SERBEBMEX
SOEEE(TEHEDWERER
BRELN ERIXMAEEM
BEEORFTITENBRTE
BMEAELENGEZES -
R R 17 73 5ROF K BE R B K
FoAAXRKEEEER/RT
FRAMENFTELAEKR A
R RS HEREEDNIL KR
BEFERITER - A TEH
RAASEBHRERE N
[RZ IR -

versa.

2024 2023
—E-_NME =—ZE-=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Loss after taxation for the year FRKRRIEZEEE
Increase by 50bps = FH50 fE & 2 (231) (112)
Decrease by 50bps T B& 50 R & 2h 231 112
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
other receivables, interest receivables and debt
investments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from time deposits with original maturity
date over three months, and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institutions with sound credit
ratings, which the Group considers to represent
low credit risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies
The board of directors delegates to a risk management
team the duties to monitor the credit risk of the Group.
Members of this risk management team include, inter
alia, the chief executive officer, responsible officers,
the financial controller and the head of investment
department. This risk management team is responsible
for monitoring, pre-warning and detecting the credit
risk.

217.

MBEEREENEM TB2 2 FEG
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Debt investments

The Group focuses on decentralising investments
for the credit-type fixed income securities
investments which are mainly high return products.
The Group pre-controls the exposure of the
credit risk by setting investment position limit,
classifying the sub-investment varieties, sub-credit
rating limits and concentration limits. Moreover,
the Group continuously tracks the bond issuer’s
business conditions and credit rating changes
through monitoring, pre-warning, risk detecting,
etc. At the same time, the Group is highly prudent
in the investment of the asset-based securities
products and strictly evaluates the quality of the
underlying asset pool and the effectiveness of the
credit enhancement.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk in industries
or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 54% (2023: 84%), 22% (2023:
7%) and 99% (2023: 99%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer, the second largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively within the asset
management segment.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates.

. Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading are due within 120 days from
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 3 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from these customers.

o Fees receivable from asset management mainly
represent regular management fees based on
a predetermined fixed percentage of the assets
value under management. The Group acts
as fund manager of fee receivable customers
and closely monitors the net asset value of the
customers to ensure they have enough money
to repay the fee receivable.
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NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group performs individual and collective
impairment assessment on debt investments at
amortised cost and trade receivables.

° For debt investments at amortised cost,
the Group identifies individual impairment
through methods such as risk classification
and early warning. For assets for which an
allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the Group determines the
allowance amount by assessing the losses of
each debt investment at amortised cost at
the reporting date. During the assessment
stage, the Group generally considers the
financial status of the borrower, the disposal
of collateral, the repayment ability of the
guarantor and related parties to estimate
the recoverable future cash flows and
discounts the recoverable future cash to the
present value of the significant impaired
debt investments at a reasonable discount
rate. The difference between the carrying
value and the estimated present value of the
significant impaired debt investments shall be
provided for as the impairment loss on debt
investments at amortised cost.

° For trade receivables, the Group measures loss
allowances at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer
bases. Expected loss rates are based on past
one year experience. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

217.

MBEEREENEM TB2 2 FEG

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKE)
Measurement of ECLs FEHIEEEENTE

In accordance with HKFRS 9, the Group constructed
a “three-stage” ECL model to manage its financial
assets’ credit risk:

BRREBMBEREERFEIR - K
SEBRTI=ERIEHEEESR
BARERESREENEERR

Stage 1: Financial assets have not experienced f& B — cREENEERRE
a significant increase in credit risk "F)] TR FE R 18 W K FR & 12
since origination and impairment CERBARKI2ME A A
recognised on the basis of 12 months iﬁ HEEEEN R ®E
expected credit losses. ROBAE ©

Stage 2: Financial assets have experienced BER—: 2MEENRFEERRA
a significant increase in credit risk NmpEREBEE B % #
since origination and impairment is m-mRERFEHR
recognised on the basis of lifetime BHEEERENSER
expected credit losses. R AE ©

Stage 3: Financial assets that are in default and &R = TREEEADNLHER

considered credit-impaired.

The ECL is the result of the discounted product
of probability of default (PD), exposure at default
(EAD) and loss given default (LGD). The definitions
of these terms are as follows:

o PD represents the likelihood of a borrower

or debt issuer defaulting on its financial

obligation;

o EAD is based on the amounts the Group
expects to be owed at the time of default.

ERRE -

EHEZEEBBEELYMHEREPD) -

%) . B2 (EAD) & 18 #4718 %k —?—(LGD)_
ERRBIRENER -HETE
m

e EABMEXEEBERAXESRZ
TAELFBITHEMNEENT
BE M

e EHNARMNBEE REREAXASK
BEHEENBRERKABEREY
TR



2024 3R REBIPRERBR AT
NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 268
fr B B 5 iR & Bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. B RAREBLEM T A2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERERKE)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

] LGD represents the Group’'s expectation of
the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure.
LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral
or other credit support. LGD is expressed as
a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the
time of default (EAD).

The ECL allowance is determined by projecting
the PD, LGD and EAD for every six months and for
each individual exposure or collective segment.
These three components are multiplied together
and adjusts their duration (if there is no early
repayment or default). This effectively calculates
an ECL allowance for every six months, which
is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL
allowance calculation is the original effective
interest rate.

For debt investments in stage 1, the Group first
calculates the annual 12-month PD and then
transfer it to monthly PD. For debt investments in
stage 2 and 3, the lifetime PDs are developed by
monitoring how defaults develop in a portfolio
from the point of time when a debt experienced
SICR to its lifetime. The lifetime PDs are based on
historical observed data taking into consideration
forward-looking factors. This is supported by
historical analysis.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The lifetime LGDs are determined based on the
factors that affect the recoverable amounts post
default. These vary by product type.

o For secured debt investments, this is primarily
based on the projected collateral values,
historical discounts to market/book values due
to forced sales and recovery costs observed.

° For unsecured debt investments, the Group
closely monitors their status and it believes
that the Group's credit risk exposure on them
is minimal.

Forward-looking information included in the
expected credit loss model is as follows:

The calculation of expected credit losses involves
forward-looking information. After the historical
analysis, the Group identified the key economic
indicators related to expected credit loss, such as
gross domestic product (GDP), consumer price
index (CPI). The Group forecasts these economic
indicators at least annually and provides the best
estimates of the economic conditions for the
coming year.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum credit risk exposure

(i)

Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management

The following tables provide information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for debt investments at amortised cost
and fees receivable from asset management
as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December

2023:

As at 31 December 2024

REEFEZERERAA
NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
( E_F_MEF A=t -HIEFE

MEEREEREMNTIRAZ L TFEE)

(b) FEREMRE)
RAGGERBEHO

il REBEARGENERRER

EEERERKER

TEREHERASER T =
mE+—_A=t—BRER_-_FZ
=Ft_A=+t-"BHEHEHRK
%&%ﬁﬁi$§+fﬁ2%7}&&§&>§
EEENREREERNEER
LEREEEBERNER

R-ZB-_ONFEF+-A=+—8H

Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BRER HEEE BEERE EEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER THER
Debt investments at RBEKATEZER
amortised cost RE
- RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEE Stage 3
(1 7% (aa) FIRE - - -
- SP Note (note (bb)) -SPEE Stage 3
(it & (bb)) FIRR - - -
- CFLD Note (note (cc)) -CFLDE# Stage 3
(Bt & (cc)) F3RE& 20,856 (20,516) 340
Total ) 20,856 (20,516) 340
Trade receivables EWESER
- Fees receivable from -EEERN Stage 1
asset management Bl 2R F1BR 20,779 = 20,779
Total @i 41,635 (20,516) 21,119
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

27. M REKRER

(b) EERARE

2024 Annual Report

REMTIB2RFEGE)

(%)

RAGGEREMOGE

(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) RYBEFRAFTENETRER
fees receivable from asset management EEEREKRERE)
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 R=ZZFBZ-Z=Z%+=ZA=+—8H

Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
Loss stages amount allowance amount
BERE BEEE BREER EEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Debt investments at REHKAFTELER
amortised cost RE&
- RD Note (note (aa)) -RDEE Stage 3
(Kt 3 (aa) F3IKEE 108,376 (108,376) =
- SP Note (note (bb)) —SPER Stage 3
(P 5% (bb)) F3KE R 101,574 (81,269) 20,305
— CFLD Note (note (cc)) —CFLDEE Stage 3
(B 7% (cc)) F3R B 21,002 (20,287) 715
Totd o ®® 230952 (209,932) 21,020
Trade receivables EYE SRS
— Fees receivable from asset -EEEEM Stage 1
management EKER F1ER 45,454 - 45,454

Total ezt 276,406 (209,932) 66,474

Notes: B 7 -

(aa) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, (aa) XL A EEZERABE RBREMKGF
the RD Note is considered to be credit-impaired 15@NATFRNEERIBR
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed ROEBEHERBEERE-
in Note 15(a)(ii).

(bb) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, (bb) "R EERE  BEWI
the SP Note is considered to be credit-impaired 15@OMFRNEEREBENR
based on the facts and circumstances as detailed SPEERWR ABEERME-
in Note 15(a)(i).

(co) In the opinion of the directors of the (c) "RRREZERE BEWIE

Company, the CFLD Note is considered to
be credit-impaired based on the facts and
circumstances as detailed in Note 15(a)(iii).

15@)GiFTFMHEET RER -
CFIDEEH KR AEERME-
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. Bl RIREEBNREM T A2 FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKE)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BRAGEEEREOE)

(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) RBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management EEEREKRERE)
(Continued)

Movement in the allowances for impairment BEXAFEZEERERE
for debt investments at amortised cost is as BEz2E3H0T
follows:
Loss allowance
BERE
HK$'000
FER
At 1 January 2023 e 213,506
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAEBRAREEE 1,595
Impairment losses reversed during the year 4 A & # Bl & & /&5 18 (5,224)
Exchange adjustment bE 5 38 & 55
(3,574)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZBEZ=F+ZA=+—HERK
—E-_mE—-HF—H 209,932
Disposal of a subsidiary: HE—HIHBAR: (189,226)
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRNEBRRBREEE 36
Exchange adjustment bE X 38 & (226)
(189,416)

At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-_mM&E+=-A=+—H 20,516
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. Bl RREEBREMTI Az FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKE)

Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BAEFEREHOE)

(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) RBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management EEEREKREMRAE)
(Continued)

Movement in the allowances for impairment EEEERKEAREREZ
for fees receivable from asset management is EHWT
as follows:
Loss allowance
BERE
HK$'000
THE R
At 1 January 2023 RZTE-_=%—H—H 781
Amounts written off during the year ~ F R 2 #i $5 © %8 (781)
At 31 December 2023, R_E_=F+-_A=+—H
1 January 2024 and E—ZT-_MmMF—H—H
31 December 2024 KZZT_MFE+_H

=+—~ -
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. Bl EREERERTIE 2 FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMKE)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued) BRAGEEERMOE
Debt investments at amortised cost and (i) RBEARABNERRER
fees receivable from asset management EEEREKRERE)
(Continued)
The directors of the Company, with the assistant AAGERFE BB ILHER
from an independent valuer (the “Independent (1B HEE]) 7B T IR E
Valuer”), reviewed and assessed RD Note, EEYHMELENFZIRRT
SP Note and CFLD Note for impairment using FTAEEAXKELEERELS
reasonable and supportable information that BRARSE DA ERSE R
is available without undue cost or effort in REMNFTARDEE - SPEE
accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 9. NKCFIDEEMRE R_T =
The results of ECL in respect of RD Note, SP MEER-_E-_=F+=-/A=+
Note and CFLD Note as at 31 December 2024 — B - EBRDEE -SPEE XK
and 2023 are summarised as follows: CFIDEEMEHEEBEAER
BEWNOT:
At 31 December 2024
R-E-_DmE+=-A=+-H
PD EAD LGD ECL
BHEE
EABXE BHEAR ENEBR &8
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Bok FEx BAt TE T
CFLD Note CFLD E & 100 20,856 98.37 20,516
At 31 December 2023
R-ZEBE_=%+-A=+—H
PD EAD LGD ECL
HHREE
EOBE BHERR BOEBB BB
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
B FET Bk FHET
RD Note RD X & 100 108,376 100.00 108,376
SP Note SPE & 100 101,574 80.01 81,269
CFLD Note CFLD E & 100 21,002 96.60 20,287

275



276

OCI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fm © B 5 ¥R % Bid 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)
(i) Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management
(Continued)
In respect of LGD of CFLD Note, the Independent
Valuer has made reference to reports by major
credit rating agencies.

In respect of LGD of SP Note, valuations are
based on residual method, which is essentially
a means of valuing the collaterals held against
the SP Note. As at 31 December 2023, the fair
value of collaterals held against SP Note that
are assessed for lifetime expected credit losses
amounted to approximately HK$20,305,000. The
collaterals mainly include listed shares in Hong
Kong. The fair value of collaterals were estimated
by the Group based on the market price of the
collaterals, adjusted in light of disposal experience
and current market conditions, by reference to the
valuation report issued by an independent valuer.

In respect of LGD of RD Note, the valuations are
based on residual method, which is essentially a
means of valuing the collaterals held against the
RD Note. As the collaterals are equity shares of a
private entity without quoted market prices, and
the Group is not able to obtain the latest financial
information of the private entity for assessing the
collaterals value, the directors of the Company
consider the collaterals value is Nil as at 31
December 2023.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Debt investments at amortised cost and
fees receivable from asset management
(Continued)

The table below summarises the information
about the fair value measurements of
the collaterals held against SP Note at 31
December 2023.

217.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
 E_T_MET_A=+t—-HILFE

MHEEREEREM TR FEE)

(b) EEREE)
RAGGEREMOGE)
il REBEARGENERRER
EEERERERE)

M_B-_ZF+=-A=+—
B TR #utA B RBSPE &
HERYZ AFEBRZ B

Significant Relationship of
Valuation method unobservable inputs Value of input unobservable inputs
CREDRS EXTABERAE BAEEE TUBEBAEzRE
SP Note Unadjusted quoted ~ N/A Nil N/A
prices
SPEE RS HBRE TE R T NER

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group did not recognise any loss
allowance (2023: Nil) on fees receivable from
asset management.

Trade receivables in respect of wines and
beverage trading

During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Group did not recognise any loss
allowance (2023: Nil) on trade receivables in
respect of wines and beverage trading.

BHE_ZT-_NF+_-_A=+—

BIEFE  NEEY EEK
EEEEERBERITABER
BZEZ=F:E)-

(i) BREEAENRRGREECEUWK
BRKRIE
HE-ZT-_MF+=—_A=+—
HEFE AEBYEREE
BERXMEBZRKE ZKRIE
BREMNEBEERERB(ZZT ==
F:8\)o
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (c)
Liquidity is managed on a daily basis by the treasury and
finance departments. They are responsible for ensuring
that the Group has adequate liquidity for all operations,
ensuring that the funding mix is appropriate so as

MEEREEREMNTIRAZ LA TEGE)

RBEZRAR

MBDELEBRHAEHR LM BAE
B-REAERMRAEEEET RS
MTBESETHERL BRE
THARE BRIHPAEL K
SEEERERREARENRBDEE
REERBDETER  UNBERESR
ENETRBEAFTAEBNEHNE

to avoid maturity mismatches. The Group manages
liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of
appropriate quality to ensure that short-term funding
requirements are covered within prudent limits.

TREJNRBEAEERHEHREZ
EHNARAERRERE(BERREYN
MEFER(MAFBHNE)ZERS
HIARMRITHXRGFE RN E M)
RAEBAEKRERLERNZTFH
HAENETEZRBENSGOR

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturity at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates

current at the end of the reporting period) and the BR F B o
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay.
Liquidity risk tables HEE LR
For the year ended 31 December 2024 8EZ_F_MNUF+_A=+—8H1t
FE
Ondemand  After 1year  After 2 years Total
or within but within but within  Undiscounted Carrying
1year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
RERRG BA1E BB25 AERRE
-FR BFEB2E (EFEBSE REAR RE®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TER TR TR
Financial liabilties: cRAR:
Accruals and other payables RSB R E 4
Eft &R 15,361 - - 15,361 15,361
Lease liabilities HERE 3,553 2,665 - 6,218 5,961
18,914 2,665 - 21,579 21,322
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. iR REBLEMTI B2 A FEE)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBESRARE)
Liquidity risk tables (Continued) REELRERE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_F_="F+_A=+—8B1L
FE

Ondemandor  After 1year  After 2 years Total
within but within but within -~ Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
RERE BRF BB  AKRERE
—ER BfBEHE2F BLERSE nERE EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAT TET TAT

Financial liabilities: ERAER:
Accruals and other payables B 3B R E B

E 30,390 - - 30,390 30,390
Lease liabilities HEER 3,553 3,553 2,665 9,771 9,135

33,943 3,553 2,665 40,161 39,525
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the
financial instruments, including unlisted
investment funds which are categorised into
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The team
reports directly to the directors of the Group. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the directors of the
Group. Discussion of the valuation process and
results with the directors of the Group is held
twice a year, to coincide with the reporting
dates.

217.
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HBRREEREMT A2 FEGE)

(d)

ATEMNE
() HUAFEHEHEBEE

nYFERBR

TRINTAEEEREHRE
HAEnemI AN TE
BEAEMBHREEANFI3HKA
FEAEFREZRED B
BAFESFH - R FEFE
MR BHEERMAERE A
BERGABELEEZMFEY
AT

g 1]

s FEEAME-EERF
—EfBAEBIMERZ
BEXABRGFERSE
REFEBRTIG 2 RECK
KBE)FEZRFE

s FE_EAMBE-ERFEZ
BEha ANEBIRENTE
F-EBERZ2AUBREE A
B BYEEREKRNH
BRB ABFEZRY
E-TABEGm AEBEE
EREMSRBE 2 BAE-

« ECZEAGE:EAEX
FABEHABEGELD
T

AEEA - BaMBREEERS
MERH SR T EETMHE
BEIBRE=ZRATEER
MELTREES ZEKE
BERAAEBEERS ZBEKH
EEFHEFERSEHER
— oM ARFEAEEHNMG
BRE YAXAEEEETEX
EitE - BERITMAAEHE
ExmbEeERER &
HEBH B
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OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

(d)

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-_Z-_WNE+-_A=+-BLLEE

MEEREERERTIE 2R FEGAE)

DNV EFEE)
(i) URFEAENZHEEE)

(Continued)
Recurring fair value Fair value as at Fair value as at  Fair value Valuation technique(s) and
measurements 31 December 2024 31 December 2023  hierarchy key input(s)
R-E-QmE R-E_=%
tTZB=Z+-B t+ZA=t-H
BERAYEAE ZDTVE ZATE RYEARN H#ERARIESH
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TH7
Assets:
BE:
Unlisted investment funds
FIroRELES
0Cl Equities Fund SP 92,017 102,403  Level 3 Discounted cash flows model adjusted for
fund specific credit risk
F-ER  HRREREREGGEERERER
RELAR)
0ClI Chiyu Fixed Income 4,863 - Level3 Asset approach from net asset value
Fund SP
£FZER  AERENEER
Listed securities 14,192 12,563  Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price
&S S ER AERERE
Listed warrants 10 66 Level 1 Unadjusted quoted price
F R bR F-ER  ABEERE
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

2024 Annual Report

27. WHEREERENRTIAZ2 L FEE)

(d 2FEFEHE)

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) URAFEFEHZHEEE)
(Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2024, BHEZZT fE F+-_A=+—
there were no transfers between Level 1 and ALEFE F—BEE_H 2
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 Fﬁjiﬂﬁﬁré FEE=ZREA
(2023: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise KEBHEEF=R(ZZE_=F:
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy B - AKEEBEBREIIRN LR H
as at the end of the reporting period in which %7 WM EBHRERD FERG
they occur. NERNZzZHENER -
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BHEE=RLrTEHENERN
Relationship of
Valuation Significant unobservable
techniques unobservable inputs  Range input to fair value
TUBEBAER
CRERE EAFTTBEBAE BE ALEZHENEE
OCl Equities Discounted cash flows Discount rate taking into 14.05%~14.58% The higher the discount rate,
Fund SP model account the credit risk ~ (2023: 13.69%) the lower the fair value
of the fund
0Cl Equities BRASTRERLY RESEERBREE 1405%~1458% HREHE AATEH
Fund SP % (ZEZ=%: &
13.69%)
OCI Chiyu Fixed  Asset approach N/A N/A N/A
Income Fund SP
0Cl Chiyu Fixed & E % i i i

Income Fund SP

As at 31 December 2024, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in discount rate by 2%
(2023: 2%) would have increase/decrease the
Group's loss for the year by approximately
HK$2,814,000 or approximately HK$2,982,000
respectively (2023: increased/decreased the
Group's loss for the year by approximately
HK$284,000 or approximately HK$294,000
respectively).

RZZE-_mME+=—A=+—
B EBHMEEHREFT
BHBERT BEIE R MR
PR%(Z B Z =4 :2%) 4 &t
BEERAEBMZAFEEIR
2 B3 A0, A 492,814,000 7%
JC 8% #72,982,000/8 (= & —
TE AEBZAFEERD
B 18 h0, 8 > #9284,000 7% T =k
#7294,0003 7T) °
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 27. Bl RREEBREMTI Az FEE)

28.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d RAFEFTEE)
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) URAFEFEHZHEEE)

(Continued)
The movements during the period in the balance

ZEFE_RAFEFELESRRN

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as HEMNEEHHT :
follows:
2024 2023
—EDmMFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAETT
At 1 January R—H—H 102,403 92,013
Addition 2 0 5,000 -
Disposal & (1,501) -
Unrealised (losses) gains recognised & A 18 %5 A #E 32 B9
in profit or loss during the year RER (BB KR (9,022) 10,390
At 31 December n+=-—A=+—~H 96,880 102,403

The (losses) gains arising from the remeasurement
of the Group’s unlisted investment fund are
presented in the “loss from securities trading
and investments” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (ii)
carried at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
and liabilities carried at amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

EMEAKEFLTRER
TEEZ(BRIREREAE
mAhkEMEmEmEERESRIK
BEESFEERREZER]-

BUR A8 905 2 5 AR H9 &
EEREERAFE

AR B R B SH A RS BR Y & R
BENBEEREEEER -
THEERFB_=Ff+-A=
T—HNRAFETEEREZER -

COMMITMENTS 28, TR IE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no REmEBRR XEBWERNI B @K
outstanding commitment not provided in the financial BEORBEAE - (ZZE_=ZF.%7]
statements (2023: RMB3,000,000 contracted for the EELFEETEASR AR3,000,0007T)

capital injection in the joint venture).
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29. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29.
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POSITION
Note 2024 2023
(=3 —E_ME —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment k% BERRE 7,158 11,119
Investments in subsidiaries RHEARZRE 12 1 1
Rental deposits Heke 1,086 1,086
8,245 12,206
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & & - B FIE R E o JE R B 1,689 1,091
Financial assets at fair value through BEATESABRNEREE
profit or loss 92,017 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries L GIEINGE: ¢ ‘ 118,654 181,684
Time deposit with original maturity date over ~ REHABB=HEANTHER
three months 6,024 14,845
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBeEEER 35,379 57,095
53763 254715
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables Bt mEREMERKE 683 3,275
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERH B R AIFE 12,343 12,738
Lease liabilities HEERE 3,341 3,174
T3k 19,187
Net current assets RBEEFHE 237,396 235,528
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABEE 245,641 247,734
Non-current liability (¥RBER
Lease liabilities HERE 2,620 5,961
Net assets EEZRE 243,021 241,773
Capital and reserves BEXK
Share capital e 26(c) 14,998 14,998
Reserves B 26(a) 228,023 226,775
Total equity BERAH 243,021 241,773

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2025:

Jiao Shuge £ #f B
Director & %

R-CE-_AF=ZA-_FT/\BEEFS#H

o e 35 HE T B

Wu Guangze & &2
Director & &
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year.

(a)

(b)

Transaction with key management personnel

The Company’s directors are key management
personnel of the Group whose remunerations are
disclosed in Note 8.

The remuneration of directors of the Company is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

Balances and transactions with related parties

Name of related party

BTG A

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
( E_F_MEF A=t -HIEFE

30. EBAXRS
BEaMBRREMBOMABENRS
Mg REERANFEEEBES
ETTINEARS

(o) EFTEEEAEBETZRES
$&T§$%$%IE’UIK BB A
B HEMWE AN ESHEE -

ARBEZZFNEFHNEZEDE
EBRAXRBEMGBEEET -

(b) BAM S AR EBBLTETZIRS

Relationship
RES

Future Strategy GP Limited

A company whose ultimate controlling shareholder
is Mr. Jiao Shuge, the executive director and
chairman of the Company

—HARARAABTESRIFEHEEEERE
RAERRES QA

2024 2023
ZEWE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T FET
Transaction: RS
Management fee income* EEBIWAS - 195
* The above transactions were conducted on mutually 5 FlRZZ R —MEBERPIEHR

agreed terms in the ordinary course of business.

[ 5 € < Rk #E1T o
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3. MBAX%(E)
(b) Balances and transactions with related parties (b) BEBM AT EHBREBEBELTETZRS
(Continued) (&)
Name of related party Relationship

R

B &

Orient Finance Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited

RT2RERGEE)ERAA

A wholly-owned subsidiary of a major shareholder of
the company

ARBETERRZEZEWME QA

2024 2023
—E-_NE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAETT
Transaction: R5:
Interest expenses* MEFRX* - 2,317
* The above transactions were conducted on mutually & £t BEBERPIEHR

agreed terms in the ordinary course of business.

Name of related party

R

Relationship
B &

Mr. Jiao Shuge

The executive director and chairman of the Company

B EE RABIHITEERERE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
Transaction: R5:
Sales of wine and beverage* HEBAB O RKMm* 594 -
J The above transactions were conducted on mutually G PRGN —BEBERPIRL
& 1% 2 BT o

agreed terms in the ordinary course of business.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3. MBEAXRZ(E)
(b) Balances and transactions with related parties (b) BEBAFEHRREEBRE T ETZIRS
(Continued) (&)
Name of related party Relationship
B D BB RS

Capital Ally Holdings Limited A company whose major shareholder is Mr. Jiao Shuge,

the executive director and chairman of the Company
—HABARRARTEERIFEMBEEREEE
ZREH QA

2024 2023
g1 3 —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Transaction: R5:
Income from termination of REKRIEFBESEZBA*
memorandum of understanding*
— Interest income from —RBAREZSZMERA
refundable deposits - 3,286

* The above transactions were conducted on mutually
agreed terms in the ordinary course of business.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
entered into a memorandum of understanding (the
“2021 MOU") with Capital Ally Holdings Limited (the
“Seller” or “Capital Ally") for a proposed acquisition
of 51% of the issued share capital of Rising Phoenix
Investments Limited (the “Target Company"”)
which is a subsidiary of Capital Ally (the “Proposed
Transaction”). During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group extended the 2021 MOU (being
the “2022 MOU ") and further extended the 2022
MOU | (being the “2022 MOU I1"”) as additional time
is required to perform due diligence investigations
in connection with the Proposed Transaction. The
consideration for the Proposed Transaction under
2021 MOU was proposed to be US$330,000,000 and
was revised to US$204,000,000 and US$280,000,000
under 2022 MOU | and 2022 MOU I, respectively.

g FRRG IR —BEFKERPIRHL
B E 2 GERET -
REBEE_ZT-_—F+=-H=+—8H
LEF & 7N & [ 84 Capital Ally Holdings
Limited ([ 2 77 | =k [Capital Ally]) 3t &
& Ur B# Capital Ally 2 B B 2 &]Rising
Phoenix Investments Limited ([ B & 2
ANDBEERTRANS%([BERS))
A —HhmBERR( == —&
REESR]) REBEE_T__F+
A=+ BLEFE BHRFERH
INEEHEZRHIETERASLS
rEBELER-_ZE-Z—FRMEL

BB FMESE])
W —FLERER S -__FH5BES
RN ZE-—FRmEBHESEN)-

T FRMESBETNCER
R % 2 B # F 4330,000,000%E 7T -
DRI R-IZEZ_FREETH
INZE__FRBHESEIBET Z
204,000,000 2 7T & 280,000,000 3 JT °
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group extended the 2022 MOU Il (being the “2023
MOU ") as additional time is required to perform
due diligence investigations in connection with the
Proposed Transaction. The consideration for the
Proposed Transaction was US$280,000,000 under
2023 MOU L.

Mr. Jiao Shuge is a director and major shareholder
of Capital Ally and acts as the Seller's guarantor
(the “Seller Guarantor”) that shall unconditionally
and irrecoverably agree and undertake to procure
the due and punctual performance by the Seller
of all of its obligations under and in the definitive
transaction documents.

The Seller, the Group and the Target Company are
collectively referred to as the Parties.

2021 MOU, 2022 MOU 1, 2022 MOU 1l and 2023
MOU | merely serve to record the intention of the
Parties as at the date of these memorandums of
understanding.

As stipulated in 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU I, 2022
MOU Il and 2023 MOU I, the Group will pay
Us$11,500,000, US$11,500,000, US$14,000,000
and US$14,000,000, respectively as refundable
deposits (together, the “Deposits”) to the Seller
on or before 9 July 2021, 19 January 2022, 19
July 2022 and 9 January 2023, respectively, for
the purposes of costs and expenses incurred by
the Seller in entering into these memorandums of
understanding with the Company and co-operating
with the Company in respect of due diligence
investigations in connection with the Proposed
Transaction.

30.
(b)

2024 Annual Report

575 % 5 (4)
MBS EBRERESET 2R S
(%)

HE-_T-_=%F+=-H= Jr*Eut
FE BHRFEBIEHEHER
SETEBRAE $'¥IELE
T _FRBmESERI(AI =2
EFERBESEI]D T _=FR
BETHRIETZRERGZIRER
280,000,000 3 T °

II [ ><\P

£ 15 B 5L A& Ty Capital Allyz EEF#
TRE - WEAEINERA(ES

BRAD  ASEGHE R HEHE
BEhAGREENZERERELT

EREBRXGXHET R M
BEE-

BN AKBERERERARBEAE
\HO

—F= —$ﬁ%ﬁ i —FZ
F R BT R o R
/L:\ﬁ”& §::¢E?ﬁ¢1%/u\ﬁ”%

_?—_

%W\&%ﬁ%ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
FEMm e

BT —FRMESRE ZF
——Eﬁ%ﬁmﬁl:g::i
REEHESEIR = Affﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
SERIFTEIRE - A B S R R

:—Etﬂha‘:gzzﬁ—ﬁ
+ABEB - ZEZZ=ZFtA+LB R

—E_=F—AABRZAEAEA
% 411,500,000 7t * 11,500,000 3
7T * 14,000,000 3 Jt & 14,000,000 %
TEATRERS(HBAESE])
REBREARNQRRGILZERBEH
EHREMBRER G ERASTHAR
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Balances and transactions with related parties
(Continued)

Upon termination of 2021 MOU, 2022 MOU |,
2022 MOU Il and 2023 MOU |, the Seller and the
Seller Guarantor shall jointly and severally return
to the Group the Deposits together with interest
(6.5% per annum) of the Deposits within 5 days
following the termination of 2021 MOU, 2022
MOU I, 2022 MOU Il and 2023 MOU I. A break-fee
in the amount of 1% of the Deposits was only
applicable to 2021 MOU and 2022 MOU I.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Proposed Transaction under 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOU Il were terminated in accordance with the
expiry date as stipulated in 2022 MOU | and 2022
MOQOU I, respectively (the Proposed Transaction
under 2021 MOU were terminated during the year
ended 31 December 2021). Deposits paid by the
Group were refunded from the Seller and interest
and break-fee were paid by the Seller upon the
refund of the Deposits.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Proposed Transaction under 2023 MOU | was
terminated in accordance with the expiry date as
stipulated in 2023 MOU I. Deposit of US$14,000,000
paid by the Company was refunded from the
Seller and interest of approximately HK$3,286,000
(2022: interest and break-fee of approximately
HK$5,489,000 and HK$897,000 respectively) were
paid by the Seller upon the refund of the Deposit.

30.
(b)

fm © B 5 ¥ % Bif 5

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MET_A=T-BHLEE

AR % (&)

BB ASRREEREFETZRS
(%)

F_?_*Eﬁﬁﬁ (i ZEF

ZF RS R R
BTHIR —F = = FRF# T
ik BRAREFERAERZ
f——iﬁMﬁmﬁ —EF=-=
BEBETH S __FRRME
SEIR - =ZFREET IR
IE#&S KA £ R & @ R\ AR & E
RERSERESHMNBE(FA X
6.5%) B 1%MKRILEEFRAR
T FRMEERHEE=-ZT ==

FmREE B =kl -

—_ —

REE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H

LtEE —E-__FRBESHIK
TE I _EFERBESEIET 2 &

BERXHGERB-_ZT__FR®MES
BRIk —F Z —F RS ERIATE]
HBeEmMBBEMKRE(ZEZ—F
FRMETHETIEZRIERNE
E-E-—F+ZH=+—BL#HF
EHRE) BERFEREXAERZN
Mmize BEERFEREEKRESEX
HRMERKEILE-

REBEZE-_ZT_=F+=-H=+—H
EFE —T=FRBHETHKIE
TZEBERFIERBE-_ZTZ=Z=FR
ETSIMETIAZERRB 8K
Lt - BFEREARAINNES
14,000,000k T BEEAE RN R E
&% X F B 493,286,000 (=
T F:MERKBLEED D
5,489,0007% Jt % 897,000/ JT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_T_MFET_A=+-HLEE

31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2024 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include
the following which may be relevant to the group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates -
Lack of exchangeability

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial
instruments and HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: disclosures — Amendments
to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments

1 January 2025

1 January 2026

Annual improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards - Volume 11

1 January 2026

HKFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in
financial statements

1 January 2027

HKFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public 1 January 2027

accountability
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 To be
Sale or Contribution of Assets between determined

an investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
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31.

REZEFEZERARDF

NOTES TO-THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2024 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to
be in the period of initial application. Except for the new
HKFRS mentioned below, the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation
and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs
have been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor
amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and
HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation
of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the
future financial statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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B 15 i 2
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-_NFE 2= —E=-— —E- & ZT-ZTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FET FET FHET
RESULTS E
Revenue I & 80,659 89,548 30,645 73,232 126,834
Loss before tax BAEE (8,850) (13,248) (78,211)  (117,281) (18,366)
Income tax credit (expense) PR #E & (X ) - 10 - (5,341) (1,233)
Loss for the year REFER (8,850) (13,238) (78,211)  (122,622) (19,599)
Attributable to: FE 14 :
Equity holders of ENYNEIE -
the Company HAEA (9,779) (13,118) (75,708)  (122,622) (19,556)
Non-controlling interests FERER 929 (120) (2,503) = (43)

(8,850) (13,238) (78,211) (122,622) (19,599)

As at 31 December

W+=-BA=+-8
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-_NE —E-_=F —E-— —E-—F —E-ZFTF

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET TAET TR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Total assets BELE 308,484 323,578 417,562 544,669 956,622
Total liabilities aEBE (37,835) (43,595) (123,922) (171,876)  (461,618)

270,649 279,983 293,640 372,793 495,004

Fquity attributable to equity AABEZEFH A

holders of the Company JE(RRE = 277,142 287,236 300,661 372,793 495,004
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR A 25 (6,493) (7,253) (7,021) = =

270,649 279,983 293,640 372,793 495,004
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